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This document cootains statements about expected future events and financial and operating 
results of Rodium Realty Limited, which are forward loolcing. By rhe nature, forward looking 
statements require the Company to make assumptions and are subject to inherent risks and 
uncertainties. There is significant 1isk that the assumptions, predictions and other forward­
looking statements as a number of facrors could cause assumptions, actual Future results and 
events to differ materiality from those expressed in forward loolcing statements. Accordingly, this 
document is subject to the disclaimer and qualified in its eotirely by the assumptions, 
qualifications and risk factm·s referred to in the management's discussion and analysis report of 
Rodium Realty Limited Annual Report 2023-2024. 
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► SOLICITORS & ADVOCATES 
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► CORPOB.ATEOFFICE 
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Investor Grievance: csl@rodium ne1 
Website: l!!Y{W,rodium.net 
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ASYMPHONY 
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AND CLASS 
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RESIDENCES THAT WILL MAKE YOU PROUD 
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RESIDE I RELAX I REJUVENATE 
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Tn the past year, our dedicated team of architect.~ and designers has demonstrated remarkable 
creativity and precision, driving the success of our projects from concept to completion. Embracing 
both innovative technology and sustainable practices, our team has collaborated seamlessly to 
deliver cutting-edge designs that meet the evolving needs of our clients. Working closely with our 
talented architects and designers, our management team has played a pivotal role in completing and 
executing project works successfully. Through leadership and support, the management team has 
empowered our creative professionals 10 lhrivc, resulting in outstanding architectural solutions that 
consisiently exceed client expectations. By fos-tering a collaborative environment, the team ensures 
that all departments are aligned with our strategic vision and project goals. Their adept coordination, 
effective resource aUocation, and proactive problem-solving have been instrumental in navigating 
challenges and maintaining project timelines. 
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MESSAGE FROM 
CHAIRMAN AND MD'S 
DESK 

Dear Valued Shareholders, 

It's my privilege co write to 
you and present this 
Annual Report for FY 
2023-2024. 

I hope this letter finds you 
safe and in good health. 

The Indian economy is 
growing faster than most 
major economies and its 
impressive growth is proof 
of its resilience to the 
ongoing volatility in the 
international ecosystem. 
India experienced 
exceptional growth, 
becoming the fastest-
growing nation globally 
and surging ahead in the 
real estate sector, 
positioning itself as the 5m 
largest economy and set to 

become the 3rd by 2030. 
The Global Economic 

sentiments and market volatility haven't affected the Indian real estate market all that much yet. The 
pandemic stoked the aspiration among NRl's co own a home back in India. Tc acted as a pecuniary 
security and made them feel connected co the country. Another reason that encouraged lakhs of 
Indians based in other nations to own a home in India. 

In FY24, your Company has completed the projects of X'enus and X'line and only the occupation 
certificate is in process. The Company has also taken up Two new redevelopment projectS located in 
Knadivali namely X'heights" . World of Delight and "X'meadows" - Smart homes for smart 
living and is actively exploring growth opportunities in various markets to capitalize oo the upswing 
io real estate. With our premium product offerings, design excellence, execution expertise and 
financial discipline, we are certain of both growth and profitability. Our growth as an organization is 
marked by continuous enhancement of our sustainable operations, our diverse workforce, continuous 
stakeholder engagement, improved governance and transparency. 

We endeavour to integrate local needs and habitat ethnic architecture with modem day vocabulary. 
Our ongoing projects are nearing completion and I anticipate fruitful years ahead. With architectural 
construction underway of ongoing projects, we expect a strong momentum in sales over next decade. 

I would like to thank all our employees for their contribution in delivering another year of 
profitability and growth. I take this oppe,rtunity to thank the Board, the bankers and all our 
stakeholders for their invaluable contnbutions to the company. Furthermore, I want to thank the 
shareholders for their unwavering faith and support. Looking ahead, experts predict continued growth 
in FY 2024-25, driven by Tndfa's urban population and sustained demand for quality housing. 

Sincerely, 
Deepak Dungarshi Chheda 
Chairman and Managing Director 

I Annual Report 2023-2024 11 
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SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION AT A GLANCE 

Sr. Particulars Ddails 
No. 
I. Day, Date and Time of AGM Saturday, 28'" September, 2024 at 12:00 noon 
2. Mode Video-Conference (VC) and Other Audio-Visual 

Means (OA VM) 
3. Participation through VC/OA YM Members can login 15 minutes before the time of 

AGM at blll!s:/ /www.1:im1io11 0~2I s;Q!Jl 

4. Helpline Number for VC/ OAVM Members who need assistance before or during 
the AOM, can contact NSDL on 
cyoLing@nsdl.co.in I 022-4886 7000 and 022-
24997000 

s. Speaker Registration before AGM By sending their request from their registered 
email address mentioning their name, DP ID and 
Client ID/ Folio number, copy of PAN, mobile 
number at c;sra rodiuJJI,~ and 
evoting@nsdl,,Q,io from Septembed 8, 2024 
(9:00 a.m. 1ST) 10 September 24, 2024 (5:00 p.m. 
1ST). Those members who have registered 
themsehoes as a speaker will only be allowed 10 

express their views/ask questions during the 
AGM. 

6. Recorded Transcript WiU be made available post AGM at 
~~~1wdium o,t 

7. Cut-Off date fore-voting Saturday, September 21, 2024 

8. Book Closure Date Sunday September 22, 2024 till Saturday 
September 28, 2024 (both days inclusive) 

9. Remote e-voting scan time and date Wednesday, September 25, 2024 ai 09:00 A.M. 
(1ST) 

10. Remote e-voting end time and date Friday, September 27, 2024 at 05:00 P.M. (1ST) 

11. Remote e-voting website bt!.ll~ t.~·w,,vQuog.nsdl,sim 
12. Name, address and contact details of National Securities Depository Limited 

c-voting service provider Trade World, 'A' Wing, 
4'" Floor, Kamala Mills Compound, 
Senapali Bapat Marg, 
Lower Parel (West), 
Mumbai -400013 
Tcl: 10221 2499 4200 

13. Name, address and contact details of Cameo Corporate Services Limited 
Company's Registrar and Share Subramaruan Building, No. I, 
Trans fer Agent Oub House Road, 

Chennai 600002. 
Phone: 044-28460390 
Email id: LD.vwi;i~ii1WS:'2illdii1s;gm 

·- Website: www.cameQindia.com --14. Email Registration and Contact Demat Shareholder.I: 
Updating Process Contact respective Depository Participant 

Physical Shareholders: 
mves,pr@?gtrTJs:cicdia a2m 
The Shareholders also can visit 
URL at btms:/ Linvesrgr:;.cam!:QiDdii1-S;:Qm the 
web module maintained by Cameo. 

I Annual Report 2023-2024 12 
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n..&., ------------

NOTICE 
NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirty-lint (3 I") Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the members 
("Members") of JlODIUM REALTY LIMITED will be held through Video Conferencing (VC) or 
other Audio-Visual Means (OA VM), on Saturday, September 28, 2024 at 12:00 noon tO aansact the 
followmg businesses: 

I. To consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for !he 
financial year ended March 31 , 2024, together with the repom of the Board ofDirecton and 
Auditors thereon. 

2. To consider and adopt the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements or the Company for 
the financial year ended March 31, 2024, and reports of Auditors thereon. 

3. To appoint Mr. Harisb Oam,ii Nisar (DIN: 02716666), who retires by rotation and being 
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment as a direcror and in this regard, pass the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

"11.llSOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable 
provisions or the Companies Ai:t, 2013, Mr, Harish Damji N'isar (DIN: 02716666), who 
retires by rotation at this meeting. be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the 
Company." 

R,gista-td Offiar: 
CJN: L8SJJ0MH1993PLC206C12 
501, X'Cube, Plot No. 636 
Opp. Fun Rtpublic T/tllQlrt, 
Off link Road, Andheri (W,:st), 
Mumbai- 4()()()53 
Ttl: 91224.231 0800 
Website: WWW .rodium.net 
Email JD: cs@rodium.net 

Dau: Septnnbn 05, 2024 
Plac,: M,,,,,IN,/ 

I Annual Report 2023-2024 

.By on/" of tM &,,rd ef DiJTct= 
For RIHUJIJII halty Li,nittd 

Sdl­
Jyo# s,,.,,. 

c,,lllfHIIIY Stmlllry 
..460859 
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NOTES: 

J. Conductlng of AGM through 
VC/ OA VM.: Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs (MCA) vide its General 

Circulars nos. 14/2020, 17/2020, 
20/2020, 2/2022 and 11/2022 dated 
April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, May S, 
2020, May 5, 2022 and December 28, 
2022 and latest being 0912023 dared 
September 25, 2023 ("MCA Circulars") 
respectively, read with SEBI circular no. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CFDPoD2/P /CTR/2 
023/167 dated October 07, 2023 
(collectively, the "said Circulars"), 

allowed companies to hold shareholders 
meeting through video conferencing or 
other audio visual means ("VC") 

dispensing requirement of physical 
presence of members ar a common 

venue, and other related mattm with 
respect to such meetings. In aCCOidancc 
with the said circulars, the 31" AGM of 

the Company shall be conducted 
through VC/OA VM. National 
Securities Depositoru:s Limited 
('NSDL') will be providing facility for 

voting through remote e-voting, for 
participation in the AGM through 

VC/OA VM facility and e-voting during 

the AGM. The procedure for 
participating in the meeting through 
VC/OA VM is explained al Note No. 14 

below and is also available on the 
website of the Company at 

www.rodium.net. 

2. Appointment of Ptoxies and Authorised 
Repmentat!Ye(s): As the AGM shall be 
conducted through VC/OA VM, the 
facility for appointment of Proxy by the 
Members is 001 available for this AGM 
and hence the Proxy Form and 
Attendance Slip including Route Map are 
not annexed to this Notice. 

Members of the Company under the 
category of lnstirutional Investors are 

I Annual Report 2023-202-4 

encouraged 10 attend and vote at the 
AGM through VC. Corporate members 
intending to authorize their 
representatives to patticipate and vote at 
the meeting are requested lo send a 
certified copy of the Boa.rd resolution / 
authorization letter ((PDF /JPG Formal) 
to the Scrutinizer by email to 
bndesal4u@gmall com with a copy marked 
to cs@rodium net and 
cvonng@osd).co.in. 

3. Quorum of AGM: Patticipation of 
members through VC will be reckoned for 
the purpose of quorum for the AGM as 
per Section 103 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (Act). 

4. llook Closure: The Register of Members 
and Share Transfer Books will remain 
closed from Sunday, September 22, 2024 
till Saturday, September 28, 2024 (both 
days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual 
General Meeting. 

5. Re-appointment of Dh«tor: At the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting, Mr. 
Barish Damji Nisar, Whole-Time 
Director of the Company shall retire by 
rotation under the provisions of the Act 
and being cligi'ble, offers himself for re­
appointment The Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and the Board 
of Directors of the Company have 
recommended the re-appointment. 

Details as required Regulation 36(3) of the 
Listing Regulations and Secretarial 
Standard on General Mttting$ wued by 
the Institute of Company Secretaries of 
India in respect of the Directors seeking 
re-appointment at the AGM are annexed 
hereto with this Notice. 

6. Dispatch of Annual Report: 1n 
accordance with the cira>lars issued by 
MCA and SEBI, the financial statements 
(including Repon of Board of Directors, 
Auditor's repon or other documents 
required to be artached therewith), such 
statements including the Notice of AGM 
are being sent in electronic mode to 
Members whose e-mail address is 

14 



RODIUMREALTYLIMITED------------

registered with the Company or the 
Depository Participant(s). 

7. Anilability of Notice of AGM & 
Annual Report 10ft copy: The Notice of 
AGM along with Annual Report for the 
financial year 2023-2024, is available on 
the website of the Company at 
www.rodium.net, on !he website of Stock 
Exchange i.e. BSE Limited and the AGM 
notice is also available on the website of 
NSDL (agency for providing the Remote 
~voling facility) at 
www eyotin2.nsdl.com. 

8. Procedure for irupection of docwocnts: 
The Register of directors and key 
managerial personnel and their 
shareholding, m.ain.rained under Section 
170 of !he Act, and the Registet of 
Contracts or Arrangemerus in which the 
direaors a.re interested, maintained under 
Section 189 of the Act, will be available 
elcC!rOnlcally for inspection by the 
members during the AOM. 

All documents referred to in the 
accompanying Notice shall be available 
for electronic inspection from the date of 
circulation of this Notice up ro the date of 

Type of 
bolder 

AGM, i.e. September 28, 2024, basis the 
request being sent on email to 
cs@rodium net. 

9. MombUJ whose email address ls not 
registered an registrr the same in the 
following manner for obtalnlng the copy 
of Annual Report: We urge members to 
support our commitment to 
environmental protection by choosing to 
m:eive the Company's communication 
through email. Members holding shares in 
demat mode, who have not registered 
their email addresses are requested to 
registet their email addresses with their 
respective depository participant$, and 
metnbers holding shares in physical mode 
are requested to update their email 
addresses with the Company's RTA, 
Cameo Corporate Se.vices Limited 
(Cameo) at 
httw //inygto.ll,cameoindia,<mnl to 
receive copies of the Annual Report 2023-
24 in electronic mode. Members may 
follow the process detailed below for 
registration of email ID to obtain the 
Annual Report and update of bank 
account details for further 
correspondence. 

Process to be followed 

Registering email address & mobile Updating bank account details 
Number 

Physical • by visiting URL at I♦ Send a written request to the RTA of the 
haps:/ / investors.cameoindla.com/ Company at iax~,~"m~india.'-Qm 
the web module maintained by by the providing the following 
Cameo; or information and documents: 

• Send a written request to the RTA - Folio Number, name of the member. 
of the Company at - Copy of share Certificate (front & 
iD!t:atoa@cam,ajodia com by back). 
providing Folio Number, Name of - Copy of sclf-attemd PAN card of the 
the Member, Copy of share shareholders including joint holders. 
Certificate (front & back), PAN(Sclf- - Copy of self-attested AADHAAR 
attested copy of PAN Card), card of the shareholders including 
AADHAAR (Self-attested copy of joint holders. 
Aadhaar card). - Bank ale details of the first/sole 

shartholder, as per the Bank Mandate 
format available on company's 
website at 
http:/ /www.rodiurn.net/pdf/P AN% 
20&%20BANK%20MANDA TE-

I Annual Report 2023-2024 15 
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KYCo/,20UPDATION.pdf 
. Original cancelled cheque leaf with 

the name of the first/ sole shaidlolder 
prirucd on it or copy of bank 
passbook showing MmC & account 
details of the account bolder attested 
bv the bank. 

DC111At Please contact your DP and register your email address and bank account details in 
vnur demat account. as ncr the ~s advisedbv vour DP. 

10. Intimation regarding change in bank dewla: Members whose shareholding is in dcmatcrialized 
form are requested to intimate all changes pertaining to their bank details such as bank account 
number, name of the bank and branch details, MIRC code and IFSC code, mandates, 
nominations, power of attorney, change of address, change of name, e-mail address, contact 
numbers, ere., to their Depository Participant (DP). Changes intimated to the DP will then be 
automatically reflected in the Company's reco:ds which will help the Company and Company's 
RTA Cameo to provide efficient and better services. Members holding shares in physical form are 
requested tO intimate such changes to Company's RTA Cameo. Members arc encouraged to utilize 
the Electronic Ocaring System (BCS) for receiving dividends. 

11. Mandated the submission of Permanent Aoconnt Number (PAN): The Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (SEBI) vide its circular dated April 2o=, 2018 has mandated the submission of 
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities markec. Members holding 
shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their Depository 
Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in 
physical form can submit their PAN 10 the Company or Company's RTA Cameo. 

12. Securities can be tramfem:d only in dematmal.iscd form: As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing 
Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be transferred only in de.materialised 
form with effect from !st April, 2019, except in case of request received for transmission or 
tranSpOSition of securities. In view of this and to elirnioarc all risks associated with physical shares 
and for case of portfolio managemenr, members holding shares in physical form are requested to 
consider converting their holdings tO dematerialised form. 

13. Ratification of Statutory Auditors: Members of the Company had approved th.e appointment of 
Mis SCA AND ASSOCIATES, Cbal:tered Accountants (Finn Reg No.:101174W), as the 
Statutory Auditors at rhe Tweniy-Seventh (27th) of the Company which is valid till Thlrty-5econd 
(32nd) AGM of the Company. In accordanQ: with the Act, the appointment of Statutory Auditors 
is not required to be ratified at every AGM. 

14. Instmctions for attending the AGM through VC/OA VM and remote e-votiog (before and 
daring the AGM) arc given below: 

A. INSTJWCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATI'END1NQ THE AGM TRRQUGH VC/OAVM 

!. Members will be provided wilh a facilil)' ro attend the AGM through VC/OA VM through 
the NSDL c-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned below 
for Access to NSDL e-voting system. After successful login, you can see link of 
"VC/OA VM" placed under "Join Mcctlng" menu against the Company's name. You arc 
requested to click on VC/OA VM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for 
VC/OA VM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company 
will be displayed. Please note that the Members who do not have the User ID and 
Passwo:d fore-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same 
by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the Notice ro avoid last minure 
rush. 

I Annual Report 2023-2024 16 



RODIUM REALTY LIMITED------------

ii. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for betttr experience. 

iii. Further Members will be required 10 allow Cam= and use Internet with a good speed to 
avoid any disrurbance during the meeting. 

iv. Please note that participants connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through 
Laptops connecting via mobile hotspot might experience audio/ video loss due to 
0uctuation in their respective netw0rk. It is therefore recommended to use stable Wi-Fi or 
LAN connection to mitigate any glitches. 

v. The facility of joining the AGM through VC / OA VM shall open 15 minutes before the 
time scheduled for the AGM and will be available for Members on fust come fust served 
basis. Facility for jo ining AGM will be closed on expiry of 15 minutes from schedule time 
oftheAGM. 

vi. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be available for 1000 
members on fust come first served basis. However, this will not include large Shareholders 
(Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Instirutional Invesrors, 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, 
Auditors etc. who are allowed 10 attend the EGM/ AGM without restriction on account of 
first come first served. 

vii. Members, who need assistance before or during the AGM, may: 
• Send a request at r;voting@nsdl co,jg or 022 • 4886 7000 

B. INSntUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS TO ASK QUESTIONS/SEEK CLARIFICATION WITH 
RESPECT TO ANNAUL BEPQRT; 

i. Members who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may 
~ themselves as a speaker by sending their request from their registered email address 
mentioning their name, DP ID and Client ID/folio number, copy of PAN, mobile number 
at cs@rodium.net and evoting@nsdl.co.in from Tuesday, September 18, 2024 (9:00 a.m. 
1ST) ro Tuesday, Sepcember 24, 2024 (5:00 p.m. 1ST) (both days inclusive). Those 
Members who have registered lhemselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their 
views/ ask questions during !he AOM. 

ii. The Company reserves the right co restria the number of speakers depending on the 
availability oftime for the AOM. 

iii. Members int.coding to require information about aooounts to be explained in the meeting 
are requested to inform the Company at least seven days in advance of the Annual General 
Meeting. 

C. TRR INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING 
GENERAL MJIBDNG ARE AS UNDER;-

(i) The remote e-voting period begins on Wednesday, September 25, 2024 at 09:00 A..M. and 
ends on Friday, September 27, 20.24 at 05:00 P.M . The remote eavoting module shall be 
disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Toe Members, whose names appear in the 
Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. 
Saturday, September 21, 20.24, may cast their voie electronically. The voting right of 
shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the 
Company as on the cut-off date, being September 21, 2024. 

I Annual Rcpoxt 2023-2024 17 



RODIUMREALTYLIMITED------------

(il) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of 
the Companies (Management and Admlnism,tioo) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and 
Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Discl0$Ule Requirements) Regulations 201 S 
(as amended), and the Cimllan issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affair.;, the Company 
is pleased to provide the facility to its members to exercise their right to vote on the 
resolutions proposed to be passed at AGM by electronic mean$ through the electronic 
voting ("c-voting") facility provided by the NSDL. 

(ili) The Members, whose oames appear in the Register ofMemben/list of Beneficial Owners 
as on Sato.relay, September 21, 2024, ie., the date prior to the commencement of book 
closure, being the cut-off date, a.tt entitled to vote on the Resolutions set forth in trus 
Notice. A person who is not a member as on the cut-off date should treat this Notice of 
AGM for information pu,pose only. 

(iv) In addition, the facility for voting through electronic voting system shall also be made 
available during the AGM. Members attending the AGM who have not cast their vote by 
remote e-voting shall be eligible to cast their vote through e-voting durin,g the AOM. 
Members who have voted through remote e-voting shall be eligible to attend the AGM, 
however, they shall not be eligible to vote at the meeting. Members holding shares i.n 
physical form are requested to access the remote e•voting facility provided by the Company 
through NSDL e-voting system at https:/ / www.evoting.nsdl.com/. The voting rights of 
Members shall be in proportion to their shares i.n the paid-up equity sba.tt capillll of the 
Company as on the cur-off date. 

(v) Any person holding shares in physical form, and non-individual sha.ttboldcrs who acquire 
shares of the Company a.nd become members of the Company after the Notice is sent and 
holding shares as of the cur-off date, i .e. September 21, 2024, may obtain the login ID and 
password by seodi.ng a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in. However, if he / she is already 
registered with NSDL for remote e-voting, then he / she can use his / her existing user ID 
and password for casting the vote. In case of individual shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode, wbo acquire shares of the Company and become members of the Company 
after the Notice is serrt and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. September 21, 2024, 
may follow stepS mentioned in the Notice under "Insttucrions fore-voting". 

D. MEMBERS A1tE REQUESTED TO FOLLOW THE INSTRUCTIONS BELOW TO CAST T11Em 
VOTES THROUGH E-VOTING: 

How do I JOte e!ectronjcally using NSDL e-Voting system? 

1k way to l'Ok dect,rm/,:,,J/y on NSDL ,-Votinz syst,m "1ruim of 'TWQ St,ps" which arr me,wu,ud b,1,aw: 

STEP 1; ACCESS TO NSDL E-VOTING SYSTEM 

Al Login method for e-Voting and iniuing virtual meeting for Individual •h•ttboldm holding 
securi!i•• la 4miaJ mode 

Io terms of SEB! circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities i.n demat mode a.tt allowed to vote through their dernat 
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Panicipants. Shareholders are advised to update 
their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

Shareholders au adw ta updgu tbm mpbjl, ,wmfla: and t-mflil ID wilh their DPs in ordtr to 4'ml t:votia• 
f(lrility. 
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Logjn method for Individual shareholders hoJdin& securities io demat mode is given be)ow; 

Type of Login Method 

shareholders 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in demat mode 
withNSDL. 

1. EX1Sting IDcAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 
https;//csrniccs nsdJ,c;om citber on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On 
the e.Services home page click on the "Beneficial Owner'' icon under 
"Login" which is available under 'IDcAS' section, this will prompt you to 

enter your existing User ID and Password. After succcssfuJ authentication, 
you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. aid: on 

"Ac:.:ess to e-Voti.og" under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e­
Voting page. aiclt on company name or e-Voti.og service provider i.e. 

NSDL and you will be re-dir~ to c-Voting websi1e of NSDL for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joini.o.g virtual meeting & 
voting during the meeting. 

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 

ht!pS;//c.,cryjcg n,dLcom. Select "Register Online for IDcAS Por1al" or 

click at httns://eservices nsdl com/SecurcWcb/ldeasDirectRes,iso 
3. Visit the c.Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 

following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computu or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon "Login" which is available under 
'Shareholder/Member' section. A new screen will open. You will have to 
emer your User ID (Le. your sineen digit demat account number hold with 
NSDL), Password/ OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
Alter successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository 
site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Cliclt on company name ore-Voting 

service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to c-Vocing website of 
NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 
vinual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App "NSDL 

Speede" facility by •canning r:he QR code mentioned below for seamless 
voting experience. 

NSDL Mobile App is available on 

, 
•App Store ~ Google Play 
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Individual 
Shamiolders 
holding securities 
in demat mode 
wirhCDSL 

Jndividual 
Shareholders 
(holding 
securities in 
dematmode) 
login through 
their depository 
participants 

I. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through 
their existing user id and password. Option will be made available 10 reach e­
Voting page without any further 2tuthcntication. The users to login Easi 
/Easi"1 uc requested lo visit CDSL website www.cdslindla.com and click 
on login icon & New S~tem Myeasi Tab and then user your <Xisting my easi 
usemame & p2LSSword. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting 
option for eligible companies where the e-voting is in progress as per !he 
information provided by company. On clicking lhc e-voting option, the user 
will be able to see .,. Voting page of the o-Voting service provider for casting 
your vote during the remolt e-Voting period. Additionally, there is also lmks 
provided to access !he system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that !he 
user can visit thee-Voting service providers' website directly. If the user is not 
registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 
https· //wci> cdslindia.com/ mveasi/Re&ist@tioo/E~_tn1rum 

3, If the user is not registered for Easi/Easicst, option to register is available at 
CDSL websilt www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System 
Myeasi Tab and !hen click on registration option. Alternatively, the user can 
directly access c-Voting page by providing Demat Aocount Number and 
PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page, 
The S)'Stem will authenticalt the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile 
& Email as recorded in the Demar AccounL After successful authentication, 
user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the e-voting is in progress 
and also able to directly access the S)'Stem of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

You can also login using the login credentials of your dema1 aocount tbrough your 
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL fore-Voting facility. upon 
logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click one-Voting option, you 
will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, 
wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Oiclt oo company name ore-Voting service 
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected toe-Voting websi1t ofNSDL for 
casting your vo1e during the remote e-Voting period or joining virrual meeting&, 
voting during the meeting. 

Important Note: Men,bers wbo are unable to retrieve User ID/Password are advised to use Forgot User 
ID and Foigot Password option available at abovemenlioned website. 

Bdpdesk for IndMdual Shucholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 
rmted to login through Depository Le. NSDL and CDSL: 

Lorin type Helndw detail• 
Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 
sccuritit.'I in dcmat mode with belpdesk by sending a request a1 eyoung'fi1rudl,co ,n or call a1 
NSDL 022 · 4886 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 
securities in demal mode with belpdesk by sending a request al 
CDSL h;l12d!:l!k ;v11WJRlalcdililldi1,,12m or contact at toll free no. I 800 

22 55 33 
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B) Login Method for e-Votl.ng and joining vinual mcding for shareholders other than Individual 
shareholders holding seairities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

Row to Loe-in to NSDL c-Yotina wcbsitcl 

1. Visit the e.Voting website of NSDL. Opeo web browser by typing the following URL: 
http$• //www eygtjno ngjl.cgm/ fflher on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on tbe icon "Login" which is available 
under 'Shareholder/Member' section. 

3. A new scrttn will open. You will have to eoler your User ID, your Password/OTP and a 
Verilication Code as sho.wn on the screen. 

AJILmaliwly, if you an r,gisur,ti for NSDL ,s,rvia,s i.,. IDEAS, you can /bg•in at 
l,nps· ( lescr:Yicts,JJS(i~limlf with your existing IDEAS /11gin. Ona you log-in to NSDL t:SD>'ica (1//u usinz 
yourlog-in crnlmtials, did, on ,-VOiing wul you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your l'Ote tkctronicaJly. 

4. Your User ID details are giveo below: 

M1.J111er of holdlog ahares I.e., Demat Your User ID L,: 

(NSDL or CDSL) or Ph~ical 

a) For Members who hold shares in dernal 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 
acoount with NSDL. ( OieotID 

f 

' For example if your DP ID is IN300_,. and 
Oieot ID is 12.,..,.. .. then your user ID is 
IN300"**12-""". 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
account with CDSL. 

For example, if your Beuefi.ciary ID is 
12 .... * .... ***** then your user ID is 
12 .................... 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 

Form. registered with the company 

For example, if folio number is 001 ... and 

EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001*** 

5. Password details for shattholders other than Individual shareholders are giveo ~ow: 

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to 
login and cast yow: vote. 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the 
'initial password' wblch was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your 'initial 
password', you need to enter the 'initial password' and the system will force you to change 

your password. 
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c) How to retrieve your 'initial password'? 

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your 
'initial pa.ssword' is communicated to you on your cm&! ID. Trace rhc email Sfflt 
to you from NSDL from your mailbo><. Open the email and open the attachment 
i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit 
client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio 
number for shares held in physical form. The pdf file contains your 'User ID' and 
your 'initial password'. 

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process 
for those shattholden whose email ids an not rcgisten:d. 

6. If you arc unable to retrieve or have not received the "Initial password" or have forgotten your 
password: 

a) Click on °fonot UKt Drteil1/Pauword7"(H you arc holding shares in your demat 
account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www eyotjgg nsdl.com. 

b) Physkal U,q Reset Pwwonl?" (lf you arc holding shares in physical mode) option 

available on www.evotios 080 mm 
c) If you are scill unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a rcqw,st at 

evoting@nsdl co in rntntioning your dcmat account number/folio number, your PAN, your 
name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based lngin for casting the votes on the 
e-Voting system of NSDL. 

7. After tntering your password, tick on Agree to "Terms and Conditions" by selecting oo the 
check box. 

8. Now, you will have to clickoo "Login" button. 

9. After you click on the "Login" button, home page of e-Votingwill open. 

STEP 2; CAST YOUR YQTH ELECTRONICALLY AND JOIN GENERAL MEETING ON NSDL 
E::YOTING SYSTEM: 

A. Bow to cast your vote clectronlcally on NSDL c-Votlng system? 

I. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to sec all the companies "EVEN" in which 
you are holding shares and whos.: voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select "EVEN" of company for whidl you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Votiog 
period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual mcctiog. you 
need to click on "VC/OA VM" link placed under "Join Meeting". 

3. Now you arc ready for c-Votingas the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e., assent or dissent, verify /modify the 
number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on "Submit" and al.so 
"Confirm" when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message "Vote cast successfully" will be displayed. 
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6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by dicking on the print option on the 
confumation page. 

7. Once you confum your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify yow- vote. 

B. Process for those shareholders whose email ids arc not registered with the depositories for 
procurill& user id and password and registration of e-mail ids for e--.oting for the resolutions set 
out in 11w notice: 

I. In case shares a.re hdd in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, 
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and bade), PAN (self-.attested scanned copy of 
PAN card),. AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadbar Card) by email to 
cs@mdium.net. 

2. In case sban:s an: held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16-digit DPID + CLID 
or 16-digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, 
PAN (self-llttested scanoed copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of 
Aadhar Card) to cs@rodium.net. If you an: an Individual shareholder holding securities in 
demat mode, you arc requested to refer to the login method explained at Step l (A) i.e., 
Login method for c-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual lharcholders 
holding securities in demat mode. 

3. Alt=ativcly, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring 
user id and password fore-voting by providing above menti.oned documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI cimilar dated December 9, 2020 one-Voting facility provided by LiSted 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders an: required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their 
demat account in order ro access e-Voting facility. 

E. THE INSTRUCTTONS FOR MEMBERS FORE-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM 
ARE AS UNDER! • 

I . The proceduu for e-voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned 
above for remote e-voting. 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/ OA VM 
facility and have not casted their vore on the Resolutioos through remote e-Voting and au 
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the 
AGM. 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. 
However, they will not be eligible 10 vote ar the AGM. 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the 
facility for e-Voting on the day of the AGM sball be the same person mentioned for Remote 
e-voting. 

GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR SHAREHOLDERS: 

IS. It is StrOngly recommended not 10 share your password with any other person and cake utm0st care 
to keep your password confidential. Login to the c-voring website will be disabled upon 6ve 
unsuccessful attempts to key in the comet password. In such an event, you will need to go through 
the "Forgot User Details/ Password?" or " Physical User tusg Password?" option available on 
www cvotin11,nsdl.com to reset the password. 
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16. The voting rights shall be as per the number of equity sham held by the Member(s) as on Saturday, 
Sq,tember 21, 2024 being the cut-off date. Members are eligible to cast vote dccttonically only if 
they are holding shares as on that date. 

17. The Company has appointed Mr. Bbavesh Naglnbbai DesaJ, Practicing Advocate (Jlegistration 
no MAB/711/2019) of Mis. B. Desai & Associates, as the Scrutin.izer, to scrutinize the entire.,. 
voting process in a fair and transparent manner. The Members desiring to vote through remote e­
voting are requested to refer to the detailed procedUJC given hereinafter. 

18. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, fu-st count the votes 
cast during the AGM, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting and within 2 
working days of conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the total votes cast 
in favour or against, if any, and submit to Managing Director or a person authorised by him in 
writing. 

19. The result$ of the electronic voting shall be declared tO the St0ck Ex.change "BSE Limited" where 
shares of Company are listed not later than 48 hours or two working days of the conclusion of 
AGM. The results along with the Sc:rutinizer's Report, shall also be placed on the website of the 
Company at www.rodmm.ne1 

20. The venue of the meeting shall be deemed to be the Registered Office of the Company at Plot No. 
636, 501, X'cube, Off New Link Road, Andberi (West) Mumbai - 400053, Maharashtra, India. 

21. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, and Rule 19(1) of the Companies (Share Capital and 
Debentures) Rules, 2014, Members holding shares in physical form may file nomination in the 
prescnbed Form SH.13 with Company's RTA Cameo. In respect of shares held in dematerialize 
form, the nomination may be filed with the respective Depository Participants. 

22. Since the AGM will be held through VC / OA VM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice. 
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~ ANNEXURE TO NOTICE 

Details of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment iD the forthcoming Annual General Meeting 
(Pursuant to Regulations 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 aod Secretarial Standard on General Meetings] 

Mr. Harish Damji Nisar 

Director Identification Number <DIN) 02716666 
Nationalicv Indian 
Date of Birth 23/09/1954 
Aae 70vea:s 
Date of Annointment on the Board November 14 2009 
Qualification Bachelor's degree m Science from Mumbai 

University 
Nature of Ern,,rtise in functional areas Law aod Accountancv 
Number of Board Meetings attended 5 ouc of 5 Meetings held during the Financial Year 

2023-2024 dnnna the vear 
Terms and Conditions of Re-appointment Mr. Nisar was Re-appointed as a Whole Time 

Director. liable to retire bv rotation 
Shareholding in the Company as on March 31, 3,20,330 equity shares 
2024 inclu";"" shareholdina as a beneficial owner 
Relationship with other Directors /Key Not related to Director I Key Managerial 
Manae.erial Personnel Personnel 
Directorships of other board of director of listed Nil 
entitv as on March 31, 2024 
Membership / Chairmanship* of Committees of Member of Srakeholder Relationship Committee 
other board of other listed entity as on March 31, 
2024 

I Annual Report 2023-2024 25 



RODIUM REALTYLIMITED-----------­

DIRECTORS' REPORT 

To the Members, 

The Board of Direcrors are pleased to present the 3 t • (Thirty-first) Annual Report on the Business 
and Operations along with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended on March 
31, 2024. 

I) Financial Ru ulu: 

The Summarized position of these results are given below: (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Partkulan Standalooe Consolidated 

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended 
Much 31, Man:h31, Man:h 31, March 31, 

202' 2023 2024 2023 

Revenue from operations 1981.10 2373.00 4755.04 4205.63 

Other income 401.85 434.16 137.73 233.28 

Total revenue 2382.9S 2807,16 4892.n 4438.91 

Expenses 2343.65 2717.58 4544.84 4199.60 

Profit/(Loss) before tax 39.30 89.58 347.93 239.31 

Tax expenses 20.01 i6.82 215.79 150.36 

Profit/(Loss) After tax 19.29 62.76 132.14 88.9S 

The above dal4 has hem n:rraatd fa,m the Audited Stand a/on, a,u/ Can.solidattd FiMndal Stat,ments prepared 
in accrJrrlanco with th• Indian Aa:ounting Standarr/J (Ind AS), as rwtijll!lf und,r Stt:tion 133 of the Companies 
Act, 20/ 3 read with Companus (l,u/ian Aa:ounling Standards JIJJ/es, 2015) and the rd1M111t p,ovisions of the 
Aa, as applicable. 

2) State of Company's Affaln: 

During the financial year 2023-24, the Company bas on a Standalone basis, earned 10ral revenue of 
Rs. 2382.95 Lakhs as against Rs. 2807.16 Lakhs during the previous financial year. The Company 
reponed the Profit before Tax of Rs. 39.30 Lakhs during the euntnt financial year as against Rs. 
89.58 Lakbs Profit before tax during the previous financial year. The Company reported the Net 
Profit of Rs. 19.29 Lakhs during the CW'l'Cllt financial year as compared to Net Profit of Rs. 62.76 
Lakhs during the previous financial year. 

During the financial year 2023-2024, the Company has on a consolidated basis, earned the total 
revenue of Rs. 4892.77 Lakhs as against Rs. 4438.91 Lakhs during the previous financial year. Toe 
Company reponed the Profit before tax of Rs. 347 .93 Lakh.s as against Rs. 239.31 Lakhs Profit before 
tax during the previous financial year, The Company reported the Net Profit of Rs 132.14 Lakhs 
during the current financial year as compared to Net Profit of Rs. 88.95 Lalchs during the previous 
financial year. 
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3) Review of operations and business: 

Your Company continues to be engaged in lhe activities pertaining to Construction & Real Estate. 

Your Company ma.de profits in the year due to which the ongoing projects neared completion. 
Completion of projects led to increase in sales this year. 

Your Company has completed its projects "Xenus-Where life resides" and "Xline- Smart, Serene, 
Spectacular" and is expecting its ,cspective Occupation Certificates soon. FurthennOIC, your 
Company has inltiatcd lhe operations of one more new project known as "Xone" in Kandivali, 
Mumbai. "X-Heigh~World of Delight'' is a new project in Kandivali, in your Company's pipeline 
and your Company is awaiting clearances from regulators to start its operations for this project. The 
details of the upcoming project are given under the beading "The Management Discussion and 
Analysis report" which form part of this Annual Report. 

4) Share Capital: 

There is no change in lhe share capital during the current financial year. Your Company has two 
classes of shares, viz. Equity Shares and Preference Shares. 

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company as at March 31, 2024 comprises of Rs.13,00,00,000/ • 
(Rupees Thirteen Crores Only) coosisting of the following: (a) 60,00,000 (Sixty Lakhs) Equity Shares 
of Rs. I 0/ - (Rupees Ten Only) each amounting to Rs. 6,00,00,000/ • (Rupees Six Crorcs Only) and 
(b) 70,00,000 (Seventy Lakhs) 6% Non-Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 
10/ • (Rupees Ten Only) each amounting to Rs. 7,00,00,000/ • (Rupees Seven Crorcs Only). 

The Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital of the Company as at March 31, 2024 comprise of 
Rs. 10,24,79,000/ - Crore, (Rupees Ten Crore Twenty-Four Lakh Seventy-Nine Thousand Only) 
divided into 32,47,900 (Thirty-Two Lakh Forty-Seven Thousand Nme Hundred) equity shares of Rs. 
JO/- each, fully paid up, and 70,00,000 (Seventy Laich) 6% Non-Cumulative Optionally Convertible 
Preference Shares ofRs.10/· each, fuUy paid up, The Company bad forfeited shares amounting to Rs. 
4,85,400/ • (Rupees Pour Lakb.s Eipty Five Thousand Four Hund.red Only). 

During the year, there was no public issue, rights issue, bonus issue or preferential iS$Uc etc. 

The Company bas n01 issued any shares with differential voting rights, sweat equity shares oor has it 
granted any stod options during the year under review. 

S) Transfer to Reservt1: 

The Company has nOt transfexred any amounts to the nserves during the year under review. 

6) Deposits: 

In tetms of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 read with lhe Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) 
Rules, 2014, during the year under review, your Company has oeilher invited nor aa:epted any fixed 
deposits from the public. 

7) Dividend, 

Toe Boan! has not recommended any dividend for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. 

8) Particulars of LoaJJs, Guarantees or Investments: 

The Company bas complied with provisions of Section 186 of the Act, to lhe extent applicable with 
respect to Loans, Guarantees or Investments during the year. 
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Details of loans and guarantee given, Investments mack and securities provided under Section 186 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 are given under the Notes to the financial statements. 

9) Material Changes and Commitments affecting tbe financial position of the Company: 

There have been no other material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the 
Company which have oocurred between March 31, 2024 and the date of this Report, other than those 
disclosed in this Report. 

10) Material onlen passed by the rqulaton/~oart/ tribunals impacting the going concern status and 
the Companies future operations: 

There arc no significant and material orders passed by the regulators/couns/lribunals which would 
impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations. 

11) Management Disausio.n and A.nalysis Report: 

The Management Di=ion and Analysis report bas been separately annexed 10 the Annual Report 
and fonns a part of the Annual Report. 

12) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR): 

As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, Corporate Social Responsibility 
("CSR") is not applicable to your Company as it docs not satisfy any criteria prescribed. 

13) Auditors a.nd their llcports: 

Statutory Auditor's 

Mis SCA AND ASSOCIATES, Chartered Accountants arc the Statutory Auditors of lhe Company 
who bold offioe for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years from the 27"' Annual General Meeting of the 
Company held on September 30, 2020 till the 32nd Ann111al General Meeting of the Company. 

The Report given by the Auditors on the financial statement of the Company fomu part of this 
Report. There has been no qualification, reservation. adverse remarlc or disclaimer given by the 
Auditors in their Report and notes to the Accounts wbiercver given arc self-explanatory hence do not 
require any clarification by the Directors of the Company. 

Seactuial Auditor's 

As required under provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board 1w appointed 
Mr. Kaushal Doshi, proprietor of Mis. Kaushal Doshi & Associates (CP No. 13143), Praoticing 
Company Secretary, to act as Seaetarial Auditor of the Company and ro undertake Secretarial Audit 
of the Company. 

The Seaetarial Audit Report in Form MR-3 !or the FY 2023-24 is annexed herewith as "A.n.neXUtt 
A" and forms part of the Board's Report. The Secretarial Report doesn't amtain any qualification, 
reservation or adve,;sc remark, however the comments given by the Seetttarial AuditOr arc mentioned 
in dttail in the Report. 

14) Scactarial Standards: 

During the year under review, the Company bas oomplied with the applicable Secretarial Standards 
issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
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15) Mattas rdakd to Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

In accordance with die provisions of Section I 52 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Article of 
Association of the Company, Mr. Harish Nisar (DJN: 02716666) Whole-Time Direaor of the 
Company retires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible bu 
offered himself for re-appointment. The Board recommends his reappointment. Toe resolution for his 
reappointment is inco,porated in the Notice of the ensuing Aruwal General Meeting, and the brief 
profile and other information as required under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 20 IS ("Listing Regulations") relating to him forms part of the 
Notice of ensuing Annual General Meetlng. 

During die year Mr. Yogesh Shah (DJN: 02774568), Mr. Vatsal Shah (DIN: 01839985), Mr Sudhir 
Mehta (DIN: 03187758) and Ms. Tcjal Mehta (DIN 01896n2) ceased to be an Independent 
Directors of the Company upon completion of 2 consecutive terms of 5 years each at the closure of 
business hours on 31st March, 2024. 

Further Ms. Srishti Raghani tendered her resignation w.e.f 13.07.2023 and Ms. Jyoti Singh was 
appointed as the Company Seaetary w.e.f . 04.08.2023. 

During the year under review, based upon the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and subject to the approval of shareholders, Board has appointed Mr. Karan Rajcndra 
Mehta (DIN: 10566820), Ms. Shachi Manish Shah (DIN: 10566841) and Mr. Dushyant Shyam 
Lilanl (DIN: 06893481) as an Additional Diffl:tor in lhe capacity of Non-Executive, Independent 
Director of the Company for the first term of five yean commencing from I st April, 2024. 

Further at the Extra-Ordinary General Moeting held on Juru, 28, 2024, Shareholders bas appointed 
Mr. Karan Rajcndra Mehta (DIN: 10566820), Ms. Shuhi Manish Shllh (DIN: 10566841)and,Mr. 

Dushyant Shyam Lilan.i (DIN: 06893481) as a Director in the capacity of Non-Executive, 
l'ndependent Director of the Company for die first tenn of five yeais commencing from 1st April, 
2024. 

During the year under review, !here have been no circumstances affecting !heir status as independent 
directors of the Company. No Director of the Company is disqualified under any law to act as a 
director. 

During the year under review, the non-aecutive directors of the Company had no pecuniary 
relationship or transactions widi die Company, other than sitting fees, commission and 
reimbursemenc of expenses incwred by lhem for lhe purpose of anending meetings of the 
Boanl/Commin:ec of the Company. 

Key Managerial Pcrsomid: Mr. Deepak Chheda- Chairman & Managing Di.rector, Mr. Harish 
Nisar-Wbole-Time Director, Mr. Rohit Dedhia-Whole-Time Director, Mr. Rohan Chbeda- Chief 
Financial Officer and Ms. Jyoti Singh-Company Secretary are the Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company in accordance with lhe provisions of Sections 2(51), 203 of lhe Act read with Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial PersoMel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modilication(s) or re-enactmenl(s) for lhe time being in force). 

The Composition of Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel as on date of Board Report is 
asunder: 

DIN/PAN Full Name Designation 
Date of 

Appointment 

00419447 De-~ DunHNhi Chheda Manaoin2 Director 14/11/2009 
02716666 Harish D•nm Nisar Whole-Time 14/11/2015 
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Director 

02716686 Rohit Kesbavji Dedhia Whole-Time 14/11/201S Director 

01839985 Vatsal Jayantilal Shah Director 04/08/2009 • · w.e.f. 31.03.2024) 

01s961n Tejal Karan Mehta Director 13/08/2014 fllesioned w.e.f. 31.03.2024\ 

02774568 Y ogesh R.alilal Shah Director 04/08/2009 fllesioned w.e.f. 31.03.2024) 

03187758 Sudhir Jayantilal Mehta Director 12/08/2010 (R.,.janed w.e.f. 31.03.2024) 

AMIPC770IN Roh.an Deepak Chheda Chief Financial 14/11/2018 Officer 
DKTPS9114M Jyoti Mahendranal Sin"h Comoanv Se-•~ 04/08/2023 

10S66820 Karan Rajendra Mehta 
Independent 01/04/2024 Director 

10566841 Shaclli Mani.sh Shah Independent 01/04/2024 Director 

06893481 Dushyant Shyam Lilani Independent 01/04/2024 Director 

16) Committees of the Board: 

Currently, the Board has three Committees: The Audit Committee, The Nominatioo and 
Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders' Relationship Committee. A detailed n0tc on the 
composition of the Board and its coll)1Xlittees is provided in the Corporate Governance Report section 
of this Annual Report. 

17) Disclosures 3ivca by the Directors: 

The Company has received varlous discloSW'CS from the Directors as specified below: 

• Pomt MBP-1: The Company received disclosure of interest from all its Directors pursuant tO Section 
184 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder in Form MBP-1. 

• Pcc)aration under Section 164: The Company has received declaration from all the Directors 
informing that they are not disqualified from being appointed/ re-appointed or continuing as 
Directors pursuant to Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. 

• Declaration by Indt;pcndcnt Dlrcaors: The Company has received necessary declaration from each 
Independent Director under section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, 
that he/she meets the criteria of independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Aa, 
2013. 

18) Directors' Respoosibility Statement: 

Pumiant to the requirements under Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to Directors' Rcspons.-biliiy 
Statement, it is hereby confirmed that: 

i. in the preparation of the annual accountS, the applicable accounting standards have been followed 
along with proper explanation relating 10 material departures, if any; 

ii. the Directors had selected such acrounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state 
of affairs of the Company at the end of financial year and of the profit of the Company for the year 
ended on the date; 
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iii. propo- and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other inegularities; 

iv. the annual financial statcmcn~ for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 have been prepared on a 
going COnttrll basis; 

v. proper internal financial ron1r0ls were in place and that the financial controls were adequate and 
were operating effectively. 

vi. proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

19) Number of Meetings of Board! 

During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Board met 5 (Five) times Le., (i) May 26, 2023 (ii) August 4, 
2023 (iii) November 8, 2023 (iv) February 6, 2024 and (v) March 29, 2024 The maximum interval 
between any two board meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. 

A$ requued under Section 134(3) oftbe Companies Act, 2013, and the rules framed thereunder, the 
composition and meetings of board of directors and other committee meetings were in line wilb the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, details of which alongwith 
composition, number of meetings of all other Board Committees meeting held during the year under 
review and attendance at the meetings are provided in the Report on Corporate Governance, forming 
a part of this Annual Report. 

20) Policy on Ditecton' Appointment and Remuneration: 

The policy of the Compa.oy on Directors' appaintment and remuneration, including aitcria for 
determining qualifications, positive anribuces, independence of a Director and other matters, as 
rcquued under sub-section (3) of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, is available on our website 
bnp;//rodium net/. There has been no change in the policy since the last financial year. We affirm 
that the remuneration paid to the Dirtctors is as per the terms laid OUt in the Nomination and 
Remuneration Policy of the Company. 

21) Annual Evaluation ofl>hecton, Committee & Board: 

The performance evaluation of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole, Committees 
thereof anil Chairman of the Company was carried out by Independent Directors. Pursuant to the 
provisions of the Act, the Nomination & Remuneration Comrnince (NRC) specified lhe manner of 
effective evaluation of the performance of the Board, its Committees and individual Directors. 
Further, pursuant to Schedule IV of the Act and Regulation 17(10) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the evaluation of Independent Directors was done 
by the Board of Directors, the directors who were subject to evaluation did not participate as 
prescnoed under Regulation 17(10) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 

The Company has received dedararions from each of the Independent Directors mnfirmiog that they 
meet the criteria of independence as provided in the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Discl0$\ll'CS Requuemcnts) Regulations, 2015. 

22) Extract of Annual Rclurn: 

Pursuant to section 92(3) read with Sec 134 (3) (a) of the Act, the Annual Return as on March 31, 
2024 is available on the Co.mpany's website on http://www.rodium.net/other-communication.btm). 
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23) Corporate Governance: 

As per lhe SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements), 2015, introduced pursuant to 
SEBI Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2015•16/013 dated September 2, 2015, which became 
effective &om December I, 2015 read with Regulation 15(2)(a) of SEBI {lilting Obliga.tions and 
Disclosures Requimnents), 2015, Regulation 27(2)(a) is applicable to only those listed entities having 
paid-up Equity Share capital exceeding Rs. 10 Crores and Net Worth exceeding Rs. 25 Cr<nes. In 
light of the same the Company has infonned BSE Limited regarding the non-applicability of 
Regulation 27(2)(a) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations 2015. 

Even though the provisions of corporate governance as entailed under the aforementioned SEBJ 
Regulation is not applicable, your Company has voluntarily complied with some of the criteria 
specified in Regulation 27 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, to the extent possible. 

A Rcpon on Corporate Governance as per the provisions of SEBI (ListiDg Obligations and 
Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 forms pan of this Annual Report. 

24) Vlgll Mecbanisrn / Whistle Blower Policy: 

Pursuant to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company bas a Vigil Mechanism/Whistle 
Blower to deal with instance of fraud and mismanagemeru. 

Under the Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower, the confidentiality of thooe reporting violation(s) is 
protected and they a.re not subject tO any diso-lminat0ry practices. 

The said Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower can be accessed at the following link: 
http:/ /www.rodjum.net/codes-policjes.html. 

25) Rodium.'s Code of Conduct for the Prevention of Insider Trading: 

The Insider Trading Policy of the Company covering code of practices and procedum for fair 
disclosures of unpublished price sensitive infoxmation and code of conduct for the prevention of 
insider trading is available on our website h[!p://www.rodium.net/codes-policies.btml. 

26) Risk Management 

The Company bas in place a process to infonn the Board about the risk assessment and mininuzation 
procedures. It has an appropriate risk management system in place for identification and assessment 
of risks, measures to mitigate them, and mechanisms for their proper and timely monitcring and 
repoiting. Presendy, Regulation 21 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 with respect to Risk Management Committee is not applicable to your Company. 

27) Particulars of Employees and Remunention: 

The ratio of remuneration of each d~r to the median employee's remuneration as per Section 
197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013. read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 forms a pan of the Board's Report - "Annexure 
B". 

28) Disc!= Under the Sexual Hanssment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prolu11ition and 
Redressal)Aa,2013: 

The Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints 
Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013. 
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The number of complaints received during the year 2023-2,024 and their status is given below: 

a. Number of complaints of sexual harassment received during the Nil 
year 

b. Number of complaints investigated during the y,ear Nil 

C. Number of complaints disposed- off during the year Nil 

d. Tora! no. of cases pending for mo.re than 90 day,s Nil 

e. No. of workshops or awareness programmes canied out Not Applicable 

f. Nature of action taken by the employer or district officer Not Applicable 

g. Number of complaints investigated during the year Nil 

h. Number of complaints disposed• off during the year Nil 

i. Total no. of cases pending for more than 90 days Nil 

j . No. of work.shops or awareness programmes carried out Not Applicable 

k. Nature of action taken by the employer or district officer Not Applicable 

29) II.dated Pa.rty Transactions: 

All the transactions/contracts/arrangements of the nature as specified in Section 188(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 entered by the Company during the year under review with related party(ies) 
are in ordinary course of business and on arm's lcl\gth amd are placed before the Audit Comminee 
and Board for review and approval. 

There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company with Promoters, 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict 
with the interest of the Company at large. 

The particulaxs of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) and 
applicable rules of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 is provided as "A.nnexure C" to this 
Annual Report and forms part of the Directors Report. 

30) Dematmallzation: 

Your Company's Equity Shares are available for dematerialization through National Securities 
Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited. As on Marth 31, 2024, 
32,21,095 Equity Shares, constituting 99.18% of the Equity Shares of your Company, were held in 
dematerialized form. 

31) Limn&: 

The Company's Equity Shares are presently listed with the BSE Limited under ~curity JD. 
RODIUM, Security Code-531822. 

32) Subsidiary Companies/LLP 's: 

Your Company is a partner in the following Subsidiary LLPs as of March 31, 2024: 
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i. "Rodium Housms LLP" (LLP Identification Number: AAO-9257) 
ii. "R.eadystage LLP" (LLP Identification Number: AAJ-7135) 

iii "81 .Estate LLP" (LLP Identification Number: AAJ-{)447) 
iv. "Fluid Realty LLP" (LLP ldeotification Number: AAO-9376). 
v. "Xperia Realty LLP" (I.LP Identification Number: AAO-9372) 

vi. "Rodium Digital Inc" (Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Radium Realty Limited) 

There have been no siBnificant operations in the any of the Subsidiary LLP above during the financial 
year 2023-2024. 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 129(3) and rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 of the Act, 
a statement containing the salient features of the financial statements of the Company's subsidiary in 
Form AOC-I is annexed herewith as "Annexure D". 

Assodate Companies: As of March 31, 2024, no company is an associate of the Company. 

Except provided herein, no other oompany became or -=eased to be a Subsidiary / Associate / Joint 
Venture company of the Company. 

33) Consolidated FilwlcW Statements: 

The audited financial statements of the Company are drawn up, both on standalone and consolidated 
basis, for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, in accordance with the requirements of the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (lod-AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Act, read wilh relevant rules and other accounting principles The Consolidated Financial Statements 
bave been prepared in accordance with Ind-AS and relevant provisions of the Act based on the 
financial statements received from subsidiaries LLPs. 

The financial statements of Subsidiary LLP's as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 are not 
attached along with the financial statements of the Company. Separate audited financial statement of 
each of the subsidiaries is placed on the website of the Company at web link 
http:// www.rodium.net/subsidiary-company.html. 

In terms of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'), the Financial statements and other 
documents of the Subsidiary Company are not required 10 be sent 10 the members of the Company. 
However, the financial ioformation of the Subsidiary Company is disclosed in the Annual Report 
wherever required. The Company will provide a copy of the Audited annual accounts in respect of its 
Subsidiary co any shareholder of tb.e Company who requests for it and the said Audited annual 
accounts will also be kept open for inspection at the Registered Office of your Company. 

34) Revision of Fmancial Stattmentll or Board's Rq,ort: 

There were no revisions of financial statements or Board's Report as per the provisions of Section 131 
of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. 

35) Intemal Financial Controls: 

The Internal Fmancial Controls with reference to financial statements as designed and implemented 
by the Company are adequate. During the year under review, no material or serious observation bas 
been received from the Statutory Auditors and the Internal Auditors of the Company on the 
inefficiency or inadequacy of such controls. 

36) lntemal Con1rol Systems: 
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Adequate internal control syste.ms commensurate with the nature of the Company's business and size 
and complexity of its operations are in place and have been operating satisfactorily. Intcmal control 
sysrcms comprising of policies and procedures are designed to ensure reliability of financial reporting, 
timely feedback on achievement of operational and strategic goals, compliance with policies, 
procedure, applicable Jaws and regulations. Intemal control systems are designed to ensure that all 
assets and resources are acquired economically, used efficiently and adequately protected. 

37) Mainte:oance of Cost Records u Specified by the Central Government under Sub-Stttion (1) of 
Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013: 

The Provisions for the maintenance of cost records for any of the products/services of the Company 
under sub-scd:ion (1) of section 148 of the Act and rules made thereunder as prescribed by the Central 
Government of India is not applicable 10 your Company. 

38) Dellllli in respect of frauds reported by auditors under sab-sectloo (12) of section 143 other than 
those which are reportable to the Central Gove.rmnent: 

No case of fraud was reported by the Company's Auditors during the year, pursuant to lhe provisions 
of Section 143(12) oflhe Companies Act, 2013. 

39) Conservation of energy, research aod devclopmnt, techn.ology absorption, foreign eubange 
earnings and outgo: 

The details of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo 
are as follows: 

A. Conservation of eD"'IJ' 

There are no such particulars of the Company which are reqwrcd to be given in terms of Section 
134(3Xm) read with Rule 8(3) of Chapter IX Rules of the Companies Ar.t, 2013 regarding 
conservation of energy. 

B. Research and Development (R&D) 

Expenditure on R& D for the year ended March 31, 2024 was NIL(previous year. NIL). 

C. Technology absorption 

There are no such particulars of the Company which are required to be given in tenns of Section 
134(3)(m) read with Rule 8(3) of Chapter IX Rules of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding technology 
aosorption. 

D. Foreign Exchange Earnings andExpcnditmes 

Total foreign exchange earnings & outgo for the current P.Y. 2023-2024 and previous P.Y.2022-2023 
wereNJL. 

40) Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report: Presently, the requirement of publishing 
Business Respo11S1oility and Sustainability Report (BRSR) ·under Regulation 34(2Xf) of SEBl (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 201S is not applicable 10 your Company. 

41) Unclaimed and Unpaid Dividends, and transfer of shares to !EPP: 

Members who have not yet received/claimed their dividcn,d entitlements are requested to contact the 
Company or the Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Com!Pany. 
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Pursuant lo Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Investor Education Protection 
Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 ("Rules''), all dividends 
remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period of 7 years and also the sbazes in respect of which the 
dividend bu not been claimed by the shareholders for 7 consecutive years or more are requittd to be 
transferred to Investor Education Protection Fund in accordance with lhe procedure presaibed in the 
Rules. 

Kindly refer section on Corporate Governance, under bead "Transfer of unpaid/ unclaimed amounts 
to Investor Education and Protection Fund" for the list of 11Dclaimed and unpaid dividends lying with 
the Company. 

42) Insolvency Proceedings 

There is no application made by the Company or any proceedings initiated against the Company 
under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) the during the year. 

43) V aloation for One-time settlement 

During the financial year 2023-24, no event has taken place that give rise to reporting of details w.r.t. 
difference berwecn amount of the valuation done at the time of onetime settlement and the valuation 
done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial InstiruJtions. 

44) Cautionary Statement: 

Certain Statements in this Annual Report describing the Company's objectives, proiectloos, 
estimates, expeaations or predictions may be "forward looking Statements" within the meaning of 
applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed 
or implied. Important factor that could make a difference to lhe Company's operations include raw 
material availability and its prices, regulatory hwdles in project approvals, changes in Government 
regulatio.ns, introduction of new acts, tax structure, economJc development of the counuy and other 
incidental factors. 

45) Aclmowlcd&ernenls: 

Your Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the co-operation and assistance 
received from shareholders, debenture holders, debenture lrUStccs, bankers, financial institutions, 
government authorities, regulatory bodies and other business constituents during the year under 
review. Your Directors also wish to place on record their dttp sense of appreciation for the 
commitment displayed by all executives, officers and staff. 

By order of the Board, 
For R.odium Realty Limited 

Sd/-
Deepak Chheda 
Manag!Qg Director 
(DIN: 00419447) 

Place: Muntbal 
Date: September 03, 2024 
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Whole-Time Diredor 
(DIN: 02716686) 
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FORM NO. MR-3 
SECRET ARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

For the financial year ended March 31, 2024 

[Pursuant t.o section 204(1) of the Companies Act; 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel)Rules, 2014] 

To, 
The Members, 
RODJUM REAL TY LIMITED 
CIN: L85110MH 1993PLC206012 

Dear Sir, 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory 
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Rodium Realty Limited 
(hereinafter called the "Company"). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner 
that provided meareasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information 
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the 
conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, 
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has 
proper Board-processes and compllance-mechanlsm in place to the extent, in the 
manner and subject to the reporting made hereina~er. 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by Rodium Realty Limited ("the Company") as given for the 
financial year ended on 31st March, 2024, according to the provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made 
thereunder; 

(iH) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct investment and 
External Commercial Borrowings; 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares 
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 
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(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 1992/ SBBI (Prohibition oflnsiderTradlng) Regulations, 2015; 

(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the Company during the 
Review Period) 

( d) The Secur ities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999. Now known as SEBI {Share 
based Employees Benefits] Regulation, 2014; (The Company has not 
Introduced any such scheme); 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt 
Securities) Regulations, 2008; (The Company has not issued any Debt 
Securities during the financial year under review); 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing 
with client; 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity S.hares) 
Regulations, 2009; (The Company has not dellsted/propose to dellst Its 
Equity Shares from any Stock Exchange during the financial year under 
review); 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of lndla (Buy Back of Securities) Regulations, 
1998/ The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) 
Regulations 2018; (The Company bas not bought back / propose to buy­
back any of Its securities during the financial year under review); 

(l) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 
Regulations, 2014; (Not applicable to the Company during the Review 
Period); 

0) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible 
and Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations,2013/ Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 
2021; (Not applicable to the Company during the Review Period); 

(k) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
requirement) Regulations, 2015; 

(vi) Other Laws specifically applicable to the Company during the relevant period ended 
March 31, 2024: 

1. The Indian Contract Act, 1872; 
2. The Transfer of Property Act, 1882; 
3. The Indian Registration Act, 1908; 
4. The Specific Relief Act, 1963; 
S. The Indian Stamps Act, 1899; 
6. The Rent Control Act; 
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7. The State Laws Governing the Real Estate; 
8. lncome Tax Act, 1961; 
9. The Co-operative Societies Act, 1912; 

10. The Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act.1970 
11. The Payment of Wages Act, 1936; 
12. The Minimum Wages Act, 1948; 
13. Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948 and; 
14. Maharashtra Ownership Flats (Regulation of the promotion of construction, sale, 

management and transfer) Act, 1963; 
15. Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016; 
16. Housing Board Act, 1965; 
17.Building and Other Construction Workers' (Regulation of Employment and 

Conditions of Services) Act, 1996. 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

i. Secretarial Standards in respect of Meeting of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General 
Meetings (SS-2) Issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries oflndia. 

ii. The Listing Agreement entered Into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange 
Limited (BSE) read with the SEBl (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulation, 2015. 

To the best of our knowledge and belief, during the period under review, the Company 
has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, 
etc. mentioned herein above subject to the following observations. 

We further report that, 

l.Durlng the year, Company hos received natlcefram BSE Limited stating violation ofSEBI 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 201S for dealing in shares during the closure 
of trading window. In response company has submitted clarlftcatlon to the BSE Limited 
on 29th January, 2024. 

2.Durig the year, company has delayed in submission of proceedings of Annual General 
Meeting {AGM) held during the reporting period. In response company has submitted 
clarification letter to BSE 1/mlted on 12th April, 2024. 

We further report that, The Board of Directors of the Company Is duly constituted with 
proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent 
Directors. There was no change in the composition of the Board of Directors that took 
place during the period under review. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings. agenda and 
notes on agenda were also provided to Directors for meaningful participation at the 
meeting. Decisions at the meetings of Board of Directors of the Company were carried 
through on the basis of majority. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes In the Company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards and guidelines. All the 
notices and orders received by the company pursuant to the abovementioned laws have 
been adequately dealt with/ duly replied/ complied with. 
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We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its officers and for 
systems and mechanism framed by the Company for Compliances under other Acts, 
Laws and Regulations applicable to the Company as Listed above. 

We further report that during the audit period company has co-operated with me and 
have produced before me all the required forms information, clarifications, returns and 
other documents as required for the purpose of our audiL 

Thanking you. 

Yours faithfully, 

Date: 03 September 2024 
Place: Mumbai 

For Kaushal Doshi & Associates, 
Practising Company Secretary 

Kaushal Doshi 
Proprietor 

FCS: F10609/COP No: 13143 
PR Number: 802/2020 

UDIN: F010609F0011 13502 

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-1 
and forms an integral part of this report. 
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ANNEXURE-1 
(Integral part of Secretarial Audit Report) 

To, 
The Members, 
RODIUM REAL TY LIMITED 
CIN: L85110MH 1993PLC206012 

Our report of even date Is to be read along with this letter ; 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial records Is the responsibility of the management of the 
company. Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on these secretarial records 
based on our audit 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of secretarial records. 
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we follow provide 
a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and 
books of accounts of the Company. 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the 
compliance oflaws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provision of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was 
limited to verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
company nor the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the Company. 

Dall:: 03 September 2024 
Place: Mumbai 
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For Kaushal Doshi & Associates, 
Practising Company Secretaries 

Kaushal Doshi 
Proprietor 

FCS: F10609/COP No: 13143 
PR Number: 802/2020 

UDIN: FOI0609F00l113502 
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~ ANNEXURE B 

Deltib pertaining to remuneration as n,qujnd under sm:ion 197(12) of the Compani"'I Act, 2013 
read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and RemUDcration of Managerial Personnel) 
ntl<JI, 2014 

I. The percentage increase of remUDeration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and 
Company Secretary during the financial year 2023-2024 ratio of the remUDeration of each 
Director to the median employees of the Company for tbc Financial Y car ended 2023-2024 and 
the comparison of remuneration of each Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) against the 
pmormancc of the Company are as UDdcr: 

Sr. Name ofDl.rector/KMP 11.emuncration/S % Ia.crease in Ratio of 
No and Designation itting fees of Rcmuncrlltion in Remuneration of 

Director/ KMP the F.Y. 2023-2024 each Director/to 
fortheF.Y. the median 
2023-2024 remuneration of 
(Rs. in Laich) employees 

I. Mr. Deepak Cbheda- 20.40 Nil 6.03 
(CMD) 

2. Mr. Harish Nisar- (WTD) 26.40 10.56 7.81 
3. Mr. Rohit Dedhia- (WTD) 12.60 Nil 3.72 
4. Mr. Vatsal Shah . Nil NA 

Independent Direct0r 
5. Mr. Yogesh Shah- . Nil NA 

Independent Director 
6. Mr. Sudhir Mehta• . Nil NA 

In.dependent Director 
7. Ms. Tcjal Mehta- . Nil NA 

Independent Director 
8. Mr. Rohan Cbheda 12.51 Nil 3.70 

Chief Financial Officer 
9. Ms. Srisbti Raghani 1.39 Nil NA 

Company Secretary 
(Resigned w.e.f 
13.07.2023) 

10. Ms. Jyoti Singh 3.60 Nil 1.06 
Company Secretary 
(Resigned w.c.f 
04.08.2023) 

2. In the financial year, there was an increase in the median remuneration of employee. 
3. Tberewere total 11 pennancnt employees on the payrolls of the Company as on March 31, 

2024. 
4. Relationship between average increase in remuneration and Company performance: - The 

Total Revenue of the Company has Decreased by 15 .11 ¾ during the current financial year as 
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compared to the previous year, the Profit Before Tax for the financial year ended March 31, 
2024 decreased by 56.13%. 

s. Comparison of Remuneration ofthc Key Managerial Pcrsonnel(s) against the performance of 
the Company: -

6 . ._ 

Mr. Decpak Mr. Rohit Mr. Mr. Ms. 
Cbheda Dedhla- Harish Rohan Srisbti 

Ni.sar- Cbhcda Ragbani 
Remuneration in 20.40 12.60 26.40 12.51 1.39 
FY 2023-2024 (Rs. 
in Laich) 
RO!VCOUC (Rs, in 2382.95 
Lakb) 

Remuneration of 0.86% 0.53% 1.11% 0.52% 0.06 
each KMP as of% 
of Total revenue 
Profit Before Tax 39.30 
(Rs. in Lalch) 

Remune-ration of 51.91% 32.82% 67.17% 31.83% 154% 
each KMP as a % 
ofPBT 

Average percentage increase made in the salar:les of employees other than managerial 
personnel in the last financial year i.e. 2023-2024 wu 7%. 

Ms. 
Jyoti 
Singh 
3.60 

0.15 

9.16% 

7. The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid Director to that of the Director or the 
employees who are not directors but receive remunention in excess of the highest paid director 
during the year- Not Applicable; and 

8. It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees. 

By order of the Board, 
For Rodium Realty Limited 

sd/-
Deepak Chheda 
Cbalmwi & Managing Dittctor 
(DIN: 00419447) 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: September 03, 2024 
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Whole• Time Director 
(DIN: 02716686) 
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' I 

~ ANNEXURE C 
Form No. AOC-2 

As on the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Riules, 2014) 

Fonn for duclosure of particulffl of contraru/anangem.ents entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sul>-section (I) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including cenain ann's 
length transactions under third proviso thereto. 

I. Details of contracts or lllftlllemellls or lnnsaetlons not at Applicability 
um'• length basis 

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship 
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions 
(c) Duration of the contracts/ arrangcments/traruactions 
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or tn.nsactions 
including the value, if any Not applicable 
(e) 1ustification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or 
transactions 
(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board 
(g) Amount paid as advanoes, if any 
(h) Date on which the sp,ciaJ resolution was passed in general 
mcetin• u -nuired under first oroviso to section 188 

2. Detaill of cootnm or arrangements or transactions at arm's length t;uls 

Name(s) of Natuff of Duralion of the Salient terms of Date(s) of Amount 
the related contracts/ contracts/ the conlncis or approval by paid as 
puty and an-Ulgemmts/ an-angements/ arrangements or 

1 

the Board, adYances, 
natuff of lnruactions transactions transactions if any: if a.ay: 
relationship incloding the 

.. 1ue(Jn 
ruoees), if any: 

Mr. Prerak Service/ 25/05/2015- Consultancy 25/05/2015 Nil.. 
Oedhia Material Ongoing fees regarding 

Purchased financial 
Relative of matterS. 
KMP 

Rs. NIL 
Mrs.Krupa Service/ 01/04/20 I 0- Allan 07/07/2010 NIL 
Cbbcda MatfflAI Ongoing Architectural/ 

Porcbased Design 
Relative of Consultant of 
KMP lhe Company 

Rs.NIL 
Ws.CNA Service/ 26/03/2010 Architects 
Archit~ Material Ongoing consultancy ND., 

Purchased Fees 
Entities in Rs.5,00,000/-
which 
Ducctors are 
Interested 
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M/s.RDH Service/ 
ln&aspaces Material 

Purchased 
Entities in 
which 
DiJcctors are 
In.retested 
Mr. Rohan Related party 
Cbbeda appointed to 

office or place 
Relative of of profit in the 
KMP comnanv 
Mr. Dttpak Leasing of 
Chheda property 

K.MPofthe 
Com""nv 
Mr. Huish Leasing of 
N"uar property 

KMP ofthe 
Comnanv 
Mr. Robit Leasing of 
Dedhia property 

KMPofthe 
Comn•nv 

Mr. Mebul Leasing of 
Nisar property 

Relative of 
KMP 
Mis. Sigma Leasing of 
Fiscals Private property 
Limited 
Entity in 
which director 
is Interested 

By order of the Board of Directors, 
For Rodium Rulty Limited 

Sd/-
Deepalt Chheda 
Managing T)l.reaor 
(DIN: 00419447) 

Plue: Mumbai 
Date: September 03, 2024 
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30/ 03/2010-
Ongoing 

14/ 11/2018 • 
Ongoing 

I. 20/08/2010-
Ongoing 
2. 21/07/2015 -
Ongoing 

21/07/2015 -
Ongoing 

21/07/2015 -
Ongoing 

21 / 07/ 2015 -
Ongoing 

1.20/08/2010-
Ongoing 
2. 21/07/2015 -
Ongoing 

L abour Contract 29/03/2010 
Fees 

Rs. 10,00,000/-

AsCFO 14/11/2018 
remuneration 

Rs.12,51 ,250/-

Leave and 10/04/2010 
L icense 

10/05/2011 
Rs. 3,60,000/-

Leave and 10/05/2011 
License 

Rs. 1,20,000/ -

Leave and 10/05/2011 
License 

Rs.2,40,000/ -

Leave and 10/05/ 2011 
License 

Rs.1,20,000/-

iLeave and 10/04/2010 
License 

10/05/2011 
!Rs. 3,60,000/ -

Sd/-
R.ohit Dedhia 
Whole-Tlme Director 
(DIN: 02716686) 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 
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~ ANNEXURED 

Form AOC-I 

Statement containing salient features of the financiam statement of subsidwies/associate 
companies/Joint Yen.tu.res 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule S of Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014) 

:eui "6" i SllMidl1d£1 
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented) 

Amounts r,pre,mted are in Jo. lAJths) 

Sr. Particulan DetailJ DetailJ Details Detail.I Dctuls Detaila 
No 

I. Name of Rodium 81 Estates Ready Fluid Realty Xperia Rodium 
the Ho11SingLLP LLP StageLLP LLP Realty LLP Digital Inc 
subsidiary 

2. Reporting Same as Same as Same as Samcas Same as 01• January 
period for Holding Holding Holding Holding Holding to 31" 
the Company Company Company Company Company December 
subsidiary 
concerned, 
if different 
from the 
holding 
company's 
reporting 
period 

3. Reporting NA NA NA NA NA USO 
currency 
and 83.3739 
Exchange 
rate as on 
the last 
date oftbe 
relevant 
Financial 
year in the 
case of 
foreign 
subsidiarie 
s 

4. Share 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 83.37 
capital 

5. Reserves & Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 34.24 
surplus 

6. Total 808.95 43.84 8.04 1,198.97 1.01 117.81 
assets 

7. Total 1,431.28 14.95 0.10 2,092.77 
Liabilities 
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8. lnve$1ment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 
s 

9. Turnover Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 
10. Profit/Los 248.60 (0.00) (0.01) 261.74 34.24 

s before 
raxation 

11. Provision 104.13 91.64 
for 
raxation 

12. Profit/Los 144.47 (0.00) (0.01) 170.10 34.24 
s after 
raxation 

13. Proposed NA NA NA NA NA NA 
Dividend 

14. %of 75% 75% 75% 75% 99% 100% 
shareholdi 
ng 
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Management Discussion & Analysis Report 
Financial Year 2023-24 was yet another good year for the Indian economy. Not only did India reflect 
remarkable stability of its banking and financial systems amidst strong global headwinds, its growth 
accelerated from 7% in FY 2022-23 to 7 .6% FY 2023-24. It continues to be a global bright spot. 
According to the RBI, GDP growth is expected to remain strong at 7.0% in FY 2024-25, despite 
downside risks emanating from geopolitical shocks in Middle East, risk of fresh inflation spikes due 
to Red Sea disruptions and poor external sector demand if the global recovery remains weak. India's 
real estate sector is currently on an up-cycle, with strong demand and offiake in the residential 
segment despite firm interest rates. The industry has been able to pass on increase in costs through 
suitable price hikes. Toe industrial segment is also seeing robust demand coming from both domestic 
and international businesses. 

Mumbai's real estate market has been a key player in India's property sector, showing strong activity 
and growth. As we head into 2024, the market is expected to keep expanding. The Mumbai 
Metropolitan Region (MMR) has seen a significant 20.4% increase in property sales for FY24, even 
though new property launches dropped by 3.5%. Over the past few years, residential prices in MMR 
have grown at an average rate of 7. 7% annually, with the premium segment seeing steady demand. 

As Developers are adjusting to new market realities, and factors like Mumbai's growing population, 
its role as a major commercial hub, and government initiatives for and infrastrucrure development are 
driving this recovery. 

''Bwye,J By Major I,rfrastructure Dtvtfopmmts and Rw,rging Demand for Homes, The Dnmlry's 
Residential Real Estate Market ls Set for A,wther Y,ar of Healthy G,owtl,." 

... 
r 

---- · i[l.:·1j_... __ _ 
For the fiscal year 2024-25, the Government of India has significantly increased its capital 
expenditure on infrastructure to U I, 11,111 crore, which represents 3.4% of the country's GDP. This 
boost highlights the government's strong focus on enhancing infrastrucrure facilities. The construction 
sector, including infrastructure and real estate development, plays a crucial role in the economy, being 
the second-largest employment generator with extensive linkages across various industries. Over the 
past decade, the sector's output has grown at an annual rate of 11 %, and it now contributes 18% to 
the overall economy. 
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Looking ahead, India's real estate sector is projected to expand its output to USO 1.3 trillion by 2034, 
up from the current USO 650 billion. This growth is primarily driven by increased residential 
demand, alongside developments in commercial, retail, hospitality, and warehousing sectors, which 
are all responding to the needs of the growing p0pulation. 

Kandivali, Mumbai: Residential Trend 

Kandivali, located in westem subw-bs of Mumbai, is one of the most preferred residential areas in the 
city. It is a well-established neighbourhood that is weU-connected to other parts of Mumbai, making it 
favourable location for homebuyers and investors alike. It is an upcoming residential location that is 
experiencing significant growth in terms of housing development. There is a high demand for both 
affordable and premium residential properties in Kandivali, making it a prime location for real estate 
investment. According to 2024 projections, Kandivali is expected to continue experiencing growth in 
the housing market due to its strategic location and infrastructure development. 

Self-redevelopment initiatives could lead to a more 51JStainable and equitable housing market, 
benefitting both residents and the broader community. Keeping in mind the factors of redevelopment, 
Your Company has successfully launched the following redevelopment projects. 

X'heigbts - World of Delight, Radium will launch X'heights, an iconic 42-storey skyscraper that 
will encapsulate the epitome of modem living. X'heights wiU feature a blend of exquisite design and 
premium firushes, establishing itself as a true symbol of opulence. Every comer will reflect 
meticulous attention to detail and an unwavering comntitrnent to quality, promising a lifestyle that 
will be as luxurious as it is comfortable. For. those who will seek a harmonious blend of luxury, 
comfort, and modernity, X'heights will be the ultimate destination 

" X'one - Luxury Like None" in Kandivali. It bas continued to Strive 10 create comfortable yet 
affordable spaces for the families of the city. This project is nestled in the prime location of Kandivali 
(West), standing as a masterpiece of architectural ingenuity, a blend of luxury and practicality, where 
every detail has been meticulously crafted to exceed customer's expectations. It is set against the 
backdrop of the serene Shankar Mandir and Jain Derashar. This project enjoys a unique blend of 
spiritual tranquillity and urban convenience. This is not j ust home; it's a statement of your refined 
taste and aspirations. 

I Annual Report 2023-2024 

Another 
project 

landmark 

"Xenus - Where Life 
Resides" and 

''Xlin.e - Redefining 
K.andivali's Skyline". 

are completed and 
obtaining Occupation 
is in process. 

However, 
procedure 
without its 

the 
is not 

hassles. 
Residents across the 
nation, where 
redevelopment is 
rampant arc facing 
issues because of 
delayed deliveries. But 
your Company 
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understands that redevelopment bas a massive role to play in imp.roving the quality of people's lives 
and evcntually the city's standard of living. 

We believe new and existing projects results into strong balance sheets and the projects are poised to 
grow faster, given the limited period of opport11ni1y to contract projCC13 at low cosis and their pace of 
growth depends on the sua:css of the existing projects (cash flows), ability to grow (balance sheets), 
intent (growth track records), execution skills and pricing flexibilities. 

OPPQRJVNITP3S: 

• Housing Demand 

The pandemic has nudged a 101 of fence-sitters to convert into fust-time home buyers and 
existing ones 10 upgrade to larger homes by re-establishing the security that homeownership 
offers, resulting in rising housing demand aaoss segments. An expected economic recovery 
along with the belief of housing prices botto.ming out amongst consumers and rising income 
levels arc some of the factors which will drive the housing demand going ahead. Hybrid 
working models will also continue to drive demand for la,ger homes. Emplayers are expected 
to continue 10 offer flexi"bility to their employees in order to attract and retain talent. 

• AtfordabJc Hmyjy 

Affordable housing continues 10 remain a significant opportunity for developers and key 

focus area of the government. While the tax benefit for first-time homebuyers and we holiday 
for developers in affordable housing segment was rolled back in Budget 2022, we believe it 
will not deter homebuyer's decision of purchasing homes and demand will continue to be 
strong in affordable housing segment. 

TI:JJIEA'TS AND CHALLENGES: 

• Shortav 9£ T-ehw and I«booton 
Being the seoond largest employer in the country, the construction sector is heawy dependent 
on manual labow: During the pandemic, the sector was badly bit due 10 labour availability 
issues which affected the project complttion timelines. Hence, there is a need for 
development of technologically less labour-intensive alternative methods of construction. 

• Regulatory Hgrdlq 

Real estate sector is a highly regulared sector and any unfavourable changes in government 
policies and the regulato.ry environment can adversely impact the performance of the sector. 
There are substantial procedural delays with regards to land acquisition, land use, project 
launches and construction approvals. Retrospective policy changes and regulatory bottlenecks 
may impact profi12bility and affect the ar:tnctivencss of the sector and companies operating 
within the secror. 

• Moomn Tightening and FPodin1 Wlln 

There has been a contrasting trend in real estate lending over the past few years wherein 
reputed, low leveraged developers conlinued to enjoy easy access to liquidity as the lenders 
remained selective and weaker developers struggled with limited souices of capital. Real 
estate sector performance is closely linked to economic recovery and its monetary policies. 
The Reserve Bank of India has so far maintained accommodative stance. Going ahead, we 
expect to see monetary policy remain tight and gradually ease as the central bank tries to 
support the economic recovery and also balance inflation. 
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OUTLOOK; 

FY2023-24 was a landmaxk year for the real estate sector. Post-pandemic, developers have moved 
away from the traditional way of doing business and rightly focused on end-user customer demand 
with a strong focus on innovation and digital transformation. We believe FY2024- 25 will continue 
the healthy sales momentum backed by solid structural foundation, sustained demand. 

COMPLETED PROJECTS 

"X'CZAR" - Residences that will make you proud 

Structurally grandiose and majestic, X'czar will undoubtedly 
be the envy of the quaint neighbourhood of J. V.P.D. A 
residential space which will be a symbol of magnificence at 
its best Serving you with the most stupendous and dazzling 
of services and offerings that you would only have dreamt of. 
Setting high standards of living, enjoying life to the peak and 
lavish living at its best, are some of the things that X'czar 
stands for. 

"X'trium" - A Symphony ofEle ance and Class 

CRISIL 5-Star Rated Commercial Development located on the 
commercial artery. With a passion for achieving supremacy, 
X'trium promises ergonomically designed spaces with word­
class infrastructure to house Commercial offices, Banquet halls 
and Residential hotels. Every floor at these eco-techno environs 
is meticulously planned making them not just commercial 
spaces but refreshing surrounds. 

"X'cube" - Integrating eminence and efficiency 

CRlSIL 5-Star Rated Commercial Development located in 
Andheri (West), X'cube offers exotic spaces catering to the 
needs of restaurants, showrooms, office exhibition areas & 
customizing to the needs of MNCs, COrporate houses, 
Professionals & Exhibitors. An advance and unmarked 
rendition. The structure has been made environmentally 
sensitive by emphasizing on the conservation of natural 
resources. X'cube successfully makes a bold visual 
statement. 
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"X'point" Reside relax reiuvenate 

In the perspective of creating & designing spaces, for every 
owner to love, to be proud of and be happy to live in. With 
such expectations we create, one after another, exclusive and 
unique living spaces here by introducing X-POINT. The 
Project is a mix of retail spaces and residences that comes 
along with a rare vision to transcend the expectations of 
occupant. Arriving at the site one is first greeted with a truly 
elegant double height lobby forming a welcoming gesture, 
this is a place to come home to. 

ONGOING PROJECTS 

"X'enos" - Where life resides 

X'enus by Rodium is not just an ordinary block - on - block 
building. It is a beautiful space that is designed keeping your 
needs and goals in mind X'enus personifies the best 
experience of affluent lifestyle replete with unparalleled 
conveniences. With all the luxuries and amenities of 5 stars 
to the basic housing needs, we've prepared a breath - taking 
space that you will be proud to call your home. 

"X'Line" - Redefining Kandivali's Skyline 

After the success of Rodium X'point, we are developing 
another iconic landmark to redefine the skyline of Kandivali. 
Located in the bustling suburbs of Kandivali West, Rodium 
Xline offers you a lifestyle most people can only dream of. We 
are creating a project that has thoughtfully designed homes and 
delightful amenities. At Rodium XJine, we intend to deliver 
another successful project and develop another iconic landmark 
in K.andivali. 
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"X'One" - Luxury Like None 

The Rodium Xone Project, nestled in the prime local 
of Kandi.vali West, stands as a masterpiece of 
architectural ingenuity, a blend of luxury and 
practicality, where every detail has been 
meticulously crafted to exceed your expectations. Set 
against the backdrop of the serene Shankar Mandir 
and Jain Derashar, the project enjoys a unique blend 
of spiritual tranquillity and urban convenience. This 
is not just a home; it's a statement of your refined 
taste and aspirations. 

UPCOMING PROJECTS 

"X'heights" - World of Delight 

Rodium will be presenting X'heightS, an iconic 42-
storey skyscraper that will encapsulate the epitome of 
modern living. X'heights will feature a blend of 
exquisite design and premium finishes, establishing 
itself as a true symbol of opulence. Every comer will 
reflect meticulous attention to detail and an unwavering 
commitment to quality, promising a lifestyle that will be 
as luxurious as it is comfortable. For those who will 
seek a harmonious blend of luxury, comfort, and 
modernity, X'heights will be the ultimate destination. 

"X'meadows" - Smart homes for smart living 

Your Company is also seeking the opportunities in 
MMR. Region-the largest market for sales of 
residential units in the country. Your Company is 
exploring opportunity to develop smart homes for 
smart living concept in MMR. region. 
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY; 

Rodiurn Realty Limited has a well-established internal control system to manage business operations, 
financial reporting and other compliaJlce nttds. The business performance vis-A-vis plan is monitored 
periomcaJ!y, and regular intcmal audi.ts are performed to ensure sustenance of the intcmal control 
systems. 

The Company bas a robust and well embedded Internal Control systems in plane, adequate for the 
size of the Company and the nature of its business. The Primary function of our intcmal control 
systems is 10 ensure efficiency in business operations, safeguarding of Company's assets, adherence to 
policies and proC<edurcs, protecting and detecting errors and frauds, compliance with applicable laws 
and ensuring the reliability of financial statements and reporting. This provided assurances to the 
Audit Committee regarding tbe adequacy and efficacy of internal controls, advises management on 
the changing risks that matter and is aligned with the business objectives. 

ProgttSS to plan and key findings are reviewed by the Audit Committee eacb quarter. Further, the 
Audit Committee also monitors the status of managcrn"'1I actions following the intemal audit 
reviews. 

RISKS AND CQNCRJIN; 

• Statvtoa Appmyais; 

The real estate sector in India ls heavily regulated by the centtal, state and local governments. 
Real estate developers arc required to comply with a mnnber of laws and regulations, 
including policies and procedures established and implemented by local authorities in 
relation to land acquisition, transfer of property, registration and use of land.. These laws 
often vary from state to state. Several of your Company's projects are in preliminary staBes of 
planning and any delay in obtaining approvals could warrant revised scheduling of project 
timelincs. 

• Industry Cyrlicat;ty 

The real estate market Is inherently a cydical marlcct and is affected by macroeconomic 
conditions, changes in applicable governmental schemes, changes in supply and demand for 
projects, availability of consumer financing and illiquidity. However, any future significant 
downturn in the industry and the overall investment dimate may adversely impact business. 

• Oirnatc: Cbeorr· 
The sector Is already experiencing shifts due to climate change, the intensity of which is 
expected to increase over the coming years. The chaJlcngcs or risks can be broadly classified 
into two categories, physical and transitional. The former is on account of acute and chronic 
physical effects of climate change such as damage to infrastructure at construction sites or 
building projects, damages to logistics routes, reduced efficiency of workforce due to 
heatwaves, etc. 

Sneral management and leadership team members including Board of Directors periodically review 
the risk management policies and systems to incorporate any changes in the risk pro6Je due to 
changes in the external environment and strategic priorities. The Board of Diiecto,s and the Audit 
Committee of the Manager ls assisted by internal audit team in monitoring the risk profile and 
effectiveness of mitigation plans to manage the identified business risks. The major risks identified by 
the businesses and functions arc systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing 
basis. 
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DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE: 

The financial oy,:rview comprises of reveOlle primarily from sale of completed property and 
proportionate =uc of property under development. 

StaJ)daJoa• finapcjal Results of Rodium Realty LiroilC4 

Partiatlan 
INCOME AND GAINS 
Revenue from operations 
Other Income 
Total Income 

Cost of Construetion & Development 
Cost of Finished Uniis 
Changes in inventories of Finished Goods, Stock -in­
trade and Work -in- progress 
Employee Benefit Expenses 
Finance Cosis 
Depreciation and Amortisation CXJJfflSe 
Other Expenses 
Total Erpeme 
Profit/ (Loss) Before Tu 

-Deferred Tax 
-Earlier year adjustmenis 
Total Tu Eq,eme 
Profit/ (Lou) For the Year 

Iiems that will not be reclassifi~t\ to profit and loss 

FY 2023-2024 

1,981.10 
401.8S 

2,Jll2.9S 

79S.3S 
160.00 
906.01 

36.12 
216.91 
10.07 
219.19 

2,343.65 
39.3-0 

(34.71) 
54.72 
20.01 
19.29 

-Remeasurement of defined benefit plam 5.70 
-Income tax relating to items that will not be (1.43) 
reclassified to Profit or Loss 
Total Other Comptthensm Income for tu year, Net 4.27 
of Tu: 
Total Other Comprdlensive Income/ (Loss) for the 23.56 
year 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

FY 2022-2023 

2,373.00 
434.16 
2,807.16 

11093.3S 
170.00 
996.41 

52.3S 
173.36 
s.n 
223.34 
2,717.58 
89.58 

27.34 
(0.52) 
26.82 
62.76 

3.22 
(0.81) 

2.41 

65.17 

These Separate financial statements (also known as Standalone Financial Statemenis) have been 
prepared in accordance with IND AS as presaibed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 201S and subsequent 
amendmenis thereto. 

Consolidated FjnantjaJ Results of Rodium Rplty Limited 

Particulars FY 2023-2024 FY 2022-2023 
INCOME AND GAINS 
Revenue from operations 4,755.04 4,205.63 
Other Income 137.73 233.28 
Total Income 4,892.77 4,438.91 
EXPENSE AND LOSSES 
Cost of Construction & Development 4,100.73 2,606.04 
Cost of Finished Units 160.00 170.00 

I Annual Report 2023-2024 55 



RODWM REALTY LIMITED------------

Changes in inventories of Finished Goods, Stoclc -in­
ttade and Work -in- progress 
Employee &oefit Expenses 
Finance Cost> 
Depreciation and Amortisation expense 
Other Expenses 
Total ,Expense 
Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax 
TAX EXPENSE 
-Cum:ntTax 
-Deferred Tax 
-Earlier year adjustments 
Total Tax E.llPC'JIK 
Profit/ (Loss) For the Year 
OTBER. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
l b:ms that will not be reclassified to profit and loss 

(248.63) 
46.00 
216.91 
10.30 
259.S3 
4,544.84 
347.93 

178.98 
(34.60) 
71.41 
215.79 

132.14 

-Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 5. 70 
-Income tax relating to items that will not be (1.43) 
reclassified to Profit or Loss 
Total Other Comprchcnsivc lna>me for the year, Net 4.27 
ofTu 
Total Other Com~ Income/ (l.oss) for the 136.41 
yeax 

953.37 

S2.3S 
173.36 
8.77 
23S.71 
4 199.60 
239.31 

123.46 
27.37 
(0.47) 
150.36 
88.95 

3.22 
(0.81) 

2.41 

91.36 

The consolidated financial statemenlS comprise the financial statemen\$ of the Holding Compw.y 
w.d its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2024. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has 
rights, 10 variable returns from ilS involvement with the invatec and has the ability 10 affect those 
returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, _the Group controls an invatee if and only if 
the Group has: 

• Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability 10 direct the relevant 
activities of the investee) 
• Exposure, or rights, 10 variable returns from its involvement wilh the investee, and 
• The ability 10 use ilS power over the in=tce to affect ilS rerums 

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To SuPJ)Ort this 
presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voling or similar rights of an 
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power 
over an investee, including: 
• The coruracrual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee 
• Rights arising from other contractual arrangements 
• The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights 

• The size of lhc group's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of 
the other voling rights holders 

The Group re-assesses whether or not it oonttol.< an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that 
there arc changes to one or more of the three elements of control Consolidation of a subsidiary 
begins when the Group obtains conttol over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control 
of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, inoome and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of 
during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains 
control until the date the Group ceases 10 control the subsidiary. 
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Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions 
and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses accounting policies other 
than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar 
circumstances, appropriate adjustments, if material, are made to !bat group member's financial 
statements in preparing the consolidated 6nancia! statements to ensure confomtlty with the group's 
accounting policies, 

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up 10 same 
reporting date as th.at of the Holding Company, i.e., year ended on 31 March. 

DETAIT S OF SIGNlFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS & RETURN ON 
NETWOR.TH; 

Particulars FY2023-2024 FY 2022--2023 %Change Remarb for variance 
more than 25% 

Debtors Turnover 1.83 2.11 (13.33%) % Increase in revenue 
for the 

Invcnto!)'. Turnover 0.44 0.44 (1.19) o/o Not Applicable 
Debt Service Coverage 0,23 0.16 43.75% Increase in Earning 
Ratio for Debt Service 
Current Ratio 1.14 1.33 {14.39)% Not a~licable 
Debt Bciui!X Ratio S.81 6.13 {·S.14} % Not •~licable 
Net capital turnover Ratio 1.68 1.03 62.77% Reduction in 

Worlcin11 Caeital 
Net Profit Margin(%) 0.97% 2.64% (63.25) % Increase in profit 

durinJI me :t.= 
Return on Net worth (¾) 11.40% 26.00% (S6.1S)¾ Increase in profit 

during the year 

DISCLQSURE OF ACmUNTING TREATMENT: 

Your Company has followed all the relevant Accounting Standards while preparing the financial 
statemenlS. The Financial Statements have been prepared on historical oost basis considering the 
applicable provisions of Companies Act 2013 except the following material items that have been 
measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind AS. Nevertheless, historical oost is generally based 
at the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. 

DISCI,AIMEll; 

The Company shall be registering its forthcoming projects at an appropriate time in the applicable 
jurisdictions I Slates under the Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016 (RERA) and 
Rules thereunder. Till such time, the forthooming projects, none of the imi1ges, material, projections, 
details, descriptions and other information thar are mentioned in the Annual Report for the FY 2023 
2024, should be deemed to be or constitute advertisements, solicitations, marketing, offer for sale, 
invitation to offer, or invitation to acquire within the purview of the RERA. 

The Company uses carpet areas u per R.ERA in its customer communication. However, the data in 
saleable area terms bas been presented in the Annual Report for the FY 2023-2024 to enable 
oontinuity of information to investors and sb.all not be construed to be of any relevance to home 
buyers / customers. 
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as 'SEBI Listing Regulations'), 
the Company presents the Report on Corporate Governance for the Financial year ended 31st March, 
2024 containing the matters detailed in the said Regulations with respect to Corporate Governance 
requirements. 

COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY: 

Toe philosophy of the Company in relation to Corporate Governance is to ensure transparency in all 
its operations, make disclosures and enhance shareholders value without compromising in any way in 
complying with the laws and regulations. Maintaining high standards of Corporate Governance has 
been fundamental to the business of your Company since its inception. Toe Company has committed 
itself to the philosophy of good Corporate Governance in all its dealings, utmost integrity in its 
conduct and in compliance with the highest standards of oorporate values and ethics. 

Toe Company believes in maintaining high standards of quality and ethical conduct with 
transparency and accountability in business functioning and operations. The Company recognizes 
that the shareholders are ultimately the persons who are catalyst to the economic activities and also 
the ultimate beneficiaries thereof. 

The compliance with the corporate governance provisions as specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and 
clause clauses (b) to (i) of sul>-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para-C, D and E of Schedule V is 
not applicable to your Company as the Company does not satisfy the applicability criteria as given 
under Regulation 15 of SEBl (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements} Regulations, 2015 
(Listing Regulations). However, your company believes in maintaining the highest standards of 
Corporate Governance, and hence your Company has voluntarily complied with some of the criteria 

as specified in Regulation 27 SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements} Regulations, 
2015, to the extent possible. A repon on these is detailed below. 
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BOARD OF DIRECTO RS AND ITS COMMI'JTEES 
l. COMPOSmON AND CATEGORY OF DIRECTORS/ ATI'l!NDANCE AT MEETINGS/ 

DIRECTORSJilPS AND COMMlTl'EE MEMIBERSHIPS IN OTHER COMPANIES 
/NAMES OF LISTED ENTITIES AND CATEGORY OF DIRECTORS AS ON MARCH 
3 1, 2024: 

Tbe Soard of the Company bas an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive 
Directors with majority of the Board Members comprising Independent Directors. The 
composition of board is in conformity with the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") and SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Rcg,ulations, 2015 ("LODR."). The Board 
composition along with their attendance during the year and number of other directorships in 
other companies and memberships of !he Committees of the Board of such Companies as on 
March 31 , 2024 are given below. 

Dlrectorships(A)/Mandatory 
Name Category Attendana, Commltttt(J3) Membcnhips 

Chair-
No.of mansbip 
board Mem- s 
meetin Director• Director• bershlp of 
gs held N o.of Last 11hip in ship in of man- man-
during board AOM public private datory dato,:y 
the meetings atten oeompanl companl commit conunitt 
year attended dana, a'"' Cl tees ees Cl> 

Mr. Decpak 
Chheda Executive 
(Chairman & Director- s s Yes I 2 . . 
Mana,ging Promoter 
Director) 
Mr.Harish 

Executive 
Nisar 

Director- s 5 Yes I . . . 
(Who.le-Time 

Promoter 
Director) 
Mr. Rohit 

Executive 
Dedhia 
(Whole-Time 

Director- 5 s Yes I . . . 

Promoter 
Director) 
Mr. Yogesh 

Non-
Shah 
(Independent 

Executive 5 s No I . 1 2 
Director 

Director) 
Mr. Vatsal 

Non• 
Shah 
(Independent 

Executive 5 2 Yes I . 1 . 

Director 
Director) 
Mr. Sudbir 

Non-
Mehta 
(Independent 

Executive s 4 Yes I I 1 . 
Director 

Director) 
Mrs. Tejal 

Non-
Mehta 

Executive s s Yes I I I -
(Independent 

Director 
Directors) 
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(A)- Including Rodium &a//y Limited 

(B)- Committea crmsidn-ed are Audil Commilta, NominalitNI and Rmiunmmon committee and St4kdwldm 
Relaliomhip Committee inchlding that of Rodium Realty Limited. 

• None of the Director.. are disqualified undeir Section 164(2) and Section 184(1) of the 
Act; 

• All the Directors have provided timely disclosures and declaration as per the 
requirements of the SEBI (Listing Ob-ligation and Disdosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 201S, Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015, SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
201 I and other relevant Jaws; 

• None of the Directors bold office in more than 10 public companies Section 165(1) of 
the Act; 

• None of the Directors are Directors in more than seven (7) Listed Companies; 

• None of the Indepeodent Directors serve as an Independent Director in more than 7 
(Seven) Listed Companies; 

• The Managing Director is not serving as am Independent Director in any 0th.er listed 
company; 

• None of the Directors are member in more than ten (10) committees or acts as 
chairperson in more than 5 (Five) Committees (ColWWttCCS being Audit Committee and 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee as per Regulation 26(1) of the SEBI Listi.og 
Regulations), across all public companies in which he/she is a Director. The necessary 
disclosures regarding committee positions have been made by all the Directon; 

• the Independent Directors' Databank maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate 
Affairs ('IICA'). 

• The Independent Directon of the Company are in compliance with the provisions of 
Regulation 16(l)(b) of the Listi.og Regulations. In opinion of Board, the Indepmdent 
Directors fullill the conditions speci6ed in Listing Regulation and are independent of the 
management, 

a) No. of Board Meetings and dates of Board Meetings: 

During the Financial Year 2023-2024, the Board met 5 (Five) times i.e., on (i) May 26, 2023 (ii) 
August 04, 2023 (iii) November 08,2023 (iv) February 06,2024 and (v) March 29, 2024 
respectively. 

The gap between two Meeting,$ did not exceed 120 days. The necessary quorum was present for 
all the Board Meetings. 

The Chief Financial Officer of the Company induding the representatives of Internal Auditor and 
Statutory Auditor are invited to anend the Board Meetings so as to provide additional inputs on 
the items being discussed by the Board. 

b) Separate Meeting ofindepend.eot Diffctors: 

A separate meeti.og of lndepeodeot Directors was held on March 29, 2024, which was attended 
by the Independent Directors· Mr. Yogesh Shah, Mr. Sudhir Mehta, Mr. Vatsal Shah and Mrs. 
Tejal Mehta. 

The Independent Directors Separate Meeting was held to -

i. review the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole; 

ii. review the performance of the Chairperson of the Company, considering the views of 
Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors; 
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iii. Assess the quality, quantity, and timeliness of Bow of infonnation between the 
Company's management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and 
reasonably perfonn their duties. 

None of the Executive Directors, Memben of the management or Key Managerial Personnel 
(except Company Secretary) were present for this meeting. 

The Company is availing an exemption under Regulation 15(2) SEBT (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for conducting Familiarization Programme for 
Independent Directors. 

None of the Independent Directors has any pecunjary relationship, transaction or association 
with the Company, which adversely affect their independence. 

2. PROCEDURE OF BOARD/ COMMI'ITEE MEETING AND CORE COMPETENCIES: 

The agenda papers with relevant notes and material documents relating to matters for perusal of 
the Board/ Committee are circulared in advance, so as to facilitate discussion and informed 
decision-making in the meeting. 

The routine business brought to the relevant meetings include, inter alia, the following; 

• Annual business plans, budgets and strategy. 
• Quarterly results and update on operations. 
• Financial results for the relevant period along with limited review/ audit report thereon. 
• Oversight of the performance of the business. 
• Minutes of various committee meetings of the Company and minutes of board meetings of 

subsidiary companies. 
• Review of commentS or suggestions given by Internal Auditors. 

The following is the list of core skills /expertise/ competencies identified by the Board of 
Directors required in the context of the Company's business and sector for the Company to 
function effectively: 

• Industry and Sector Experience 
• Understanding of Business and mark.et expertise 
• Strategy and Planning 
• Finance and Risk 

• People and Talent Understanding 
• EntrcPrencurship 
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Name of directors with their skills/ expertise / competence: 

Director Industry Finance Uodentaocilog People& Entrepreneur Strategy aDd 
Names/ and Sector &Risk ofBusloe11 Talent ship P•an:ning 
Skllla Experience andmuket Undentaodi 

expertise Ill 
Mr. Deepak y y y y y y 

Chheda 

Mr. Barish y y y - - y 

Nisar 

Mr. Roh.it y y y y y y 

Dedhia 

Mr.Sudhir y y - y - y 

Mehta 

Mr. Vatsal y y y y y y 

Shah 

Mr. Yogesh y y - y y y 

Shah 

MIS. Tcjal y - y y y y 

Mehta 

3. Subsidiary Monitoring Mechanl$m: 

The Company does oot have any Private Limited company as its subsidiary, bur the Company 
still adopts the practice of Subsidiary Monitoring Mechanism for monitoring its Limited 
Liability Partnership (LLPs) subsidiaries iorer aJia by the following means: 

a) Fioaocial Statements of the such LLPs are reviewed on a quarterly basis by the Audit 
Committee of the Company. 

b) A statement containing aU significant transactions and arrangements entered into by such LLPs 
are placed before the Board for its review. 

c) The minutes of the Partners of the Subsidiary LLPs are reviewed by the Board. 

The Company promotes ethical behavior in aU its business activities and has put in place a 
mechanism for reporting illegal or unethical behavior. 
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4 . COMMlTI'l!ES OF THE BOARD 

Sr. 

A3 of March 31, 2024, the Board has three Committees: 

• Audit Committee 
• Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

• Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

The role and the composition of these Committees including number of meetings held during 
the financial year and participation of the members at the meetings of the Committees, during 
the year are as under: 

A. An dlt Committee: 

The composition of the Audit Committee of the Company is in line with the provisions of 
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations. The 
Company's Audit Committee comprises 4 (Four) Independent Oittctors as follows: 

During the year under review, the Audit Committee met 4 (Four) times on (i) May 26,2023 (ii) 
August 4, 2023 (iii) November 8, 2023 and (iv) February 6,2024 

The invitees to the meeting arc the Chief Financial officer, lntcmal Auditor & Statutory Auditor 
in respect of business transaction related to them. The Company Secretary of the Company acts 
as the Secretary to the Audit Committee. The Minutes of the Audit Committee are noted at the 
Board Meetings. 

The Composition/Category and the attendance of mcmbcn of the Audit Committee at the 
committee meetings held during the year ended March 31, 2024 is as follows: 

Name of Director Category No. of No. of Meetings 
no. Meetings held attended 

l. 

2. 
3. 

4. 

Mr. Yogesb Shah (Member &: Independent Director 4 4 
Chairman) 
Mr. Sudhir Mehta (Member) Independent Director 4 3 
Mrs. Tejal Mehta (Member &: Independent Director 4 4 
Chairman) 
Mr. Vatsal Shah (Member) Independent Director 4 2 

The interval time between the any two Audit Committee meetings was not more than 120 days: 
Toe minutes of the Audit Committee are noted at the Board Meetings. The Audit Committee 
meetings were for the FY 2023-2024 were held at the Registered Office of the Company. 

Members of the Audit Committee are eminem professi.onal with expertise in the fields of 
Taxation, Accounting and Corporate Laws. 

Terms of ttference of the Audit Committee: The broad terms of reference of the Audit 
Committee as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations, amongst 
others, are as under:-
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• Oversight of the Company's 6nancial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial 
information to ensure that the financial statement is comet, sufficient and credible; 

• Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of 
the Company; 

• Approval of payment 10 statutOry auditon for any other services rendered, if any, by the 
statutory auditors; 

• Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditors' report 
thereon before submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to: 
► Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement 10 be included 

in theBoard'srepon in termS of clause (c) of ~seaion 3 of section 134 of the Act. 
► Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same. 
► Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by 

management. 
► Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings. 
► Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements. 
► Disclosure of any related party ttansactioos. 
► Modified opinion in the draft audit report. 

• Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to 
the Board for approval; 

• Prior approval of all related party ttansactions; 

• Review and monitor the auditors' independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit 
process; 

• Scrutiny of inter-corporate Joans and investmentS; 

• The audit committee shall review the information required as per Listing Regulations. 

The management is responsible for the Company's internal conttol and 6nancial reporting process. 
The Statutory Auditors arc responsible for performing the quarterly (limited review) aod yearly 
statutory audit of the Company's financial statements in accordance with the prevailing acconnting 
and auditing standards and for issuing a report thereon. Pursuant t0 the provisions of Section 139 and 
Section 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder and as amended from time 
to time. 

The Company bas appointed M/s. Rajeev Shah & Co., Chartered Accountants Finn Registration 
No. 032469 as Internal Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-2024, to review the 
internal control systems of the Company and to report thereon. 

B. Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (N&R Comminee) of the Company is constituted in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of 
SEBJ (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 201 S. Tbe Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee comprises of three (3) Independent Direaors. Tbe Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee met on August 4, 2023 and March 29,2024. 

The Composition/Category and the attendance of members of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee at the committee meetings held during the year ended March 31, 2024 is as follows; 
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Sr. Name of the Director Category No . of No. of Meetings 
DO, Mee~ held attended 
I Mr. Sudhir Mehta Independent Director 2 2 

(Chairman) 
2 Mr. Va!Sal Shah (Member) Independent Director 2 2 
3 Mr. Yogesh Shah (Member) Independent Director 2 2 

The terms of reference of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, inter-alia, includes 

• Formulating the criteria for determining the qualifications, positive attributes and 
independence of a director 

• Ensuring that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to 
attract, retain and motivate directors of the quality required to run the Manager successfully; 

• To assist the Board in determining and implementing the Company's Policy on the 
remuneration of Executive Directors; 

• Formulation of a performance evaluation methodology for evaluation of the Board, its 
committees and individual directors and reviewing the process from time to time; 

• To review diversity benchmarks for the organization. 
• To review oq:aoizatioo structure from time to time 

Paformance Evaluation 

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI LODR 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid down the criteria for performance evaluation 
of Independent Directors. The evaluation process consists of questionnaires which are based on the 
guidance note issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSJ) and SEBT 

For the purpose of performance evaluation, structured questionnaires, covering various aspeas of the 
evaluation such as adequacy of the size and composition of the Board and Committee thereof with 
regard to s.lcill, experience, independence, diversity, attendance and adequacy of time given by the 
Directors to discharge their duties, Corporate Governance practices, ability to challenge view of 
others in a constructive manner, knowledge acquired with regard to the Company's business, 
understanding of industry and global trends, etc. were circulated to the Directors for the evaluation 
process. 

The perl'ormance evaluation of the Chairman and Non-Independent Directors was earned out in their 
separate meeting of Independent Directors held oo March 29, 2024. The Directors expressed their 
satisfaction with the evaluation process. 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee Policy is available oo our website at 
http://www,rod111m.net/ codes-policies.html which contains the performance evaluation criteria for 
Board, its committees and Independent Dittaors. 

Remuneration ofDirccton: 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee oversees the remuneration to be provided to the 
Directors and Senior Managerial Personnel and the major points relating to Remuneration policy are 
as follows: 

(i) Remuneration atructwe of Independent D irectors: 
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a) Independent Directors receive remuneration by way of sitting fees for attending Board 
Meetings and Committee Meetings as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and approved by the Board and shareholder$ (wherever required) subject to 
ceiling/ limits as provided under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder or any 
other enactment for the time being in force. 

b) As of March 31, 2024, none of the Non-Executive Direct0r held any srock options. There was 
no other pecuniary relatioo.sblp or transaction of the Non-Executive Independent Di.rectors 
vis-a-vis the Company. 

c) No other fees/ commission or and kind of Monetary and Non-monetary benefit were 
p:ud/provided tO them during the Financial Year under review. No transactions have been 
entered into by the Company with the Non-EJ<ecutive and Independent Directors. 

d) The Company bas not granted any Perquisite or stock option to Non-Executive, Independent 
Direeto.rs. 

e) The Independent Directors voluntarily waived off the sittings fees of meetings held during the 
financial year 2023-2024. 

Below are the details of remuneration/ colllllilision and fees paid m Direcmrs for the Financial 
Year 2023-2024: 

Nlllle of the Directors *Salary and Perquisites Stock Option 
Allowance (Rs.) (Rs,) (Rs.) 

Mr. Decpak Chbeda 20,40,000 Nil Nil 
Chairman and Managing Director 
Mr. Ha.rish Nisar 26,40,000 Nil Nil 
Whole-Time Director 
Mr. Robit Dedhia 12,60,000 Nil N'tl 
Whole-Time Director 

C. Stakeholders' Relationship Committee: 

The Stakeholders' Re.lationship Committee is duly constituted in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 20 I 3 and Regulation 20 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Stakeholders' Relationship Committee (SRC) 
comprises of 3 (three) Directors, and is chaired by an Independent Director. 

During the year under review, Stakeholders' Relationship Committee met on February 6,2024. 

The Composition/Category and the attendance of members of lhe Stakeholders' Relationship 
Committee at the comnuttee meetings held during the year ended March 31, 2024 is as follows; 

Sr. Name of the Duector Catego,:y No. of No. of 
DO. Meetings held Meetings 

attended 
I Mr. Yogesh Shah (Chairman) Independent Director I I 
2 Mr. Vat5al Shah (Member) Independent Director I I 
3 Mr. Harish Nisar (Member) Whole-Time Director I I 
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Tcsms of reference of the Committee: Stakeholder Rclatiooship Committee looks into redrcssal of 
the grievances of Security holders viz., shareholders', investors' complaints relating to transfer of 
shares, issue of duplicate/ consolidated share certificates, review of cases for refusal of 
transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of balance sheet, non-receipt of dividends declared and 
all other securities holders related matters. It is also responsible for reviewing the process and 
mechanism of redrcssal of investor complaints and suggesting measures of improving the existing 
system of rcdressal of investor grievances. 

During the year under review the Company has replied/ resolved all complaints, suggestions and 
grievances expeditiously. The Company endeavors to implement suggestion as and when received 
from investors. The Company is in compliance with SCORES (SEBI Complaints Redress System), 
which is initiated by SBBI for processing the invesror complaints in a centralized web based redress 
system and online redrcssal of all the shareholders' complaints. 

There were no pending complaints and/or requests for share transfer, dematerialization, etc. as on 
Match 31, 2024. 

S. DIRECTORS' SRAJmHOLDING: 

Director's shareholding in the Company as on Match 31, 2024 was as under: 

Name of Directors No. of Equity Shara 
Mr. Deepak Chbeda 9,58,922 

Mr. Harish Nisar 3,20,259 
Mr. Rohit Dedhia 3,19,466 
Mr. Yogcsh Shah Nil 
Mr. Sudhir Mehta Nil 
Mr. Vatsal Shah Nil 

Mrs. Tejal Mehta Nil 

6. CHIEF EXECUTIVB OFFICER (CEO)/CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) 
CERTIFICATION: 

As required by under Reg 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulatiom, 2015, the Managing Director & and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company 
have certified to the Board regarding the Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March, 
2024. The said Certificate is attached to this report. 

7. GENERAL BODY MEETING: 

i. Anllual General Meeting: 

The details of the last three Annual General Meetings of the Company arc as given below: 

Fi.na.o.cial Day&Datc Time Venue 
Year 
2022-2023 September 28, 2023 03:00 p .m. (IST) Through Video Conference (VC) 

2021-2022 September 28, 2022 03:00 p.m. (1ST) Th.rough Video Conference (VC) 

2020-2021 September 30, 2021 03:00 p.m. (1ST) Through Video Conference (VC) 
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ii. Special Resolutions that were passed in the last three Annual G eneral Meetings are as 
follows: 

Date Special Re110lution Passed 
September No special resolution was passed in this AGM. 
28, 2023 
September No special resolution was passed in this AGM. 
28, 2022 

September • Re-appointment of Mr. Deepak Cbheda (DIN: 00419447) as the Chairman and 
30, 2021 Managing Director of the Company for the period of Three Years 

~ Re-appointment of Mr. Barish Nisar (DIN: 02716666) as the Whole-Time Director 
of the Company for the Period of Three Years. 

• Re-appointment of Mr. Rohit Dedhia (DIN: 02716686) as the Whole Time Director 
of the Company for the period of three Years. 

iii. Extra-Orcllnary General Meeting: 

No extraordinary general meeting of the members was held during FY 2023-2024. 

iv. Postal Ballot including e,.voting: 

During FY 2023-2024, no ordinary or special resolutions were passed through postal ballot 

8. MEANS OF COMMlJNICATION: 

a) Website: 

Your Company maintains the website www.rodium net where in there is a separate dedicated 
section 'Investor' which provides up-to-date information to the shareholders on matters relating 
to details of the Company, its performance including quarterly financial results, annual repons, 
press release, shareholding Pattern, outcome of Board etc. The Annual Repon of the Company 
is also available on the website and can be downloaded. 

Further any query / complaint/ information can be addressed to the Compliance Officer on the 
email id es@rodium net. 

b) Financial Results: Qnartcrly / Half yearly/ Annual Results: 

The quancrly/balf-yearly uoaudited - financial results subjected to limited review, and the 
annual audited financial results (in sbon Financial Results) have been uploaded on Company's 
website i.e. http://www rodjum net/guanerly-result,hmtl under the Quarterly Results tab 
available under Invcsrors on a ttgular basis. 

The Financial Results of the Company i.e. Quarterly, Half-yearly and Annually arc ordinarily 
published in the 'Free Press Jownal' and 'Navshakti' and are also uploaded on BSE Listing 
center and hosted on the Company's website www.rodium.net. 

During the Financial Year 2023·2024 no presentation was made to the institutional investors or 
to the analyst after declaration of Financial Results. As per the rcquucmcnts of Regulations 33 & 

47 of the Listing Regulations, the Financial Results/ are published in leading national 
newspapers as detailed here-in-below, on a regular basis. 
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c) News Releases, Prcsentation.s, etc.: 

Official news releases and media releases, etc. arc displayed on the Company's website 
www.rodium.net and are also sent to the Stock Exchange. 

During the Financial Year 2023-2024 no presentation was made to the institutional investors or 
to the analyst aftcx declaration of Financial Results. 

d) Other information/Website: 

Various notices/other information mandated to be published as per the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations etc., arc published in the newspapers, &om time 
to time. 

BSE Coiporate Compliances and Listing Centre {BSE Listing Centre} is a Web based 
application designed for Coiporates. All periorucal compliance filings like shareholding pattern, 
corporate governance report, financial statement, among others, arc filed electronically on BSE 
Listing Centre. 

All the information which is required to be uploaded as per the provisions of the Regulation 46 
of the Listing Regulations or undcx the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under are 
uploaded / updated OD the Company's website at regular intervals. 

e) Annual Report: 

Pursuant to the Circular No. 11/ 2022 dated December 28 2022, read with Circular Nos. 
14/2020 dated April 08 2020, 17/2020 dated April 13 2020, 22/2020 dated June 15 2020, 
33/2020 dated September 28 2020, 39/2020 dated December 31 2020, 10/2021 dated June 23 
2021, 20/2021 dated December 08,2021 and 03/2022 dated May 05 2022 respectively issued by 
the MCA and the Securities and Exchange Board of India have ~tted listed companies to 
send th.e Notice of the Annual General Meeting {" AGM") along with the Annual Repon and 
audited financial statements fur the F.Y 2023-2024 is being sent through electronic mode to 
those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/ Depositories. They are 
djsplayed OD the Company's website at www. rodjum,nct. websites of the Stock Exchanges, i.e., 
BSE Limited at www.bsejndia com 

Designated Exclusive Email ID: 

The Company has following designated email IDs exclusively for investor servicing: 

For queries on Annnal Report cs@roruum.net 

For queries in respect of shares in physical mode - invwor@cameoindia.com. 
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9. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION: 

Company R.egistratlon The Company is registered in the State of Maharashtra, India. 
Details The Corporate Identification Number allotted to Company is 

L85110MH1993PLC206012 
11.egistered office address Plot No. 636, 501, X'cube, Off New Link Road, Andheri (West) 

Mumbai--4-00053, Maharashtra, India 
Date, Time and Venue Sarurday, September 28, 2024 
of Annual Gcnenl 
Meeting for FY 2023- Time: 12 :00 p. m. 

2024 .. 
Venue: Since the Company is conducting meeting through VC I 
OA VM pursuant to the MCA Cimilar dated May 5, 2020, Registered 
office of the Company will be the deemed venue for the meeting. For 
details please refer to the Notice of this AGM. 

Financial Year April 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024 
Date of Book Closure September 22, 2024 to September 28, 2024 
Listing OJl Stock Equity Shares of our company are listed on BSE Limited, (BSE), 
Exchanges Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400 001. 

Details of which are as follows: 
Scrip Code : 531822 
Scrip ID :RODIUM 
!SIN : INES13E01024 
Company also has Unlisted 9% C'mnulative Redeemable Preference 
Shares. 

Payment of Listing Fees Annual listing fee for the year 2024•2025 (as applicable) has been paid 
by the Company tO BSE. 

Payment of Custodial Annual custodial fee of CDSL and NSDL for the year 2024-2025 has 
Fees been paid by the Company. 
Recommendation of No dividend ls recommended for the financial year 2023-2024,as the 
Dividend and Dividend company reserves the profits for future events. 
Payment 
Suspension of trading in There was no suspension of trading in securities of the Company during 
aecurlties the year under review. 
Outstanding GDRs/ Your Company does not have any outstanding GDRs / ADRs 
ADRs/ Wanants/ /Warrants/ Convertible Instruments, including stoclc options. 
Convertible 
Instruments and their 
impact 
on Equity 
Registrar and Transfer Cameo Corporate SCJVices Limited, Subramanian Building, No. l Qub 
Agenti House Road, Chenoai 600002, Phone: 044-28460390; 

Email id: investor@carneoindia.com 
Website: www.carncoindia.com 

Commodity Price The Company did not engage in any commodity price risk or foreign 

Rlsk/Foie.ign Exchange exchange risk and hedging activities for the Financial Year 2023-2024. 
Risk and Hedging 
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Plant Location The Company does not have any plant location. 

Share Transfer System As per Regulation 40 of the Listing Regulations, as amended, securities 
of listed companies can be transferred only in dematerialised form 
w.e.f. April 01, 2019, except in case of request received for transmission 
or transposition of securities. Further, SEBI bas fixed March 31, 2021 
as the cut- off date for re-lodgement of transfer deeds and the shares 
that arc cc-lodged for transfer shall be issued only in demat mode. 
However, Members are not barred from holding shares in physical 
form. Members wbo are desirous of transferring shares (which are held 
in physical form) after April 01, 2019 can do so only after the shares are 
dematerialized. Transfers of equity shares in electronic form are 
effeeted through the depositories with no involvement of the Company. 

10. STOCKMARKETPRICEDATAFOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR2023-2024. 

Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) 

Month (In Rs. Per share) 
Month's High Price Month's Low Price 

April, 2023 52.50 42.00 

May,2023 54.50 39.95 

Junc,2023 63.80 46.06 

July, 2023 59.39 47.00 

August, 2023 70.00 55.90 

September, 2023 69.97 60.00 

October, 2023 68.50 51.05 

November, 2023 61.00 51.05 

December,2023 78.50 53.00 

January,2024 110.94 56.50 

February, 2024 65.45 41.29 

Marcb,2024 74.99 45.80 

11- SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE IN COMPARISON TO INDEX - BSE SENSEX FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024. 

.... -·- ....... 
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SHAR.EBOLDING PATI'ERN AS ON MARCH 31, 2024 

Categ0ty Categcny Of Shareholder No. of Total Aaa 
Code Share munbcrof Pe=ntageof 

holders Shares Total 
(A+B+C) 

(A) Shareholding of Promoter and 
Promoter Group -·-(a) Indian 12 22,85,382 70.36% 

(b) Foreign . . . 

Total Shareholding of Promoter and 12 22,85,382 70.36% 
Promoter Group 

(B) Public Shareholding 
(a) Institutions . . . 
(b) Non-Institutions 1081 9,62,518 29.64% 

Total Public Shamiolding 1081 9,62,518 29.64% 

(c) Shares held by Cu.ttodiam and . . . 
against which Depositories Receipts 
have been issued 

Total (A +B+ C) 1093 32,47,900 100.00% 

12. DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON MARCH 31, 2024. 

St.No. .::ategory Holders ¾ of Share No. of Shates ¾of Total 
Holden Held Shue Holding 

1. 10-5000 941 86.0933 75224 2.3160 

2. 5001- 10000 49 4.4830 38688 1.1911 

3. 10001-20000 28 2.5617 36942 1.1374 
4. 20001- 30000 16 1.4638 40941 1.2605 
5. 30001-40000 8 0.7319 30799 0.9482 
6. 40001- 50000 9 0.8234 40164 1.2366 

1. S0001- 100000 18 1.6468 154720 4.7636 

8. 100001 & above 24 2.1957 2830422 87.1462 

Total 1093 100 32,47,900 100.0000 

13. DEMATEJUALIZATION OF SHARES AS ON MARCH 31, 2024 

The trading in the Equity shares of the Company is in demarerializcd form. The position of 
dematerialized shares as well as physical shares as on the 31• March, 2024 is as under.-

Particulars No. of Shares % of total aha.res 
Shares in Physical mode 26805 0.8253% 
Shares in Demat mode (Both CSDL and NSDL) 3221095 99.1747% 

14. TRANSFER OF UNPAID/ UNCLAIMED AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION 
AND PROTECTION FUND 

Pursuant to Sections U4 and 125 of the Act read with the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 ("mPF Rules"), 
dividend, if not claimed for a consecutive period of 7 years from the date of transfer to Unpaid 
Dividend Account of the Company, are liable to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund ("IEPF"). 
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Further, all the shares in respect or which dividend bas i:emained unclaimed for seven 
consecutive years or moi:e from the date of transfer to unpaid dividend account shall also be 
ttansfcrrcd to IEPF Authority, The said requirement does not apply to shares in i:espect of which 
there is a specific order ofCowt, Tribunal or Statutory Authority, i:estraining any ttansfer of the 
shares. 

The following table gives information relating to various outstanding dividends and the dates by 
which these can be claimed by the shareholders from the Company's Registrar and Transfer 
Agent 

Financial Year Date of Declaration Last date of claiming unpaid dividend 

2014-2015 26.09.2015 02.11.2022 
2015-2016 27.09.2016 02.11.2023 
2016-2017 22.09.2017 27.10.2024 
2017-2018 28.09.2018 03.11.2025 
2018-2019 27.09.2019 02.11.2026 

The complete details of such shareholders whose unpaid dividend and shares are liable to be 
ttansferted to IEPF Authority bas been uploaded on the Company's website at 
hgp://www.rodium net/unclaimed-unpaid-dividend.html . 

15. COMPLIANCE OFFICER: 

During the year, Ms. Srishti Raghani resigned from the poSt of Company secretary w.e.f. 
13.07.2023. The company bas appointed Ms. Jyoti Singh as Company Secretary and 
Compliance Ofli= of the Company w .e.f 04.08.2023. 

16. DISCLOSURES: 

► Materlally Significant Related Party: All transactions entettd into during the financial year 
2023-2024 with Related Parties as defined under the Act and the Listing Regulations wei:e in the 
ordinary course of business and on an arm's length basis and do not attract the provisions of 
Section 188 of the Companies Act. 2013. These have been approved by the Audit Committee. 
Suitable disclosures as required under Accounting Standard 18 (AS-18), bas been made in the 
notes to the Financial Statements as well as in Form AOC2, which forms a part of the Board 
Report. None of the transactions with the related parties is in conflict with the interest of the 
Company. 

► Accounting Tttatmcnt: The Standalone and consolidated financial Statements for financial year 
2023-2024 have been prepared in accordance with the applicable Indian Accounting Standards 
(]NDAS) and the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder. 

► Compliance with Mandatory Requirements: As of March 31, 2024, the Company was fully 
compliant with all applicable mandatory requirements of the provisions of SEBJ (Listing 
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

► Non-Mandatory Requirements: The Company has reviewed the non-mandatory i:equirements 
as specified in the Listing Regulations and it shall be adopted /complied by the Company on 
need basis and voluntary. 

► Details of non-compliance relating to capital markets during the past 3 yean: The Company 
bas complied with all i:equirements of the Regulatory Authorities. No penalties / strictures were 
imposed on the Company by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any Statutory Authority on any 
matter i:elated to capiral market since the listing of the Company's equity sbares. 
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► Code of Conduct: The Company bas its own Model Code of Conduct which is applicable to its 
Board and Senior Management The Company is committed in conducting its business and 
operations in conformity with the ethical standards and applicable laws, rules and regulations. 
The Company bas also received declaration from its Board and Senior Management ttgarding 
the compliance with the said Code of Conduct for the financial year under review and a 
declaration to this effea signed by the Managing Director is annexed to this repon. 

ln terms of Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the Managu,,g Director and Chief Financial Officer have given a certificate to 
the Board of Directors in the format presaibed under Schedule II Part B for the year ended 
March 31, 2024. 

The Model code of Conduct can be accessed on Company website at 

l!l1P://www.rodiµm,pet/ro,i~oli.rje_1 . .btm.1. 

► Certificate from Company Secretary in practice: A certificate from Ws Kaushal Doshi & 
Associates, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership Number 10609 and CP No. 13143 in 
practice stating that none of the directors on the board of the Company have been debarred or 
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directo,s of companies by SEBI/Minisoy of 
Corporate Affairs or any other statutory authority is annexed to this repon. 

► Recommendation of the committees: During the year under review, the Board bas accepted all 
recommendations made by various Committees of Board ofDirecto,s of the Company. 

The fees paid by the Company (on a consolidated basis) to the statutory auditors and its network 
firm during the financial year 2023-2024 is as under: 

Sr. DO. Service Prorided Amount 
I Audit fee 2,00,000/ • 
2 Tax Audit fee 75,000/-

3 Other Services 125000/-

► Management Discussion and Analysis Report 

The Management Discussion and Analysis Repon forms part of Board's Repon. All maucrs 
pertaining to industrial structure, developments, risks and concerns, internal control and 
adequacy, discussion on financial and operational performa.ncc etc., are discussed in the said 
Report. 

► Risk Management Framework/Whistle Blower Policy /Vigil Mechanism 

Toe Company has in place mechanisms to inform Board members about the risk assessment and 
mitigation procedures and periodical reviews to ensure that risk is controlled by the executive 
management through the means of robust risk management framework. Company has also 
formulated Vigil Mechanism system whereby the employees can have direct access 10 the 
Chairman of the Audit Committee which also acts as a whistle blower policy. The Company 
affirms that no employee bas been denied access to the Audit Committee. 

The said Policy is placed on the website of the Company viz: http· //www rpdmm ae1tcpdes­
poljcies,hanl. 
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► Se.xual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Pre-vention, Proht'bition and Re.dressal) Act, 

2013 clisclosure 

The Company is committed ro creating and maintaining an atmosphere in which employees can 
work together, without fear of sexual harassment, exploitation or intimidation. The Company 
bas zero rolerancc for sexual harassment at workplace and has complied with provisions of the 
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 
and the Rules framed thereunder. There was no case of sexual harassment ttperted during the 
year under review. 

a. Number of complaints filed during the financial year Nil 
b. Number of complaints disposed of during the financial Nil 

year 

C. Number of complaints pending as on <Cad of the financial Nil 
year 

► Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit: 

A qualified Practicing Company Secretary carries out quarterly audit 10 reconcile the total 
admitted Equity Share capital with National Securities Depository Services (India) Limited 
(NSDL), Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and Physical Shares and the total 
issued and listed equity share capital. 

The Audits confirm that the total issued/paid-up equity share capital is in agreement with the 
total number of equity shares in physical fonn and the total number of dematerialized shares 
held io NSDL and CDSL. 

► ComplJan.ce with the requl.mnents of Corporate Govemance Report: 
The Company has complied with the requirements of Corporate Governance Report of sub 
paras (2) to (IO) mentioned in Para C of Schedule VofSEBI (LODR), 2015. 

Further the compliance relating ro Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses {b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) 
ofSEBI LODR is not applicable to your Company, since your Company does not have paid up 
equity share capital exceeding rupees ten crore and net worth exceeding rupees twenty-five 
crore, as on the last day of the previous financial year. However, your Company is committed to 
good corporate governance in its true spirit bas voluntarily complied with the certain regulations 
to the extent possible. 

By otdcr of the Board of Directors, 
For Rodium. Realty Llmlted 

Sd/-
Deepak Cbheda 

Managing Director 
(DIN: 00419447) 

Platt: Mambal 
Date: September 03, 2024 
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CONFIRMATION OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT BY CHAIRMAN & MANAGING 
DIR.ECTOR 

I hereby affirm that the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Board members and 
senior management personnel and the same is available on the Company's website. 

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm that the Company has, in respect of the 
financial year ended March 31, 2024, received from the senior management personnel of the 
Company and the members of the Board, a declaration of compliance with the Code of Conduct 
as applicable to them. 

For and on behalf of the Board, 
For Rodium Realty Limited 

Sd/· 
Dcepak Chheda 
Cb.airman & Managing Director 
(DIN 00419441) 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: September OJ, 2024 
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CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION 

CERTIFICA'J'E UNDER REGUUTION 17(8) OF SECURITIES ,4NIJ EXCIM.NGE BOA.RD OF 
IND:U (LISTING OBLIGATIONS & DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) RBGUUTIONS, 2015 

We to the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that 

i. We have reviewed the Financial StatementS and Cash Flow Staumenr of Rodium 
Realty Limited for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 and to the best of out 
knowledge and belief; 

a. These swementS do not contain any materially untrue Statement or omit any material 
fact or contain statements that might be misleading. 

b. These statements mgether present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are 
in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

ii. There are, 10 the best of our knowledge and belief, no uansactions entered into by the 
Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's 
Code of Conduct. 

iii. We accept responsibility for establishing a.od maintaining internal contro~ for tin.ancial 
reporting and that we have evaluated effectiveness of inte:rnal control systems of I.be 
C-0mpany pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the 
Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal control, if any, 
of which we are awa,e and I.be steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these 
deficiencies. 

IV. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee: 

a. Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 
b. Significant changes in aocounting policies during the year and that the same have been 

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 
c. There are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the 

involvement therein, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the 
Company's internal control system over financial reporting. 

For Rodiu.m Realty Limited 
Sd/-
Mr. Deepak Chheda 
Chairman and Managing Director 

DIN: 00419447 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: September 03, 2024 
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Sd/-
Mr. Rohan Chheda 
Ch.ief Financial Officer 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALJFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(Pum,a,u to Jug11llltfo11 34(3) 11tul Sl:fmlule Y Para C cllluse (JO) (I) oftk SBBJ (Listing Obliga&,u 
ud DisdMun RttJ11/rmtmts) RegulatfDt&S, 2015) 

To, 
The Members of 
RODWM REALTY LIMITED 
Plot No. 636, SOI, X'cube, Oft'New LlnJ,;Ro,.d, 
Andheri (West), Mumbai- 400053 

I have examined the relevant registers, records, fomtS, returns and disclosures received from the 
Directors of RODIUM REALTY LIMITED having CIN L85110MH1993PLC206012 and 

having registered office at Plot No. 636, 501, X'cube, Off New Link Road, Andheri (West), 
Mumbai- 400053 (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'), produced before me by the 
Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34{3) read 
with Schedule V Para..C Sub clause IO(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obllgatioos a.ad Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

In our opinion a.ad to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including 
Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered 
necessary and explanations fumlshed to me by the Company & its officers., I hereby certify that 
n.one of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year 
ending on 31st Mazch, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 
continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Boa.¢ of India, MiniS!IY 
of Corporate Affairs, any such other Stan11ory Authority. 

Sr.No, Name ofl>im:tor DIN Date of appointment In 
CompaJ11 

1 Deepak Dungarshi Chheda 00419447 14/11/2009 
2 Vatsal Jayantilal Shah 01839985 04/08/2009 
3 Tejal Karan Me.hta 01896772 13/08/2014 
4 Haris.h Damji Nisar 02716666 14/ 11 /2015 
5 Rohit Kesbavji Dedhia 02716686 14/11/2015 
6 Y ogesh Ratilal Shah 02774568 04/08/2009 
1 Sudhir Mehta Jayaotilal 03187758 12/08/2010 

Ensuring the eligi'bility of for the appointment / rontinuity of every Director on the Board is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of 
the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness wi1h which the management has condueted 
the affairs of the Company. 

For Kaushal Doshi & Associates 
Practicing Company Secr1:tarlcs 

Sd/· 
Kaushal Doshi 
Proprietor 
Membenhip No: F10609; C-P, No.: 13143 
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Date: September OJ, 2024 
UDIN: F010609FOOl113S81 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO TIIE MEMBERS OF RODIUM RBAL1Y LIMITED 
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF TIIE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of RODIUM REAL1Y 
LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024, 
the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other Comprehensive Income), Standalone 
Statement of Changes in Equity and Standalone Cash Flows Statement for the year then ended, and 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements including Material Accounting Policies and Other 
Explanatory Information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our informati.on and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid Standalone Financia.l Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2013 (• the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and amended and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at 31st March, 2024, 
and its profit (financial position including 0th.er comprehensive income), the changes in equity and 
its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Op inion 

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for th.e Audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent o.f the Company in accordance with the Code 
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (!CAI) together with the 
independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the !CAI' s Code of Ethics. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements. 

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to Note 15 of the Standalone Financial Statements regarding non-provision of 
interest on W\Secured loans as Management has obtained consent from the unsecured loan holders 
for waiver of interest for the current financial year. 
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the Standalone Fmancial Statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
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SNo 
1 

Kev Audit Matters 
Revenue Recognition 
Revenue recognition involves 
significant estimates related to 
measurement of costs to complete the 
projects. Revenue from projects is 
recorded based on the Company's 
assessment of the work completed, 
cost incurred and accrued and the 
estimate of the balance costs to 
complete the Project. 
Considering the significant estimate 
involved in measurement of revenue, 
we have considered measurement of 
revenue as key audit matter. 

Im,entories (Note 8 ta the Standalone 
Financial Statements) 
As at March 31, 2024, the carrying 
value of the inventory of ongoing and 
completed realoi!state projects is Rs. 
4,031.24 Lacs. The inventories are held 
at the lower of the cost and net 
realisable value rNRVH). 

The determination of NRV involves 
estimates based on prevailing market 
conditions and considering the stage 
of completion of the inventory, the 
estimated future selling price, cost to 
complete projects and selling costs. 
We identified the assessment of the 
carrying value of inventory as a key 
audit matter due to the significance of 
the balance to the Standalone Financial 
Statements as a whole and the 
involvement of estimates and 
iud11:ement in the assessment. 
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Our ResDonse 
Our audit procedure included: 
1. Identifying and testing operating 

effectiveness of key controls over 
recording of project costs 

2. Assessing the cost incurred and accrued 
to date on the balance sheet by 
examining underlying invoices and 
signed agreements on a sample basis. 
Assessing contract costs to check no 
cost of revenue nature are incorrectly 
recorded in the balance sheet. 

3. Comparing, on sample basis, revenue 
transactions recorded during the year 
with the underlying contracts, progress 
reports, invoices raised on customers 
and collections in bank accounts. Also 
checked the related revenue had been 
recognised in accordance with the 
Company's revenue recognition 
policies. 

4. Comparing the cost to complete 
workings with the budgeted costs and 
inquiring for variance. 

5. Sighting company's internal approvals 
on sample basis for changes in 
budgeted costs along with the rationale 
for the chanites. 

Our audit procedures induded, among 
others: 
1. Evaluation of the design and operation 

of internal controls related to testing 
recoverable amounts with carrying 
amount of inventory including 
evaluating Management processes for 
estimating future costs to complete 
projects. 

2. As regards NRV, for a sample of 
selected projects, compared costs 
incurred and estimates of future cost to 
complete the project with costs of 
similar projects and compared NRV to 
recent sales or to the estimated selling 
price applied in assessing the NRV. 
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Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon 

The Company's Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other 
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report 
including Annexures to Board's Report, but does not include the Sta.ndalone Financial Statements 
and our Auditor's Report thereon. Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not 
cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion th.ereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is lo read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit 
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this audit report. lf, based 
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information; we are required to communicate the matter with those charged with Governance. 

Management's and Board of Directors Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company's Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a 
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive 
income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company In accordance with the Ind AS and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial 
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, Management and Board of Directors is 
responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the audit of the Standalone financial statements 

Ou.r objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance a.bout whether the Standa.lone Financial 
Statements as a whole are free &om material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial 
Statements. 

I Annual Report 2023-2024 81 



RODIUM REALTY LIMITED-------------

AB part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exerd.se professional judgement and rnaintaln 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risl<s, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an wtderstanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Secti.on 143(3)(1) of the Act, 
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate 
internal financial controls in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accowtting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accotmting estimates and related disclosures made by Management and Board of Directors. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's and Board of Di.rectors use of the going 
concern basis of accowtting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in 
the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial 
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to commwucate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 

F-rom the matters commwucated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in th.e audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report 
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be commurucated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 rthe Order") issued by the Central 
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "A.nnexure A" a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 
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A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that 
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audiL 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone 
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of accounL 

d) In our opinion, the said Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on April 01, 2024 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Company and the operating; effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separab! report in• Annexure B". 

B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its 
Standalone Financial Stab!ments - Refer Note 30 (h) to the Standalone Financial Statements; 

il. The Company does not have long-term contracts for which there are material foreseeable 
losses 

iii. Unclllimtd Dividend of Rs. 0.32 Lacs for the jinimcial year 2015-2016 required to be transferred to the 
Investor Educatum and Prottcticm Fund is pending to be transferred as on Balance Shttt date. 

iv. (a) As represented to us by the Management and to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
funds have been advanced or lend or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities 
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) 
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries"), with the understanding whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 
of the Company (•Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

(b) As represented to us by the Management and to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 
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(c) Based on such audit procedures, we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that causes us to believe that the above 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule ll(e) as provided under (a) and (b) above, 
contain any material misstatement. 

v. The Company has not declared any dividend. 

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks and in accordance with the 
requirements of the implementation guide on reporting of Audit Trail under Rule 11 (g) of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014, the Company has used accounting software for 
maintaining its books of account, which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) 
facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions 
recorded. Further, we have not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered 
with during the course of our audit. 

q As required by section 197(16) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that the Company has 
paid and provided for remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the 
provisions of and limits laid down under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

For SCA AND ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No. 101174W) 

(Shivratan Agarwal) 
Partner 
Mem. No.; 104180 
UDIN:- 24104180BI<ERXN2420 
Mumbai, May 27, 2024 

I AIIJ1U3I Report 2023-2024 84 



RODIUM REALTY LIMITED-------------

ANNEXURE "A" TO 1lIB INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
ST AND ALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF RODIUM REALTY LIMITED 

i) In respect of its Property, Plant and Equipment: 
a) A The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment; 
B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible 
Assets. 

b) According to the information and explanation given to us and examination of the 
records of the Company, the Assets have been physically verified by the management in 
accordance with a regular programme of verification, which in our opinion is 
reasonable, considering the size and the nature of its business. The frequency of 
verification is reasonable and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such 
physical verification. All discrepancies have been properly dealt with in the books of 
accounts; 

c) The Company does not own any immovable prope.rties, hence Clause (i)(c) of Para 3 of 
the order is not applicable to the Company. 

d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible 
Assets during the year. 

e) According to the information and explanation given to us and examination of the 
records of the Company, no p~dings have been initiated during the year or are 
pending against the Company as at March 31 2024 for holding any benami property 
under the Benami Transaction (Prohibition) Act, 1988, as amended and rules made 
thereunder 

ii) a) Having regard to the nature of inventory, the physical verification by way of 
verification of title deeds, site visits by the Management and certification of extent of 
work completion by competent persons, are at reasonable intervals. 1n our opinion 
and according to the information and explanations given to us, the coverage and 
procedure of such verification by the Management is appropriate having regard to the 
size of the Company and nature of its operations and no discrepancies of 10% or 
more in the aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such physical 
verification of inventories when compared with books of account. 

b) According to the information and explanation given to us and examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in 
excess of Rs. 5 Crores, in aggregate, at any point of time during the year, from banks 
or financial institutions on the basis of lien of deposits. As informed, the Company is not 
required to file quarterly returns/ statements. 

iii) The Company has made investments in other entities. The Company has also provided 
guarantee or security, and granted loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or 
unsecured, to Companies, Firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, or any other parties during 
the year. 

a) The Company has provided loans or advances in the nature of loans and stood as 
corporate guarantor/ provided security as a partner in LLP (Co-Borrower) as follows 
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(Rs. in Lacs) 
Particulus GuaranteP-1Securitv Loans 
Aec,ren.te amount 11rovided durinst the vear 
For Subsidiaries 5000 
Others Nil 
Balance Outstandinst as at Balance sheet date 
For Subsidiaries 5000 
Others 58.00 

b) In our opinion, the investments made, guarantees/ security provided and loans given 
are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company's interest. 

c) In respect of loans the repayment of principal is not stipulated and the loans are 
repayable on demand. The interest is overdue. 

d) Interest overdue on loans is as follows 
(Ra. in Lacsl 

No of Cases Interest Overdue ToWOverdue 
3 40.83 40.83 

e) As the loans are repayable on demand, no loans have fallen due during the year. 

f) The following loans are repayable on demand as on March 31, 2024 
(Rs. in Lacs) 

Particulars All Parties Promoters Related Parties 
Aggregate amount of loans repayable on 58.00 0 0 
demand 
Percentage of Loans 100% 0 0 

iv) In our opinion the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the 
Act, with respect to investments made during the year. 

v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits 
with.in the meaning of Sections ?3 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) 
Rules, 2014 as amended. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (v) of Para 3 of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company. 

vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, Central Government has not 
prescribed main1enance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Act. 

vii) 1n respect of statutory dues: 
(a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, 

lnco~tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added 
Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the Company have been 
deposited by it with delays ranging 11etween 1 t.o3 months with the appropriate authorities. 
We have been informed that the provisions of the Employees' State l.nsurance Act, 1948 
are not applicable to the Company. 

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, 
Provident Fund, lncome-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, 
Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 
2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 
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(b) There are no statutory dues referred in sub-clause (a) above which have not been 
deposited on account of disputes as on March 31, 2024 

viii) According to the information and explanation given to us and examination of the records of 
the Company, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were 
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the IJlcome Tax Act, 1961 (43 
of 1961) during the year. 

ix) (a) According to the information and explanation given to us and examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other 
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit 
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any 
bank or financial institution or government or any government authority. 

(c) To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the 
Company were, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the 
loans were obtained. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures 
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the 
Company, funds raised on shorMerm basis have, prima facie, not been used during the 
year for long-term purposes by the Company. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall 
examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any 
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its 
subsidiaries. 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed 
by us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of 
securities held in its subsidiaries. 

x) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public 
offer (Including debt instruments), during the year and hence reporting under Oause (x) 
(a) of Para 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of share or 
fully convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year 
and accord.ingly provisions of clause (x)(b) of Para 3 of the Order a.re not applicable to 
the Company 

xi) (a) On the basis of our examination of books and records of the Company and according to 
the information and explanations given to us, no &aud by the Company or any material 
fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been 
informed of any such case by the Management 

(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the 
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year. 
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(c) As represented to us by the Management, there are no whistle blower complaints 
received by the Company during the year. 

xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and accordingly provisions of clause (xii) of Para 3 of 
the order are not applicable to the Company. 

xiii) On the basis of our examination and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, we report that all the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 
177 and 188 of the Act, and the details have been disclosed in the Standalone Fmancial 
Statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting standards. 

xiv) (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with 
the size and the nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the 
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of 
our audit procedures. 

xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the 
Company has not entered in to any non -cash transactions with directors or persons connected 
with the directors and hence provisions of Sec 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not 
applicable to the Company. 

xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934 and accordingly, provisions of clause (xvi)(a) of Para 3 of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company. 

(b) During the year, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or 
Housing Finance activities and accordingly, provisions of clause (xvi)(b) of Para 3 of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (Oq as defined in the Regulations 
made by the Reserve Bank of India and accordingly the provisions of clause (xvi)(c) of 
Para 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(d) The group does not have any OC as a part of the group and accordingly reporting 
under clause (xvi)(d) of Para 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and 
in the immediately preceding financial year. 

xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. 

xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets 
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements 
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our 
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, 
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit 
report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of 
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit 
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report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due 
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get dlscharged by the Company 
as and when they fall due. 

xx) The Company was not having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or twnover of 
rupees one thousand crore or more or a net profit of rupees five crore or more during the 
immediately preceding financial year and hence, provisions of Section 135 of the Act are not 
applicable to the Company during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of Para 3 
of the Order is not applicable for the year 

For SCA AND ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No. 101174W) 

(Shivratan Agarwal) 
Partner 
Mem. No.: 104180 
UDIN:- 24104180BKERXN2420 
Mumbai, May 27, 2024 
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"ANNEXURB B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
STANDALONE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF RODIUM REALTY LIMITED. 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financia.1 Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub­
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 rthe Acl") 

Opinion 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements of 
RODIUM REALTY LIMITED (uthe Company") as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit 
of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal 6nancial controls 
with reference to Financial Statements and such controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 
2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India(ICA.l). 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's Management and Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records and the timely prepatation of reliable financial information, 
as required under the Act. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 
reference to Financial Statements based on our audiL We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance 
Note") issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
Internal Financial Controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements were established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. 
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements includes obtaining an 
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, 
and testing and evaluating the desjgn and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed. risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to 
Financial Statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 

A Company's internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements is a process designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation 
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements includes 
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; 
{2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the Company; and {3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Fi.nancW Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Financial 
Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

For SCA AND ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 
{Firm Registration No.101174W) 

(Shivratan Agarwal) 
Partner 
Mem. No.: 104180 
UDIN:- 24104180BKERXN2420 
Mumbai, May 27, 2024 
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~g D1r<rtor 
DIN: 00419447 

sd/-
Jyoti Singh 
Company Secretary 
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Whole-Tune Director 
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Rohan Chheda 
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NOTES TOTIIE STM'DALONE RNANOALSTAm!EN!'S AS AT31ST MAROl 20N 
RODIUM REALTY LIMITED-------------

NOTE1 
General Information 
Rodium Realty Limited (the "Company" or 'RRL", is primarily en~ed in business of Real Estate construction, 
development and other related activities. The Company is a public limited Company inoorporated in India having its 
registered office at 501, XCube, Plot No. 636, Opp. to Fun Republic Theater, Off Link Road, Andheri West, Mumbai • 
400 053, Maharashtra, India. The Company is listed on BSE Limited (BSE). 

NO' BASIS OF PREPARARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POUCIES 
A Basis of preparation of Financial !;tatements &: Key ~counting Estimates&: Judgements 

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on historical cost basis considering the applicable provisions 
of Companies Act 2013 except the following material items that have been measured at fair value as required by 
relevant Ind AS. 

a) Certain Financial Assets/Liabilities measured at fair value 
b) Any other item as speci6cally stated in accounting policy. 

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies 
are applied consistently to all periods presented in the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Standalone Financial Statements are presented in India Rupee (INR), which is also functional currency of the 
Company. All the values are rounded off to the nearest Lacs (INR 00,000) unless otherwise indicated. 

The Company reclassifies comparative amounts, unless impracticable and whenever the Co.mpany changes the 
presentation or classification of items in its Financial statements materially. No such material reclassification has been 
ma.de during the year. 

The Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2024 were authorised for issue in 
accordance with a molution of the directors on 27th May, 2024 

Statement of Compliance 
These Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with IND AS as prescribed under Section 
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and 
subsequent amendments thereto. 

K•y Accounting Estimates and Judgm,mls 
In the application of accounting policies which are described in (B) below, the management is required to make 
judgment. estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of Assets and Liabilities, Income and Expenses, 
Contingent Liabilities and the accompanying disclosures that are not readily apparent from other sources. The 
estimates and as.sociated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be 

relevant and are prudent and reasonable. Actual results may differ from those estimates. The estimates and 
underlying assumptions are reviewed on ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period 
in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future periods 
if the revision affects both current and future period. 

The few critical estimations and iudements made in aoolviru! accountine oolicies are: 

Evaluation of Percentage Completion: 

Determination of Revenues under the percentage completion method necessarily invloves making estimates, some of 
which are of a tedutlcal nature, oonceming, where relevant, the percentage of completion, costs to completion, the 
expected revenues from the project or activity and the foreseeable losses to oompleti.on. Estimates of project inoome, as 
well as projed costs, are reviewed periodically. The effect of changes, if any, to estimates is recognised in the Financial 
statements for the period in which such changes are determined. 
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Impalrment of Non-Financial Assets: 
For calculating the recoverable amount of Non-Fmancial Assets, the Company is required to estimate the value-in-use 
of the asset or the Cash Generating Unit and the fair value less costs to disposal. For calculating value in use the 
Company is required to estimate the cash flows to be gmerated from using the asseL The fair value of an Assets is 
estimated using a valuation technique where ob&ervable prices are not available. Further, the discount rate used in 
value in use calculations includes an estimate of risk assessment specific to the asseL 

Impairment of Financial Assets: 
The Company impairs Financial Assets other than those measured at fair value through profit or loss or designated at 
fair value through other comprehensive income on expected aedil losses. The estimation of expected ~t loss 
includes the estimati.on of probability of default (PD), loss given default (LGD) and the exposure al default (EAD). 
Estimation of probability of default apart from involving trend analysis of past delinquency rates include an estimation 
011 forward-looking Information relating to not only the counterparty but also relating to the industry and the economy 
as a whole. The probability of default is estimated for the entire life of the contract by estimating the cash flows that are 
likely to be received in default scenario. The lifetime PD is reduced to 12 month PD based on an assessment of past 
history of default cases in U months. Further, the loss given default is calculated based on an estimate of the value of 
the security recoverable as on the reporting date. The exposw-e at default is the amount outstanding at the balance 
sheet date. 

Defined Benefit Plans: 

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-ffllployment benefits and the present value of such obligations are 
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ 
from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary inaeases. 
mortality rates and attrition rate. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined 
benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting 
date, 

Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments: 

When the fair values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured 
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the 
Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, 
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include 
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors 
could affect the reported fair value of Fmancial Instruments. 

Income bxes 

Significant judgments are involved in detennining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be 
paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions. 

In assessing the realizability of deferred income tax Assets, management considers whether some portion or all of the 
deferred income tax Assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred income tax Assets is dependent 
upon the generation of future t11JCable income during the periods in which the temporary differences become 
deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversals of deferred income tax Liabilities, projected future taxable 
income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based on the level of historical taxable income and 
projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred income tax Assets are deductible, 
management believes that the Company will realize the bendlts of those deductible differences. The amount of the 
deferred income tax Assets considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future 
taxable income during the carry forward period are reduced. 
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The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements are set out in Para 
B below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years p,esented 

B Ma.terlal Accounting Policies 

1 Properly, Plant And Equipment 
The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment ('PPE') recognised as 
of transition date measured as per the Previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost of the PPE. 

PPB are slated at cost less acrumulated depreciation and acrumuiated impairment losses. Cost includes purchase price 
(after deducting trade dlscount / ttbate), non-refundable duties and taxes, cost of replacing the component parts, 
borrowing costs and other directly attributable cost to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for ft 
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

An item of PPB is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from use. Any profit or 
loss arising on the derecognition of an item of property, plant and eqwpment is detennined as the difference between 
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recogniz.ed in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Advances paid towards acquisition of PPB outstanding at each Balanre Sheet date is calssified as capital advances 
under 'Other Non<W'N!llt Assets" 

The depreciable amount of an asset is determined after deducting its residual value. Where the residual value of an 
asset increases to an amount equal to or greater than the asset's carrying amount, no depreciation charge is recognised 
till the asset's residual value decreases bclow the asset's carrying amount. Depreciation of an asset begins when it is 
available for use, i.e., when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the intended 
manner. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is classified as held for sale in 
accordance with IND AS 105 and the date that the asset is derecognised. 

Depreciation on the PPE, is provided over the useful life of Assets which is in line with the useful life indicated in 
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on all Assets is provided on straight line basis. Depreciation on 
property plant and eqwpment added/ disposed off during the year is provided on pro rata basis with reference to the 
date of addition/ dlsposal. The Assets' residual values, useful lives and methods of depn!dllllon are reviewed at each 
Finandal year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

Description of the Asset llstima~ Useful Life 
Fumil:w'e and FIXlureS lOYears 
Computers 3 Years 
Office F.aui:oment 5 Years 

2 Intangible Assets 
The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of Intangible Assets recognised as of transition date 
measuml as per the Previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost. 

Intangible Assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost After initial recognition, Intangible 
As.5ets are earned al cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Software (not being an integral part of the related hardware) acquiml for intemal use are treated as Intangible Assets 
and is amortised over a period of 3 years on straight-line method over the estimated useful economic life. 

An itein of Intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use 
or disposal Any profit or loss arising from derecognition of an intangible asset is determined as the difference between 
the net disposal proceeds and the canying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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3 Impairment of PPE and Intangible As5'ts 

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE and other intangible Assets 
to determine whether there is any indication that these Assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication 
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (If any). 
Where it is not possible to estimate the r«overable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the 
recoverable amount of the cash-generating wut iCGU') to which the asset belongs. When the carrying amount of an 
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable 
amount. The resulting impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

lu!coverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less cost to 
sell, recent market transactions are taken into account If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate 
valuation model is used. 

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the canying amount of the asset or CGU is increased to the revised 
estimate of its recoverable amount but so that the Increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset or CCU in prior years. A reversal 
of an impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

4 Inventories 
Work-in-progress• Real estate projects (including land inventory): represents C06t incurred in respect of unsold area of 
the real estate development projects under construction or cost incurred on projects where the revenue is yet to be 
recognised. Real estate work-in-progress is valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Direct expenditure relating to construction activity is inventnrised. l.ndittct expenditure (including borrowing costs) 
during construction period is invento.rised to the extent the expenditure is related to construction or is incidental 
thereto. Other indirect expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction period which is 
neither related to the construction activity nor is incidental thereto is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Finished goods• Units : Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Net rea.li:r.able value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion 
and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

The amount of any write-down of inventories to NRV and all abnonnal losses of inventories are recogniud as expense 
in the Statement of Profit And Loss in the period in which such write-<lown or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal 
of the write-down of inventories arising from increase in the NRV is recognized as a reduction from the amount of 
inventories reco211.ized as an eXl)ellSC in the period in which reversal occurs. 

5 Fm Value Mus11ttment 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market partidpants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price ls directly observable or 
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes 
into account the characteristics of asset and liability if market participants would take those into consideration. Fair 
value for measurement and / or disclosure purpo6CS in these Financial Statements is determined in such basis except 
for transactions in the scope of Ind AS 2,, 17 and 36. Normally at initial recognition, the transaction price is the best 
evidence of fair value. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when 
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interesl 
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A fair value measurement of a Non-Financial Asset takes into aa:ount a market participant's ability to generate 
ea>nomic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would 
use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques those are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are 
availAble to measure fair value, maximizlng the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of 
unobservable inputs. 

AD Fmancial Assets and Financial Liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Standalone Financial 
Statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whol~ 

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted} market prices in active markets for identical Assets or Liabilities. 
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
directly or indirectly observable. 

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
unobservable. 

Fmancial Assets and Fmancial Liabilities that are recognized at fair value on a recurring basis, the Company 
determines whether transfers have occuned between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization at the end 
of each reporting period. 

6 Financial lnstnunents 
A Financial Instrument is any contract that gives rise to a Financial Asset of one entity and a Fmancial Liability or 
F.quity Instrument of another entity. The Company recognizes a Financial Asset or Financlal Liability in its balance 
sheet only when the entity bea>mes party to the conlractual provisions of the instrument. 

a) Fin.tncial Assets 
A Financial Asset inter•alia includes any asset that is cash, equity instrument of another entity or contractual obligation 
to receive cash or another Financial Asset or to exchange Financial Asset or Fmancial Liability under condition that are 
potentially favourable to the Company. 

Investment in Subsidiaries 
Investment in equity shares of subsidiaries are recorded at cost less impairment. 

Financi.il Assets other th&n Investment in Subsidiaries 
Financial Assets of the Company comprise Trade Receivable, Cash and Cash F.quivalents, Bank Balances, Investment 
other than equity shares, loans to employee / related parties / others and security deposits. 

Initial Recognition and Meuuronent 
All Financial Assets are recogn.ised initially at fair value plus, in the case of Financial Assets not recorded at fair value 
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the Fmancial Asset. However, Trade 
Receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at Transaction Price. Transaction costs 
of Financial Assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed In Statement of Profit and Loss. Where 
transllCtion price is not the measure of fair value and fair value is determined using a valuation method that uses data 
from observable market. the difference between transaction price and fair value is recognised in Statement of Profit 
and Loss on the date of recognition if the fair value pertains to Level 1 or Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy and in 
other cases spread over life of the Financial instrument using effective Interest method. 
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Subs,qutnt Measurement 
For pmposes of su"6equenl measurement Financial Assets are classified in three categories: 

Financial Assets me.a.sured at Amortized Cost 
Financial Assets at Fair Value through oa 
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 

Financial Assets measured at Amortized Cost 
Financial Assets are me.a.sured at amortized cost if the Financials asset is held within a business model whose objective 
is to hold Financial Assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the Financial asset 
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding. These Financials Assets are amortized using the effective interest rate ('EIR') method, less impairment 
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into =unt any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are 
an Integral part of lhe EIR. The EIR am.ortization is Included in finance income in the Statement of Profit And Loss. The 
1.osses arising from impairment are recognized in the Statement of Profit And Loss . 

Flnanclal Ass.ts at Fair Value through OCI ('FVTOCI1 
Financial Assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive Income if the Financial asset is held wilhln a 
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling Flnandal Assets and 
the contractual terms of the Financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. At initial recognition, an irrevocable election is made (on 
an instrument•by-instrurnent basis) to d.esignate investments In equity Instruments other lhan held for trading purpose 
at FVTOCL Fair value changes are recognized in the other comprehensive income ('OCI'). However, the Company 
recognizes interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Statement of 
Profit And Loss. On dererognltlon of the Financial asset other than equity Instruments designated as FVJ'OCI, 
cumulative gain or loss previo~y recognised in OCI is ttclassified to lhe Statement of Profit And Leport 

Financial Assets at Fair Value throqgh Profit or Loss ('FVTPL 1 
Any Financial Asset lhat does not meet lhe criteria for classification as at amortized cost or as Financial Assets at fair 
value through other comprehensive income is classified as Financial Assets at fair value through pro6t or loss. Further, 
Financial Assets at fair value lhrough profit or loss also include Fmancial Assets held for trading and Financial Assets 
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial Assets are classified as held for 
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in lhe near term. Financial Assets at fair value 
through profit or loss are fair valued at each reporting date with all the changes recognized in lhe Statement of Profit 
And Loss. 

Dererognition 
The Company dererognlscs a Financial asset only when lhe contractual rights lo lhe cash flows from the asset expire, 
or when it transfers the Financial asset and substantially a1l the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset lo another 
entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues 
to conlrol the Financial asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in lhe asset and an associated liability for 
amounts it may have to pay. 

Impairment of Financial Assets 
The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit loss ('ECL 1 model on the following: 

Financial Assets lhat are measured al Amortisro Cost; and 
Financial Assets measured at FVTOCL 

ECL is measured through a loss allowance on a following basis:-
The 12 month expected credit losses (expected aedit l055es that result from those default events on the 

Financial Instruments that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date) 
Full li1e time expected credit losses (expected credit losses lhat result from all possible default events over the 

life of Financial Instruments) 
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The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment on trade receivables or oontract Assets 
resulting from normal business transactions. The application of simplified approach docs not require the Company to 
tnc.k chanp in credit risk. However, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime EG.s at each 
reporting date, from the date of initial recognition. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other Financial Assets, the Company determines whether there has been a 
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has inc:reased significantly, lifew:ne ECL is 
provided. For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company assesses the aedit risk characteristics 
on instru.mmt-by-instrument basis. 

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows dull are due to the Company in accordance with the contract 
and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls) discounted at the original EIR. 

Impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as expense/ Income in the 
Statement of Profit And Loss. 

b) Flm.ncW Liabilities 
The Company's Financial Liabilities include loans And borrowings including bank overdraft, trade payable, aa:rued 
expenses and other payables etc. 

Initial Rerognition and Measurement 
All Financial Liabilities at initial recognition are classified as Financial Liabilities at amortized cost or Financial 
Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, as appropriate. All Financial Liabilities classified at amortized cost are 
recognized initially at wr value net of directly attributable transaction oosts. Any difference between the proceeds (net 
of transaction costs) and the fair value at initial recognition is recognised in the Statement of Profit And Loss or in the 
CWIP, if another standard permits inclusion of such cost in the carrying amount of an asset over the period of the 
borrowines usi= the Effective interest rate /'EJR'l method. 

Subsequent Measurement 
The subsequent measurement of Financial Liabilities depends upon the classification as described below:-

Finandal IJabilities dassi!itd as Amortiud Cost 
Financial Liabilities that are not held for trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at 
the end of subsequent accounting periods. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. Interest expense that is not capitalized as 
part of costs of Assets is included as Finance oosts in the Statement of Profit And Loss. 

Financial liabilities cLwi!ied as Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) 
Rinancial Liabilities classified as FVTPL includes Financial Liabilities held for trading and Financial Liabilities 
designated upon Initial recognition as FVTPL Financial Liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred 
for the purpose of repUJChasing in the near term. Financial Liabilities designated upon initial recognition at FVfPL 
only if the aiteria in Ind AS 109 is satisfied. 

Oaecognition 
A Financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged / cancelled / expired. When 
an existing Financial liabi1ity is replac:ed by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms 
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de recognition of 
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is 
recognized in the Statement of Profit And Loss. 
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Offsetting of Financial lnstrwnenb 
Fmancial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a 
cmrently enforceable legal right to offset the rerognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to 
realise the Assets and settle the Liabilities simultaneously. 

7 Ptovisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is 
probable (i.e. more likely than not) that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Such provisions are determined 
based on management estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. When the 
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a standalone asset 
nnlv whPn thP rPimhunw>mmt i• vinuallv l"Prtain. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a cunent p~tax rate that reflects, 
the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 
recognised as a finance costs. 

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous contract is 
ronsldered to exist when a ronlJ'act under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations exceed the economic 
benefits expected to be reccived from it. 

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of management/independent experts. These are reviewed 
at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the cunent management estimate. 

Contingent Assets are not recognized, however, disclOISed in Financial statement when inflow of economic benefits is 
probable. 

8 Revenue Recognition 
The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of completed property and proportionate revenue of property 
under development 

Completed lnnntory Property 
The sale of completed property collStitutes a single performance obligation and that is satisfied at the point in time 

when rontrol transfers. 
Inventory Property under Development 
Contracts relating to the sale of property under development is considered as a single performance obligation because 
it provides a significant service of integrating the goods and services (the inputs) into the completed property (the 
combined output) which the customer has contracted to buy 

Revenue from Contracts with customers relating to property under development is rerognised over time as it has 
roncluded that, at all times, it has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date and it has no 
alternative use for the sa.id assset . Therefore, control transfers over time for these contracts 

For rontracts that meet the over time revenue recognition criteria, performance is measured using an input method, by 
reference to the costs incurred to the satisfaction of a performance obligation (e.g., resources ronsumed, labour hours 
expended, costs incurred, time elapsed) relative to the total expected inputs to the completion of the property 

Revenue from contract with customers is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to customers in an 
amoW1t that rellec:ts the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those services. Revenue from 
the sale of services is recognised at the point in time when control is trallSferred to the customer. 
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Use of significant Judgemenls in revenue recognition 
• Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price could be either a 
fixed amount of consideration or variable consideration with elements such as discounls. Any consideration payable 
to the customer is adjusted to the transaction prke, unless it is a payment for a distinct product or service from the 
customer. The estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that it 
is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur and is 

reassessed at the end of each reporting period. 

The Company exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in lime or 
over a period of lime. The Company considers indicators such as how customer consumes benefits as servkes aze 
rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of enforceable right to payment for performance to 
date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of significant risks and rewards to the customer, acceptance 
of delivery by the customer, etc. 

Company collects and spends money towards maintainence of the completed projects where society is yet to be 
formed or where the affairs of the maintenance of building constructed by them has not been handed over to the 
society. Revenue is recognized at a point in time when the bill is raised to the customer for collection of maintainence 
charges. 

Interest income on Fmancial Assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost is recognised on a time-proportion 
ba5i.s using the EIR method. 

When a receivable is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amoun~ being the 
estimated future cash Oows discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues 
unwinding the discount as interest income. 

9 Borrowing Costs 
Borrowing cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the mangement of 
borrowings with reference to the effective interest rate applicable to the respective borrowingll. 

Borrowing cost pertaining to development of Jong term projects are transferred to Construction work in progress, as 
part of the cost of the projects upto the time all the activities necessary to prepare these projects for its intended use or 
sale aze complete. 

All other borrowing costs are reoongnised as expense in the period in which they are incurred 

10 Employee Benefits 
Short-term Employees Benefits 
All short term employees benefits such as salaries, wages, allowances, performance incentive, employee welfare costs, 
exgratia are recognised during the period in which the employee render services and aze measured at undiscounted 
amount expected to be paid when the Liabilities aze settled. 

Post-employment benefits 
The Company provides the following post,employment benefits: 
i) Defined benefit plans such as gratuity and 
ii) Defined Contribution plans such as provident fund. 

Defined benefits plans 
The cost of providing defined benefit plans such as gratuity is determined on the basis of present value of defined 
benefits obligation which is computed using the projected unit credit method with independent actuarial valuation 
made at the end of each annual reporting period, which recognizes each period of service as given rise to additional 
unit of employees benefit entitlement and measuring each unit separately to build up the final obligation. 
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The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discowit rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and 
the fair value of plan Assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
except those included in cost of Assets as permitted. 

Re-measurements comprising of actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and change in 
actuarial assumptions, the effect of change in Assets celling (if applicable} and the return on plan asset (excluding net 
interest as defined above) are recognised in other oomprehensive income (00) except those included in cost of Assets 
as permitted in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not m:lassified to the Statement of Profit and 
Loss in subsequent periods. 

Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and 
settlements} is recogiuscd in the Statement of Profit and Loss except those included in cost of Assets as permitted in the 
period in which they occur. 

Defined Contribution Pwis 
Contn1rutions to the Provident Fund are made at a pre-determined rate and charged to the statement of Profit and 
Loss. 

11 lncom.e Tl.Xe$ 

Income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently payable and deferred tax. Tax is recogniz.ed in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive 
income. 

Cu.mmt Tax 
Current tax is the expected tax payable/ receivable on the taxable in:ome/ loss for the year using applicable tax rates 
for the relevant period, and any adjustment to taxes in respect of previous years. Interest expenses and penalties, if 
any, related to Income tax are Included in finance cost and other expenses respectively. Interest Income. If any, relatoo 
to Income tax is included in Other Income 

DefemdTax 
Defemd tax is recognised on temporary dille.-ences between the cattying amounts of Assets and Liabilities in the 
balance sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax Liabilities are 
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax Assets aze generally recognised for all 
deductible temporary differences, tmabsorbed losses and unabsorbed depreciation to the extent that it is probable that 
future taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences, unabsorbed losses and 
unabsorbed depreciation can be utilised. Such deferred tax Assets and Uabilities aze not recognised if the temporary 
difference arises from initial recognition of Assets and Liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit 
nor the acoounting profit. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax Assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is 
no longer probable that su£6cient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax Assets and Liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the 
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax Jaws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the balance sheet date. The measurement of deferred tax Liabilities and Assets reflects the tax consequences 
that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the 
carrying amount of its Assets and Liabilities. 

I Annual Report 2023-2024 105 



RODIUMREALTYLIMITED-------------
Deferred tax Assets and Uabilities are offset when there is a legally enfon:eable right to set off current tax Assets 
ag;,.inst current tax Liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the 
Company intends to settle its current tax Assets and Liabilities on a net basis. 

U Cumnt versus Non-cwrent classification 
The Company presents Assets and Liabilities in the &lance Sheet based on cwrent/ non-current classilkation. 

a) An asset is current when it is: 

• Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle, 
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading, 
• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period. 

All other Assets are classified as non<llftel\t. 

b) A liability is current when: 

• II is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle, 
• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading, 
• It is due to be settled within twelve months af~ the reporting period, or 
• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 
period. 

All other Liabilities are classified as non-current 

c) Deferred tax Assets and Uabilities are classified as Non-current Assets and Liabilities. 

d) The normal operating cycle in respect of operation relating to under construction real estate project depends on 
signing of agreement, size of the project, phasing ol the project , type of development. project complexities, approvals 
needed And realisation of project into cash And cash equivalents and range from 3 to 5 years. Accordingly project 
related Assets And Uabilities have been classified into current And non-current based on operating cycle of respective 
projects. 

13 ~ per Share: 
Basic earnings per share is cakulated by dividing the profit from continuing operations and total profit, both 
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the year. 

C Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide notification dated 24th March 2021, has amended Schedule Ill to the 
Companies Act, 2013 to enhance the disclosure requirements in Financial statements. The Financial statements have 
been prepared after incorporating the amendments to the extent they are applicable 

D Recent accounting pronouncements 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifes new standards, ammendments to the existing standards under 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from lime to lime. For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA 
has not notified any new standard or ammendments to existing standards applicable to the Company 

I Annual Report 2023-2024 106 



RODIUM REALTY LIMITED-------------

NOTE 3 (•). PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Pmiculan 

GroaBlock 
Op4rung Bwnc. u at 01 April 2022 
Additions 
Disposals/ Adjustm,nts 
Balance u at 31 March 2023 
Additions 
Disposals/ Adjustm<nts 
Bai.-aa at 31 March 202, 

Accumuu!M O.pred.ltlon 
Opening s.J~ u at 01 April 21122 

Depreciation/ Amortisation for the year 
DlspoAis/ Ad/uslmfflU 
s.J..,.,. u •I 31 March 2023 
Depreciation/ Amortls.ation for the year 
Dlspo,als/ Adjustm""u 
s.Jana, u u 31 Mum 2112' 

NII Block 
Asat31Matth2023 
As al 31 Matth 2112' 

NOTE4 
INVESTMENTS 

IPutlculon 
Non-Cmnnt lnvestmento 

Fumlture a.rul 
Flxtuttt 

14.96 

1"-96 

14.96 

li.96 

li.96 

14.96 

0.00 
0.00 

Trad, - Unquotrd In Wholly Owned Suboldwy (At Cost) 
Rodium Dlgial INC 
1,00,000 (PY 1,00,000) sharos havingFVl USD/-fwly paid 

Offltt 
Eqalp.,..,t 

13.91 

13.92 
5.8'1 

19.79 

12.53 
0..9 

um 
0.69 

13.71 

0.90 
6Jl8 

Trade • Unquolr<I In Subsldwy LI.Pe (At Coot) (Refer Noto below) 
81 Eotsi.s LLP 
Readymge !LP 
Fluid Realty LLP 
Rodium Housing UP 
Xptria Realty LLP 

(In Rupus Lacs) 

Compmrs Total 

22.93 51.81 
8.11 8.11 

31.0. 59.92 
D.37 6.2.l 

31.41 66.J.5 

19.93 '7-'2 
3.13 3.62 

23.06 st.Of 
"30 4.98 

21.35 56.02 

7.98 8.88 
4.05 10.13 

Non Tnde Unquoh!d • In Vffltutt C.pit;,J Fund: (at Fm Voh>e through Profit or LoN) 
(i)250 units of Kota.k-lndla Growth Fund of R$. 1/1J,OOO/ -eod,. Paid up-95,SOO/-(ReferNote30(g)) 

GnndTotal 
Aunplo Amount of Unquoted lnvatmmla 

Cu:rttnt lnve,t:men«. 

Unquoted• Non Trade 
In Mutual Fund Unlto: (at Fu, Value through Profit or Loss) 

Gra.rul Tobi 
A Amount of Un -•d lnv-....i. 

NOTBL The fbuod C:.pltsl lndadtd In balanct1 l1 H follow, 
81 Estates LLP 
Rtadystsg, UP 
flu.id Rtalty I.LP 
Rodlum Housing I.LI' 
Xp<'ria ~ally LLP 

I Annual Report 2023-2024 

NOTE 3 (b) OTHER 
INTANGIBLES ASSETS 

(In Rveea Lacs) 
Computer 

Total 
SoftwlN! 

22.72 22.72 

22.72 22.72 

22.72 22.72 

8.35 8.35 
s:is S.lS 

13.50 13.SO 
5.0, 5.09 

1859 18.59 

9.22 9.22 
4.13 ,.u 

81.89 81.89 

221.10 190.6' 
7.30 5.80 

103.11 13.94 
99,12 0.75 
1.00 1.00 

431.63 212.U 

27.Sl 30.64 

S4L03 32U6 
S4L03 324.6' 

39.23 15.30 

'9.23 75.30 
39.23 75.30 

0.75 0.15 
0.15 0.15 
0.75 0.75 
0.75 0.75 
0.99 0.99 
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NOTES 
OTHSR FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Partl<u.lara 

Cmi<d at Amottlt<d COIi: Con.tldm,d Good 
Bank deposits wilh more 11,an U ll\<lllths maturity' 
Sttwity 0opco1 .. 
Others 
lnlerest Aa:rued on Loans 

•Pldg, •• o«unty for woilclng copiiil taken from bani, 

NOTE6 
Dl!FElUlED TAX ASS~ LIAB1UTIES • (N 

Deterred Tu U.bilities 
Retimnent Benefits 

Partla&Lln 

Unrullstd (gain)/loos on FVTPL MutuAI Funds 

Determl Tax Asoet: 
Expenses allowable! on Actual Payments 
PPE & Intangibles 
Unreillscd (gain)/k:& on FVTPL Mutual Funds 

Cattl.ed f01Wanl Loos 
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Tot.al 

Total 

(In Ru .. I.act) 
Non Canmt CWTfflt 

Aul Aul Ant Ant 
31 M-'> 2014 31 M-'> 2023 31 M-'> 2014 31 Much 2023 

710.50 
26.98 

'19'1.48 

A 

B 

911.69 
8.49 

920.18 

36.25 
149.08 
40.91 

Aul 
SlMMd\2014 

(1.43) 
(9.0S) 

(10.48) 

14.04 
3.35 

146Jl6 
163.4-4 

152.96 

(lnRu 

38.75 
142.66 
45.58 

226.99 

.. i...c.) 
Au l 

31Mardl2023 

(0.81) 

(0.81) 

12.25 

3.21 
2.11 

102.92 

120.49 

.uaY 
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NOTE1 
arm:R ASSIITS 

Un,,ecured •nd Cons.tdiettd Good 
AdV1U1a'S0>SuppUen (Odm lhan Capolal) 

lmbUled Re\'tfluie 
ow .. 
l'l<paid Expens,s 

NOTES 
INVENTORIES 

Wotk'ilt-Progress 
Fmished Unft, 

NOTE9 
Tl!AOE ROCDV ABLES 

Partlnal.us 

Taul 

Ul'\Walred. Undispuled and ConsidP.f'f"d Good 

Told 

Non-Currm.t 

AHl Aul 
31 Mam,202,l 31 M•t<h 2023 

Su.bTotu 

Sub Toal 

Totaf 

On Ru.- uc:iJ) 

Cimmt 

Aut Aul 
31 M ,rm 201♦ 11 M•rdl 2023 

121.61 20.93 

121.61 20.S) 

3.116.18 1.784.69 
2153,12 276.YI 
12.54 121♦ 

3)91.M 2,073.22 

w:us Z.09U5 

3.676:Jf) ♦.582.21 

355.0♦ 355.111 

m.SB LJ90.8J 

978.51 1.190.11 

NJT& T1lf C,ompany hnt U$td • Jll'll'tbl ~pcdicnt ftlt (Olllipuq l~ m-dit be! .now,~ r« trldl· t't'Cdv•blef. t.u.Ing lntu .ccount ~turical cmlit ICK& ox1M'rtrnct _,-, 
oaurdmgly, provuicm are made for expecml cm!it Jos. far amoarus due fra:n cusmnm where necessary. 

•~n.aforT~c R«tiv.bles Oabt.mdin2:for foUo.-in., .....-inttc &om due d,te of ....,.,,..._t Aut 

Pwoui.n Notdue 

Undt,putod Trio<!• Rtc,.,v,bkl>-C....idmd Cood 
Und;sputed Trade R«,iva~les- Con,idettd Good' (0.95) 
•ffgum fn ~kd art ln rttprct of prcviCHU yur 

NOTEl0 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

I Particuws 

Cashon hand 
Balances with Banks in Current Accounts 

LtMlhai.6 month, .. 
month, l)'<U 

Term Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 
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J•2Yun Wyun Mo,-1tunJ .,, t'1141,_, -¥-9 

Total 

3.00 
(37.06) 

Asat 

(92.81) 

31 March 2024 
8.79 

54.68 
18.54 

82.01 

Yeut 

978.56 
D,190.81) 

(In Ruptts Lacs) 
A, at 

31 March 2023 
1.93 

42.25 

44.18 
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NOTEll 

BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Particulns I As at 
31 March2024 

Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 
12 months• 
Dividend Account" 

557.24 

1.26 

(In Rupees Lacs) 

Asilt I 
31 March 2023 _ 

425.00 

1.26 

Total S58.50 426.2.6 
" Unclaimed Dividend of Rs. 0.32 Lacs for the financial year 2015-2016 requ.ired to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund is pending to be transferred 
•Pledge as security for working capital taken from bank 

NOTE12 

LOANS (Unsecured, Considered Good) 

I Particulars 

Ouried at Amortiaed cost : 
Loans to 

Employees 
Others (Refer Note a below) 

a. The loans are repayable on demand 

Total 

Asal 
31 Matth 2024 

2.58 
58.00 

60.58 

(In Rupees Lacs) 

Asal J 
31 March 2023 

1.32 

88.00 

89.32 

b. No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either &om borrowed funds or share premium or any 
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or enlity(ies), including foreign 
entities ('Intermediaries') with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company ('Ultimate Beneficiaries'). 
The Company has not received any fund from any party(s) ('Funding Party') with the understanding that the 
Company shall whether, directly or indiroctly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf 
of the Company or provide anv 1t11arantee, securitv or the lil<e on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 
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EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

EQUIJY SHARE CAPITAL 

Authorised Share Capital 
Issued Share Capital 

Subscn1led Share Capital 
Fully Paid-up Share Capital 
Forefeited Shares - Amount originaUy paid up on 4,85,400 Shares 
B.tlance at the beginning of the year 

Cl,anges in Equity Share Capital due to prior period em,rs 

Restab!d buance as at the !>,ginning nl the 2:ear 
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year 
BaJan« al the end of the r.ear 

AHi 
31 Ma.reh 2024 

Number Amount 
6,000,000.00 600.00 
3,733,300.00 373.33 
3,247,900.00 324.79 
3,247,900.00 324.79 

19.71 
3,247,900 344.50 

3,247,900 344.50 

3,247,900 344.50 

(In Ru Lacs) 

Asal 
31March2023 

Number AmolUII 
6,000,000.00 600.00 
3,733,300.00 3?3.33 
3,247,900.00 324.79 
3,247,900.00 324.79 

19.71 
3,247,900 344.SO 

3,247,900 344.50 

3,247,900 344.SO 

llighb, preferenas ;ind mlrictioDJ atudring Iv eodl duo of wm including ralrimons on th, distnoution of dividends and tho rrp,ymeal of apllal 

The Company has only one dass of equity share having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each hold<?r of equity share is entitle to one vole per 
share. In the e,..mt of tiquidation of the Company, the holder of the equity shat~ will be entitle to receive remaining assets of the Company. 
The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity •ham held by the ,hare holders. 

Slwahddb romotm at the end of the ear 
Promorer Nilille 

pale 
Shailesh Damji Shah 
Rohit Keshavji Dedhia 
Harish Damji N"isar 
Rohan Doopak Chltooa 
Paa.rth Deepak Chhcda 
Krupa Deepak Olheda 
Sigma Fiscals Private Umlted 

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

Shara in the Comp•ny held by eac,h 
shareholder holding more Ihm five per «nt shares 

DeepalcChheda 
Shailesh Damji Shah 
Harish Damji Nisar 
Rohit Keshavji Dcdhi• 
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Aut 
31 Marth 2024 
No. ¾ 
1,017,252 31.3291 

S88,S21 18.1291 
319,4U 9.84% 
320,230 9.86% 

9,916 0.31% 
9,327 0.29% 

11,489 0.35% 

8,160 0.25% 

¾Chanv AHi 
during the 31 March 2023 

No. 
958,922 
588,521 

319,466 
320,259 

-0.401 23,043 
-0.00% 12.173 
-0.00% 14,457 
0.001 5,394 

Asat 
31 Marth 2024 

Number I 
1,017,252 

588,521 

320,230 

319,466 

,. 
3L32% 

18.12% 

9.86% 

9.8491 

0.1 
18.121 0.001 
9.84% 0.001 
9.861 0.001' 
0.71% 0.431' 
0.37% 0.111 
0.45% 0.221' 
0.17% 0.031' 

(In Rvpees Lacs) 

Aul 
31 March 2023 

Number I 
958,922 
588,521 
320,259 
319,466 

'/4 
29.52lli 
18.121 
9.861 
9.841 
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NOTE14 
OTHER EQUTTY 

OTHER EQUITY "'!lllly 

Compone 
ntof 

Compoun 
d 

8alanc• at the b<ginnlng of th• Compmliv• Rtporling you 350.51 
Olangcs in Accounting Policy or Correction of Prior P<riod Erron 
Restated balanc,, as al 1st April 2022 350.51 
Profit for tho Comparative year ending 31st March 2023 
Othtt Comprehensivt Income for tho Comparati,·e 
Reporting year ending 31 Marth 2023 

Total Comprehensive Inrome for the Comparative year 

Transactions with owners in their cap.tdty as ownen: 
Balanc,, at the ~g:lnnlng of tht roporting ytu 350.Sl 
Changes in Accounting Policy or Corredion of Prior Period Errors 
Resuttd balanc,, as at 1st April 2023 350.51 
Profit for the Reporting year ending 31st March 2024 
Other Comprehensive lnamic for the Reporting y .. , ending 31 March 2024 
Total Compreberuive Inrome for the R,porting year 
Traru.iclions with own.., in their capacity u ownen: 

8,lan<• at th• end ol the Reporting yeu ending 31st Much 2024 350.51 

RtsttYn &c 51111 !us 

C,pllll 
Rewrve 

42Ul 

421.41 

421.41 

421..41 

42U1 

R.Wntd 

Earnings 

171.68 

171.68 
62.76 

62.76 

234.44 

234.44 
19.29 

19.29 

2SJ.73 

RemtaSutt.m 
tn.tt 

of Ddined 
Benefit 

lUO 

11.60 

:u1 

2.41 

14.01 

14.01 

4..27 
4..27 

18.28 

(In Rupees Lacs) 

TOTAL 

955.n 

955.21 
62.76 
2.41 

65.17 

1,()20.38 

lft2{).38 

19.29 
4.27 

23.56 

1,()43,94 

EQUITY SllARECAPITAL (In Ru""'• Lacs) 

INaturund Pw,,o,e of uch CQmoontntof" uitv 
Equity Component o( Compound Financial The fq1lity compooEllt part of <OllljlQWld financial inolnlment i....d by the CamJl"'Y whid,.redassml"' 61lancial 
11151rument lsbililfes and Equlty In aca,rd"""wilh tht,cl,c.,_ o/ lht"°"""'rual arr~and llltc!m,tiao:, of limnml 

lability and ,quity inolnl"""I. 

11,tained ta/1\iruts Relained eamin2s are the pro6!s that the Comoanv has earned till date. IRss dividend payouts. 

Rem=remonts of Defined Benefit Plans Gains/losses a.rising on Remea$tlrtmentsof lldinod Plan at the end of .,.,h "porting p,rlod 
Capital R...,.c Jt ropn,,cnts ....-•O!Ulrcd on ""!"l•tlon of the C4mpany 
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NOTE15 
BORROWINCS (At Amolti~d Coat) 

I Putkulan 

NON CURRENT 
Secured 
Term.Loans; 

From Bank 

UnWCMred 
Liability Comporu,nt of Compound Financial Instruments -

70,00,000 6% Non Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of 
Rs.10/- each 

Tobi 

CUR.RENT 
Secun,d 

Working C.pillll Loan horn Bonk 

Current Ma tori ties of long-term Debt 
Unsecured 

from Related Partieo (Reiff Note 30 (f)) 
ftomOlhcn 
Inttrest Accrued on above 

Nature ol Boft'O'Witlgs 
Tum Lo= from Capri Clobal CaDlt.al Limited I• H<untd bv ; 

Tola! 

a. First and Exclusive Ow-ge by way of Registered Mortgage over the 
Development Rights, Title, lnto.ttSts of the Devcloper/ Borrower ond all the 
present and future structures there upon to the extent of the 
Developer/Borrower's share. 
b. First &t Exclusive ~ by the way of regitrtered hypoth«ation over all 
the present and future cash flows of the project including receivables from 
sold area, recoverable from the bank guarantee in respect of the project. 
c. Tiie .-id loa.n is further secured by assignment of ins\lraJ,ce policies of 
the adequate value for the project in favour of the Lender. 

Tenn loan from 100 Bank 
Secured against Mortgage of Unit No 401 and 402, 4th floor, x~u.be, 
Mumbai, property owned by Promotera and the.ir Relatives, of the 
Company, 

BORROWINCS (At A.uiortued C:0.t) 
6¼ Non Cumulative Optionally Convertible Prefuence Shares 

?70.32 

495.78 

~.JO 

1,067.37 

1..119.70 

2,465.90 

812.49 
1,338.5"2 

6,803.98 

(1n a .. .,.. •• Lae1l 
,.. .. 

SJMa,:di202S 

1,815.Sl 

454.74 

2,270.25 

1,o72.87 

387.69 

2,29'/.40 

962.50 
1,352.27 

6,092.73 

lnlflest Rate & Term, Of Repayment 
I 

1) Rq>ayable in 48 months from the date 
of flJ'$I disb\lnement Including 
moratorium period of 24 montha. 
Interest is 16.35% p.a (P.Y. -14.75%-
15.35%). 
2) Repayable in 24 months from the date 
of first cilibunement including 
moratorium period of U months. 
Interest is 16.35% p.a (P.Y. -15.35%). 

I 
Repayable In 180 months from the date 
of first dl9bursement. lntettst 9 .80% 

nn Ru~es Lacs) 

All other terms and conditions of the 70,00,000 6% Non Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference Sha.res of FY 
Rs 10/-fully paid will remain the same as of the 70.00,000 9% Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference Shares 
of FY Rs 10/ • fully pald. The original preference shares were for a term of 20 Years from 31st March, 2008 being the 
date of allotment, accordingly the 70,00,000 6% Non Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of FY Rs 
10/- fully paid would mature on 31st March, 2028. The component part of compound financial instrument Is 
classified as financial liability. 

WorkJng Capital Loan from Indian Oversaes Bank 
Working Capital Loan from Indian Oveneas Bank is repayable on demand and is aecured by waiy of lien over Term 
Deposits and further Personal Guarantee of Managing /Whole lime Directors. It carries interest rate of 7 .71" p.a. 
(Previous Year 7.71 %). 

I I 
Loans from Related Parties and Othen I 
Unsecured Loans from Related Pa.riles and Other$ carries lnterest@U%. (Previous year12%) and are repayable on 
demand. The unsecured loa.n holders have given their consent regarding waiver of interest for Financial Year 2023-
24, on their unsecured loan except for two parties. Hence no provision of interest has been made of the waived 
interest. 
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NOTE16 
PROVISIONS 

Pa::rticolan Non--Cunent 

Aut A.t at 
31 Mucll2mf 31MMch2023 

Provision for EmploYN Bene!lta (Reier Note 30 (t)) 29.28 44.34 

Total 2.9.28 
NOTE17 
TRADE PAYABLES 

P«rticulan 

Outstandltlg due of Micro and Sm111 Enltipdo .. (R<,ftt N-30 (<)) 
Outstanding due of Creditor.; other than Wero and Small Enterprises 

• . ofTr~e: °P2v2bles 

PmkuJ.,. 

I i)MSME 
(il) Othors 

Pmkul... 

I i)MSME 
(ii)Ol!m-s 

NOTE18 
OTHER FINANCIAL UABIUTTES 

Pu11cuhr■ 

Unclaimed Dividends 

NOTE19 
OTHER LIABlUTTES 

Pmkul... 

Con tract Uablities (Revenue tt<clved in advance) 
Statutory Dues 
Or.bit Balance in Subsidi.t.ry 
Employee Benefits Payabk 
0th ... 

Total 

Outoundln■ for folloWU1• ~ 
1-liwll 

1-2y•-.... 
6M . 

50.75 20.S~ 

Total 57.211 211.52 

Outeta.nd•-..• for !ollowi .. • .... 
Laalbml 1-2y .... ...... 

0.56 . 
139.36 201.0, 

Total m.!12 :zm.o, 

Total 

Total 

(1n lluottt Laa 
Current 

A.tu A.tat 
JtMum:zmt 31Matth2lW 

20.81 

20.81 Of 

(In Rupees Loco) 

Cuntnl I 
31 M:;: 202A I 31 ~ 2023 

6.44 0.56 
322.33 340.45 

328.77 341.Dl 

ocb from due date of vavmt:at 

Wyun A.tu 
3'.l M■:rch :ZOU 

. 6.U 
251.06 322.33 

2SL.06 328.77 

• ods from duo d.,. of I 

My..,. A.tu 
31Marcb202A . 0.56 

. 340.45 

341.Dl 

(In RUf"N Loa) 

1.26 1.26 

L26 L26 

1,075.00 91.76 
28.77 34-60 

56M 
19.93 

!,180.H 

39.82 

64.18 
222-611 

453.CS 

During lhe year ended 31•1 Man:h. 2024, the Company recognised Revenue of Rs. 79.90/ • Laa ( rr.vious year Ra. 1288.16 Laa) arising 
&om opening UN!amed revenue (contrKt Uabllilies). 

Movement ol contract 11.abWt:IH la u wwln · 
As at beginning of the year 
Recognlsed u revenue &om contracts with C'U~tomers 
Advance from CWJtoolt!rs received during the year 
Balance at the dose of the year 
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Aut 
31Matth202A 

91.76 
(79.90) 

1063.14 
1,075.00 

31 March 2023 
l,055.11 

(1,288.16) 
32(,81 

91.76 
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NOTB20 
REVllNt.ra FROM OPERA TIO NS 

I Particulars 

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 

Income from Property Development 
Income from Sale of Shop 
Other Opera ting Revenues: 

Miscellaneous 

Total 

(ln Rupees Lacs) I YearEndcd I YearEnded I 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

1,788.% 
92.00 

100.14 

1,981.10 

2,174.95 

97.00 

101.05 

2,373.00 

The Management <1etennines that tile segment mtomiabon reporte<I IS suttioent to meet tne disclosure objecbve 
with respect to disaggregation of revenue under IND AS 115 Revenue from C.Ontnct with Customers. Hence, no 
separate disclosures of disaggregated revenues are reported. (Refer Note 30 (b)) 

Reconciliation of revenue recoltnised with the contracted price is as follows: 

PartiCUW'S 

Gross Sales (Contracted Price) 
Reductions towards variable consideration 
Revenue recognised 

NOTB21 
OTHER INCOME 

Particubrs 

Interest Income 
Dividend Income on Current Investments 
Net Gain on Sale of Investments class!Hed as FVTPL 
Share of Profit in Subsidiary 
Net Gain on Fair Value Cllanges on Financial Assets classified as FVTPL 
Miscellenous Income 

NOTB22 
COST OF DEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION 

Cost of Development Rights / Land Acquistion 
C.Onstruction and Direct Cost 
Administration and General Expenses 
Borrowing C.Osts 

I Annual Rcpon 2023-2024 

Tota.I 

Tot&! 

Year Ended 
31 March 2024 

1,788.% 

1,788.96 

(1n Rupees Lacs) 
Year Ended 

31 March 2023 
2,174.95 

2,174.95 

(ln Rupees Lacs) I Year Ended I Year Ended I 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

124.16 122.42 
0.14 
4.39 10.63 

235.92 172.10 
35.96 
1.28 129.01 

401.85 4M.16 

(In Rup~ Lacs) 

I Year Ended I Year Ended I 
. 31 March 2024 . 31 March 2023 . 

85.95 1(17.88 
379.07 581.17 

78.18 74.34 
252.15 329.96 

795.35 1,093.35 
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NOTE23 
CBANGF.5 IN INVENTORIFS OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK-IN­
PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE 

I Particulars 

Cosing Stock: 
Finished Goods 
Work-in-Progress 

Less: Opening Stock: 
Finished Goods 
Work-in-Progress 

NOTE24 
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 

PuticulilIS 

Salaries and Wages 
Contribution to Provident Fund, Gratuity and Other Funds 
Staff Welfare Expenses 

NOTE25 
FINANCE COSTS 

Particulars 

Interest on Loans and Deposits 
Interest on Working Capital Facilities 
Other Borrowing Costs; 

Interest on Liability Component of Compound Fmancial Instruments 

Others 

~ Amounts Capitalised to the cost of qualifying assets 

I Annual Report 2023-2024 

Tetal 

Total 

(In Rupees Lacs) 

I Year Ended I Year Ended I 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

355.04 355.04 
3,676.20 4,58221 
t031.24 4,937.25 

355.0-i 355.04 
4,58221 5,578.62 
4,937.25 5,933.66 

906.01 996.41 

(In Rupees Lacs) 

I Year Ended I Year Ended I 
. 31 March 2024 . 31 March 2023 . 

24.56 39.84 

7.87 7.94 
3.69 4.57 

36.12 5235 

(In Rupees Lacs) 

I Year Ended I Year Ended I 
. 31 Man:h 2024 . 31 March 2023 . 

221.70 233.90 
196.21 'llf, ,87 

41.04 37.55 
10.U 5.00 

469.06 503.32 
(25215) (329.96) 

216.91 173.36 
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NOTE26 
OTHER EXPENSES (In Rupees Lacs) 

IParticulaIS I Year Ended I Year Ended 
~1 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Power and Fuel 
Legal & Professional Charges 
Rent (Refer Note 30 (d)) 
Rates and Taxes 
Insurance 
Printing and Stationery 
Repairs and Renewals: 

Buildings 
Travelling and Conveyance 
Communication Expenses 
Auditors' Remuneration: 
As Auditors: 

Audit fee 
Tax Audit fee 
Other Services 

Sales Promotion Expenses 
Net loss on Fair Value Changes on Financial Assets classified as FVIl'L 
Donation 
Commission 
Bank Charges 
Interest paid on Statutory Dues 
Miscellaneous Expenses 

I Annual Report 2023-2024 

Total 

7.51 6.17 
17.02 18.41 
U.00 U.00 
2.69 1.01 

16.98 16.38 
4.38 3.73 

90.66 
4.27 
1.35 

2.00 
0.75 
1.25 
4.00 
0.33 

5.00 
0.22 
3.48 

49.30 

n9.19 

106.99 
2.69 
1.19 

2.00 
0.75 
1.95 
4.70 
1.03 
8.38 
0.04 
4.86 
0.43 
1.44 

33.89 

223.34 
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NOTE27 
A. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

Far the ?apo,t ol Company~ Capllal Managm,,nt. capital lndud•s t,sued l!quity Capital. and Retail1fd l!amingt atllibulable to the llquity Holders 
olthe Company. The primary objective cl the Company'1C.pilll Managtmtnl Is to mAXimlJe thtShar> Holder Valot. 
The Compony manages ils capital stru-. and mam adjustments in the light ol chonges in eainomic oondiliOlll and ""!uirern-of the finardal 
cov..- and 10 ccnllnue u a gou,g ,.,_,,, To INintaln or ad;u.t du, capital •iructure. du, Company may adjust the dlv!dend payment to 
slw:eholdm. retwn capital to slweholden or issue new ,hare,. 

The Compony monilon capllll using a rolio of 'Ne, Debt' lo 'llquity'. for thlt purpo ... net debt II dellned at tot.II borrowlngs len C..h It Bank 
Bllancesand CllllorCumnt lnvestmffltL 

The Company's Net Debt to llquity Ratios.,. as follow<: 

W....t bearing l.oaN and Bonowing, 
Le,: Cash and Short Tmn Deposits 
Net Debt 

Equity 
Od,or llquity 

Tot>! Capital 
C.pllal and Net Debt 
Net Debt to llquity Ratio 

L FINANOAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

fin Rupm !Ms) 
As al I As ,t 

31 Matdl:ZOU _ 31 Matdl21123 
2,385.80 2,657.94 

82.01 44-18 
2,467.82 t,112.12 

344..50 
\,00.94 

1,388.41 
3,8S6-26 

344..50 
1,020.38 

1,364.83 
.. 067.00 
6U4S 

The Company's principal Finandal Uabili!ies comprise Loans and Bonuwing>, Trade and ()the, Payabl.._ The main pwpo,, of these Floandal 
IJol,lllda b lo finance the operations of the Company. The principal Firwondal "'6eb includo Tnde and OtlM!r Rl<civablet, lnvntm- In Mutual 
The Company has usesaed marlcet risk, mdit risk Mid liquidity risk lo its firuur:ial liabilities. 

I) Ma,iiet Rlak 
,\1.Uket ~ JS tne mk Of I05S OI tutu.n! earrunp, tm viJua or ash ttow, w t INY resu.lt JrOm • change m the pnce ot a tmmoaJ mstrument, as a 
result ollntcrst rata and other prioo rub. PiNncial in,vummts alfected by marlcet rbb, primarily ir,clude loano It borrowing,, inv-ents and 
other receivables, payables and bonowi.ng,. 

-tRat.iU,b 

lnlmst rate risk can be rither lair value interest rate or wh flow interest rate riilc. Fllir value inlsest rate risk is the risk ol changes in lair values of 
Axed - bearing lnvatrnents bocsu,e of RuctuolioN in the t,,- nts. Cash flow mtert,t " '• risk II the risk that the futurecuh flowl of floaring 
inlcresl bearing in-lma\b will ftuctua.ts because of floovations in the interat rota. 

Eapotun to IAlfflll rai. d,k 
The Company'> u,mst r,te risk arises from bcaTowings. Borrowing, iS6U«I at fixed ntes exposes to fair vilue in12r,s1 rats dsk. The - rm 
prolile of the Company'J lnt.,...~bearlng luw,dal lnst,umonts •• reported to the rnaNg..,,.,,t al di, Company is., folk,ws. 

(In Rup,a Laa) 

F&irvaJ .. l<mi6Ylty arulytb forfiud-rur inttruments 

Aul 
31MArd\2014 

6)'3l.56 

I Alat 
31 Mardi 21123 

7,(110.71 

The Company doe, not aa:ount for any fix,d.,.i,, finandal 1.s,ets or lirw1daJ U.bllllits at Wr value through profit or loo,. Therefore, • dw,gr In 
intfflst rat,. at the reporting date would not alfect p<oflt or loa. 

Commodfl)I I'll<• 1lJak 
Tht Company, actMties are eapooed to Sitt! and "'"""t prlct rukt and therorca. Its overall risk manag,mmt prognm foanes on the volalilt nature 
ol the S1ttl andcrm,nt marl<et. lhuueeldng to mJnlmlz, potentlAI advenetliedS on the groop'J flrw>dal pmormancrcnatal<JDI of sud, volatility. 

Tht Bo.ud ,.v1,w, rbk m&nlg<fflffll polldn. 

Fordg,, °'1ml<'y lllilu 

Currency risk ii not m•teri•~ as the Company, prtm,,y business adivitio, ,re within India and does not have signlfioml e,posutt In foreign cumncy. 
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If) Cndlt IUtl< 
Cmlit ml< is the rilk of &nana.11 ... to lhe Company ii I cus-er o« c~ lo 1 6nancial instrument fail, to meet its contmtual obligation,, 
and arb<s pdndpally from tho Company's r,a!vablts from costom,m and ln....,,,,..15 In dl!bt seruritlos. 

The canylng amount of following f!Nndol.....,. rq,rc,enta 1he mu!mum crl!dit •"I"'•""'· 
'tnde and Othtt htttnb1et 
The Oxnponr, CXJlO""" to cndil riok is lnAU<tl(td rnAlnly by the indlvld\,AI char"'1ui'1b of ach cu,tomn-. How..-u atdit r1slc will, ttptdt IO 
IBde ...,.;val,le is lhnOII negligible in C1Se of i1s reoidenlial sale baswss as the same is dorie to lhe fact tNt in CiSO of its re,idenoal oell business it 
don not hAndovtt .,.._;on till ent!ro outsl>ndlng is roceiv,d. 

The """gal tradt recdvblos is as 1ou .... , 

Mote than 6 ..,nths 
Othcn 

lmabDtl\ts In O.bt s«urltlff, Limited Uahlllty l'at1nalhlpo, Lo..,. to Rdliled Patti'" and Projo<t Dtpoolt1 

919.63 851.32 
58.9> 339.'9 

978.58 l,l!J0.81 

The Company hu investments in l!llltual fund,, limited liability pannership finN and p,oject dtpoms. The set1l<mmt of ,uch il!ltruments is linked to 
the comph,tlon of lhe respective U11dmymg proJects. Such Financial >.$sets.,. not lmpaJnd u on lhe n,pordng date. 

c..b and Bank bdmces 
The Company holds cash arul cash equlnlents will> baroc, whkh .,e having hlgl,e•t safety ranldng, aod honl,e has a low atdit risk. 

iii) Liquidity Rlllt 
UquJdlty rhk It 1he rlok !hat tht Company wW e.-ntot difficulty In meeting lht obllg1tlo111 UM>Cbl<d with lta Anondal liabilltlcl lhlt aructtled by 
delivering cam or another liNncw asset. TheCoo\pony's approach to~ liquidity is to.,,._ .. far u possible, that ii wW have sufficient 
llquidlty to moet its liablli~es whm th,y ue due, Wldff both ""1nll Ind ltressed candltions, wllhout Incurring unaoo,ptoble 1 ..... or mldng damage 
to lhe Compa,y's r,putation. 
Mmogan,nt .-iton rolling f-of the Company't llquidlty pool lion 011 the bosls of expo<ted wh flows. This .,..,;toring includes financial 
ra~ and tam into aoc:ount tho ll<XtiSibllity of cash arul cash equivll<n1s. 

The Coo,pany has access lo hmd, from debt markets through bank loan. The Company invesl5 it> swplus funds in ba,,k lmd d,posit Ind debt ba!,d 
1m1nw fllnda. 

A. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Contd.) 

&porur, to Uqulcllty Rlsk 
The following are the remaining oontractual maturities of financial liabilities aJ the reporting date. 

Mll'dl 31, 2Jl2' 

Flnmdal Uabililles 

Non Current 
Borrowings 
Cw-rent 
Borrowings 
Trade Payablos 
Others 

M.udJ. 31, 2023 

Financial ll•bllities 

NonCµmnt 
Borrowings 

Qmll1 
Borrowings 
Trade Pay•bles 
Othm 

I Annual Rcpon 2023-2024 

Canylng Amount 

2,385.80 

1,067.37 
328.77 

1.26 

Curylng Amounl 

1,072.87 

3'1.01 

1.26 

Total 

2.385.BO 

1,067.37 
3'}.8.77 

1.26 

Total 

2,.657.94 

1,072.87 

341.01 

126 

I 
Conludual cub flows 

WilhlnU I 
month, 

1,119.70 

1,067.37 
3'}.8,77 

1.26 

1·2 y ..... I 

Contractual cub Oowo 

'3/rl.69 

1,072.87 

3'1.01 

1.26 

852.59 

(lnR upea Laa) 

2,,i;yun 

601.44 

357.50 

I Mon,than5 .. .,. 

I 
MattthanS ...... 

1,()60.16 
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Note28 
F.alr Values and Hitn.rchy 
This section explains the judgements and estim.ites made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are 
a) recognised and measured at fair value and b) measured at amortised. cost and for which fair values are disclooed in the 
Standalone Financial Statements. To provide an indication about the rcllabWty of the Inputs used in detennlnmg fair value, 
the Company has das.silied its financial instruments Into the~ levels prescribed in the Indian Ao:ounting Standard. 

(lnRu sl.acs) 
Fair Valu Value 

Particulars Hierarchy A.ut As at 
31Mudi2024 31Mudi2023 

Fmandal Assets 

- Investments LcvclOnc 39.23 75.30 
• Investments Level Two 27.51 30.64 

e · ues aa meas 
the closing NAV as at the reporting period 
Level 2: This includes financial instruments measured using net assets value received from Venture Capilal Fund 

Pair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost (In Rupees Lacs) 
Aaat Asa.I 

Partkulus 31Muclt2024 31 Muclt 2023 
l'air Valu Value 

FinanculAa-
Loans 60.58 89.32 
Security Deposits 63.23 47.24 
Interest Accrued on Loans and Deposits 40.91 4.5.58 
Bank DenMits 770.50 911.69 
rmandal Uabllllies 
Borrowings 8,070.09 8,362.98 

The canying amounts of Trade Receivables, Cash and cash Equivalents, Bank balances other than cash&: Cash Equivalents, 
Other Receivables, Trade Payables and Unclaimed Dividend are considered to be the same as their fair values due to the 
C'UlTent and short-term nature of such balances. 

NOTE29 
The Company has no tax liability for the year ended March 31, 20'24 and March 31, 2023 and accordingly reconciliation of tax 
expense Is not given. 
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NC>n30 
AD Om ON INl'ORMATIO}IIEXPI.ANA 110."5 

a) f.a.mJn.p Pa Stw. (Buie u,4 OUu.tcd) 

1..-.. 
Pro6V~) ute, Tox 
W<lg,,o,d Nw,ibff ol&iuJtySlwa(F""' Vol.,. Rt.10/-) 

E.tmi,,ppatlwo --
Eomlng, pa tlwo- Diluted 

'b) ot.c:IMIUH vndcot Ind AS JOI. "Oper.t..1 $,tp:at:nt" 
(IJEntlty ..W.dbclc>owo ~ by Ind AS lOh,uo d<taUtd b<lo,r. 

flfi) 'NorH:.unffll auelS (other lha..n dtfe:md WI auet, and flnanc:IA) instrwnrntt) 
India 

Outskle tndlai 

... Laa 
1':o,. ... 
h 

(Iv) l'ranuctjon1 with lingle 11'.ldd'nal t'UNOmct whkti amoutttt to lOS or d)ONt ol the COt'nP"')'1• R.cvenue. 
B+;A.lliam<Life....,,..,..CoLtd 
1!opj Allw,.., c:.n.nn,_,.,,.. Co Ltd 

Notti-

ly::r..=.311 Yur£rukcl31 
Matth2'123 

19.29 62.76 
3,2.47,900 5,247,900 

11.59 1.93 
Q.59 1.93 

E~::~11 Ye• Enckd: $1 
March2'123 

1,96U0 2,373.01 

1,961.10 2.373.DI 

1,981.10 2.373.lll 

1,96U0 2,373.DI 

811-'5 938.211 

811.75 938.211 

E~~1I Yeul:Adtd.31 
MM<h2'123 

30?.16 
42<.72 

(IJ TheComp,ny ~ mppd lnlfflllo In th< it..! &t,t, Devtlopm ... •nd-.'!1-.11'111,e...,..,.. ol Ind AS 11111 ' Opendr,as.p,.,,t•.,. -.ldffld 10 
--slngl,p,u,wy-TheCocr,pa,,ydoconotho,eU1yopm,'"""-J,,dJ1,Hmcc<l!ocloou>•mvioogcdinlhc"""""""'Sbndud~­
""l"i.ffd. Non,-.epo,biblt •gznents hive not been dl,clcetd u W'UIDoated N<Ol"IC':ill1'g tltffl ln vSew of thtir l'l\llimlJity, 1n \'WW ol theabo\lt. primuy and 
"""'OWJ' ttponl,,g dl,do,.,,.. Jor bu,ln.,./-•phbl ,._,.,. not appUcable 

cl Diod_,,.. ...,...n,, Mlcro,Smlll aod Medium~ O.V.lopmentA<I, 2006 ()(SMEil), 

n. dd.tliJa al lllbilititw to Miero and SrnaU ~ to lhe Q.ttnt WorNlion awllalll• wllh the C-oulptny art sf \'ff! unde-, Thlt hu bttn rtlltd i.,pon bf the ,1oc 

t:-=:1
1 v:~1 

I 
(I) l'l1odpol - ~ w,poid 10 Nppilm II U th<md of 1M 11((0.,..,,g you 6.44 0.56 
Not,., Olhet' WoMN~oo/ dbclooureo .......... poy,MD !Nde b<Jond .ppolol,d d .... II,-,muod I< paid anclaHn,ilati,,. - .,.,_,. •Pfllablt, bok,g 

d) The Campan(• letllltng amn.paw.nl» ant In ms-ct ol operaq lNN!I for office ptffl'l!Nt. The lt..rng amnprwntll art for one,-, and 1tt UIUllly ffl'll!W1t,;,f 

by a1"""1 coosentoa,gmd """'· Tht•8FPtelcue=tdopoy,l,lt.,.ch&rgd •-· 

e) Ot.dNmet • pa IND AS• 19 ~ Employee &tndita 

D11rinc lhl y.,. the compey hit f'tC'IIFI.Kd dw loilowi,. lfflOIUlll In lh15'1tll'!ffllffit ol J'n)flt -,d 1.-: 

1,art1aaan 
Splo;,;?, eantnbui3on • ~, Piind• 
-Jndudecl in• Carttributioa to Provident and ~f\lnds-(Now 24). 

--•bllga-(\J""""'ed) 
Tha vll•tlon rnulh for Iha ddirwcl ba-.A1 gni~pt.n u at JJ.;3.2024 are proc111011d iR the t.a1Me1 btlow; 

90wp UI the Ptacm Vllutof O!,liob 

,._,,. vo1 .. o1 Obllptloa u '""" bllfnnln& 
0.,,.,.5,,vaCou 
~~orco,t 
-< .. -.....J) (plnJ / 1ouwi,,g1rom: . ..... 1n .... __ _ 

• C'XpfflC1'ICt nNfU (i.e. Actual expuieru•s ll!ilSlltl'lpcioN) 
llndillt P•Jd 

l'lacr1I Vlliaco/Oltligatiim" N lheG>tl 
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Yu,£adcd I 
n Mardi 201• 

Ml 
(6J3) -

(la B.vpttS uct) 

Y•at fadN I 
31M¥ol!l23 

Mi 

Ycu'Endnt 
J1 Madt:lDD 

44.92 
3.91 

""" 
(Om) 
(:1.1$) 

'8,611 
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i) f.lpcnMt ~ llllht lncocntSCA1wnt I P.utka.l.ln 

cumn: Su-vb o. 
t-:tt 1nlettM Colt/ ('IDcomt} mthe Ntt DdiM1 kMO.t Ulbllity / (Mlet) 

iiQ OtNI' C--,,rumJn hu:w 

""""""(&ob)/­
•-inllNndol .......... 
• upcdfflc,t 'fiuiUQ (l.e. Al,1\w ~nee YI .-zmpdoN) 

ltdum..-. AlftMMD~U'll'm'.st b'lt'CCle 

Com.ec-mt! ol dlfiMd bmmt itwta ftcOf!!Cd iD other a:,cnpnh«Miw incolDt 

ff) AdurW Aaumptt.c,lu 
a. FlaMdal MuinptiOftl 
'n-: pdndPa! &nandal uswnptions used in 1!11! valuation are shown in the b.ble bdow: 

1, .......... 
or.count ram (ptt ...,11.in) 

s.&ary gn,wth rate (per annum) .. ~phk--
1•-
MoNlilyRole 
Attrl.doft tafet. hued an age: (pa- a.nnw:n) 

UptoSly_,, 

t} t>it,doii,..,.. u ,-om AS• JJ• ~ ~ 

v) MIOllllt,. Tlfabis1NI ~ryfllfllt,ft Oalilfto. 
a.5-IIMly4Mlyt!lt 

y..,11Ad,d 
'1Matdt20'U 

3.1'1 
"3 
,.u 

YeuENled 
31 Mardi 202A 

U'l 
(6.CI) 

Aul 
31M.uch20U 

-&,II 

..,,,. ,~ 

YW'Ea.4-4 
J1 M:uch. 2023 

v ........ 
n..-:rm 

.. ... 
n..-202> 

..,,, 
S.06 .... 

\1),01) 
13.15) 

.u, 

Sigritican1.c.1uaiwl ~fortt.d~tionollbeddined ~tolitig•tb.vc~nill!,.~MlcyincraM llld cn.otlaity. llittffllllMtytNI,.. 
.,._ ha-w bN\ ............... .......a,1 lblotdl111 ol 0. llOIII •h IIIIIG( llw ..Wbthold • CMJw aMII 

·--"" __ Olli __ , 

, .......... 
Dua,w,t-(· / • !SJ 
S ,.__IIOlh_. ........ IICI talld-'-' ....,, -.. (· /. ,., 
I . to._.1hMlo...it1 ..... __. 

c. Uhd llllftu.•~• ~o.llFJ.... 
. ~g amn,_.,. INI F11Mltl1 Mey 
Theachtmt,1'~ ·-~--... --................ ThtGoin,..,-. 'b8C--..11e o(Cof'ltrfllutlon chldngtht neca yw 
• Mlllllrity Ptotil• el OIIIMd ~t Cllllp.,_ 
Wlliplld• ..... llfl!.(..ion-.COl.llllld<willOo-) 
• £xpn,d aith 0.,.,. O'N' tht Md (•lilu«I Oft imdilao.ni.l ... w): ,,_ 
21o.S,-r, 
6to1tJ'flll'I 

ff>~--t ti Ll&bdtJ: ~"7" ltNlftlt ~-Add PrOYWonlor-ft,-, 
,._,hld-lhtya 
"'-...... 
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n.., ~-

.... .. ... 
I Ml 11 JJ Mardi 11123 ·-:!I 

'::I 
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111.11 

..... ,.., 

.. ... 

,_ ..... 
"'" ... " ..... 
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Q Rdaled P&ny °""°""" ( M per Ind AS 24' R<lal<d Pany Oiodo,.,.,) : 
(1) Nlmoo or R<latod Partis and""""' or nilltionohlp 

5"bsidluy l:ntitia Rodium Housing LLP 
81 Etcatcsw> 
Readys<ag, LLP 
Xpcril Rcolty LLP 
Flmd Rally LLP 

R<latiV<s uf K,y M.magm,cnt renann,1: 

Rodlwn ~ta] Inc 

M,. °"'],al,Chhoda - CwrmanU>dM,n,glngDittcto< 
M<. lwuh Nisv • Whole-Tiw Dir<ctor 
Mr. ll<mlt Dedha • Who~Tuno Dlrec!or 
M<. Yog<lhShah • lnd,peudohl Olrec1o< 
Mr. Valsl!Shah-lnclq,endmt Dittctor 
Mr. Rolw,Q,Jltdl.Q,lrifwtndalOffite 

MsSrushti Rag!,aru (Upto 13.07.lllZl) 
MsJ)'C4l Scr,gh (From 04.08.lll23) 

Ms. Crim. IJcdhia (Doughl,r of Mr. Rohit o.dhia) 
M,. Pn!ralc Dodl,ia (Son or Mr,Rol,it o.dhia) 

Mn.Xropo Chbod.a (W"tle al Mr. Ooepu Chhoda) 
Mr. Knba¥jl o.dhla (Fathtr ol Mr, RoNt o.dhla) 

Mn. Jaywanti Dedhia (Moehn ol Mr. Rohit Dedhia) 

Mr. MA!hul Nbu • (Sanof HuW,Nls.vj 

Componles/Flnns In wide!, D1ttcton uu1 
ffiltivtt of ~ arc lnt:tretted; 

M/s.RDl!lnlnspaces(Fonnerlylmownasl!odiumhalr,&:Cms~ 
M/~ C NA Atdll-

(1>) Tr&nM<tlonurul out, 

Poniculm 

I) S"1>-
b" t nt/(WUhdnwall) 
Shatt ol Loss In UP 
Shara ol Prolit In LLP 
lnbmstonC.pilal 
lnctrtJt on l.o&n 
Od,a Rece;vable 
c;..,.,,,..,(Co-Bom,w,,) 

ii) Xf'1 Management Pl'l"IOllnitl: .... -
DIN<tors 
R«ifflnfflt Benetitfl 
Oucf FlnwWOl&a­
Comp,,ny s«tttary 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF RODIUM REALTY LIMITED 
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN1WS 

Opinion 
1. We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of RODIUM REAL TY 

LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company") and its Subsidiaries (the 
Holding Company and its Subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group") comprising of the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024 and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and 
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Olanges in 
Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and Notes to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements, including Material Accounting Policies and Other 
Explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the Consolidated Financial Statements•). 

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us and based on consideration of report of other auditors of the subsidiaries, the aforesaid 
Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 
("the Act") in the m.aMer so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards, 
of the consolidated state of affairs (financial position) of the Group as at March 31, 2024, and 
their consolidated Profit (financial pe.rformance including other comprehensive income), the 
consolidated changes in equity and their consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that 
date. 

Basis of Opinion 
3. We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the 

Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities 
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group 
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (]CAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 
and the !CAI' s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 

Emphasis of Matter 
4. We draw attention to Note No. 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements regarding non 

provision of interest on unsecured loans as management has obtained consent from the 
unsecured loan holders for waiver of interest for the current financial year. 
Our Opinion is not modified in respect of above matter. 

Key Audit Matters 
5. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 

significance in our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as 
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these matters. 
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Sr.No 
1 

Kev Audit Matters 
Revenue Recognition 
Revenue recognition involves 
significant estimates related to 
measurement of costs to 
complete the projects. Revenue 
from projects is recorded based 
on the Group' s assessment of 
the work completed, cost 
incurred and acaued and the 
estimate of the balance costs to 
complete the Project. 
Considering the significant 
estimate involved in 
measurement of revenue, we 
have considered measurement 
of revenue as key audit matter. 

Inventories (Note 7 to the 
Consolidated FinanciRl 
Statemmls) 
As at March 31, 2024, the 
carrying value of the inventory 
of ongoing and completed real­
estate projects is Rs. 6,032.69 
Lacs. The inventories are held 

Our Re,..,onse 
Our audit procedure included: 
1. Identifying and testing operating effectiveness 

of key controls over recording of project costs 
2. Assessing the cost incurred and accrued to 

date on the balance sheet by examining 
underlying invoices and signed agreements on 
a sample basis. Assesslrtg contract costs to 
check no cost of revenue nature are incorrectly 
recorded in the balance sheet. 

3. Comparing, on sample basis, revenue 
transactions recorded during the year with the 
underlying contracts, progress reports, 
invoices raised on customers and collections in 
bank accounts. Also checked the related 
revenue had been recognised in accordance 
with the Group's revenue recognition policies. 

4. Comparing the cost to complete workings with 
the budgeted costs and inquiring for variance. 

5. Sighting Group's internal approvals on sample 
basis for changes in budgeted costs along with 
the rationale for the chanites. 

Our audit procedures included, among others: 
1. We evaluated the design and operation of 

intemal controls related to testing recoverable 
amounts with carrying amount of inventory 
including evaluating management processes 
for estimating future costs to complete 
projects. 

at the lower of the cost and net 2. 
realisable value ("NRV"). 

As regards NRV, for a sample of selected 
projects, compared costs inrurred and 
estimates of future cost to complete the project 
with costs of similar projects and compared 
NRV to recent sales or to the estimated selling 
price applied in assessing the NRV. 

The determination of NRV 
involves estimates based on 
prevailing market conditions 
and taking into account the 
stage of completion of the 
inventory, the estimated future 
selling price, cost to complete 
projects and selling costs. 
We identified the assessment of 
the carrying value of inventory 
as a key audit matter due to the 
significance of the balance to 
the Consolidated Financial 
Statements as a whole and the 
involvement of estimates and 
md2ernent in the assessment 
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statemenb and Auditor's Report thereon 
6. The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the 

preparation of the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Holding Company's Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, 
Management Discussion and Analysis, Report on Corporate Governance, Business 
Responsibility Report, but does not include the Consolidated Financial Statements and our 
auditor's report thereon Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover 
the other Information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

7. In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to 
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with th.e Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained 
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

8. The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this audit report. If, 
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information; we are required to communicate the matter with those charged with 
Governance. 

Managemenfs and Board of Director Responsibility and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Consolida1ed FmancW Statements 
9. The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters 

stated in Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as #the Act") with 
respect to the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair 
view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated 
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards, specified under 
Section 133 of the Act, read together with Rules thereon. The respective Board of 
Directors/Management of the Companies/Limited Liability Partnerships (LLP's) included in 
the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and 
fair view and are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, which have 
been used for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financia.l Statements by the 
Management and Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

10. In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of 
Directors/Management of the Companies/Limited Liability Partnerships (LLP's) are 
responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

11. The respective Board of Directors/Management of the Limited Liability Partnerships (LLP's) 
are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group. 
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Auditor's Resp onsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
12. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial 

Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud o.r error, and 
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of th.ese Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

13. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit We also: 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial 

Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion, The risk ,of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
Group has adequate Internal Financial Controls with reference to these financial 
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management and Board of 
Directors. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's and Board of Directors use of the 
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the 
related discl.osures in the Co.nsolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial 
Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a maMer that achieves 
fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidenoe regarding the financial results of the 
entities within the Group to express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial Results. 
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of 
Financial Results of such entities included in the Consolidated Financial Results of 
which we are the independent auditors, For the other entity included in the 
Co.nsolidated Financial Results, which has been audited by other auditors, such other 
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auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit 
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. Our 
responsibilities in this regard are further described in para "Other Matters• 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of 
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public discloSUie about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication 

Other Matters 
14. The Consolidated Financial Statements includes the financial statements of two Subsidiaries 

whose financial statements reflect total assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 
3908.32 Lakhs as at March 31, 2024, total revenue (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 
2699.26 Lakhs and total net profit after tax (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 314.57 
Lakhs and net cash outflows of Rs 25.84 Lakhs for the year ended on that date. which has been 
audited by an independent auditor. The independent auditors' report on Financial Statements 
of these entities have been fumJshed to us by the Management and our opinion on the 
Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures 
included in respect of this entity, is based solely on the report of such auditor. 

15. The Consolidated Financial Statements include the Financial Statements of four Subsidiaries, 
whose Financial Statements reflect total assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 385.96 
Lakhs as at March 31, 2024, total revenue (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 74.68 Lakhs 
and total net profit after tax (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 34.23 Lakhs and net cash 
outflows of Rs 37.15 Lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the Consolidated 
Financial Statements, which are unaudited and have been certified by the Management of 
Holding Company and our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it 
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these entities, is based solely on 
such Unaudited Financial Statements. In the opinion of the Management the results of said 
four subsidiaries are immaterial to the Group. 

16. Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements and our report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect 
to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

17. According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the auditor report 
issued by the auditor of the Components included in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements, we report that CARO is applicable only to the Holding Company. We have 
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not reported any qualifications or adverse rema:rks in the CARO report of the Holding 
Company. 

18. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on the Comments in the Auditor's Report of 
the Holding Company and on consideration of the Auditors Report of the Subsidiary Entities, 
read together with Other Matters Para referred to above, we report, to the extent applicable, 
that 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account, as required by the law relating to preparation 
of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements, have been kept so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books and the report of the other auditor. 

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Other comprehensive income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in F.quity 
and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
with the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read together with Ru.les 
thereon. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding 
Company as on April 01, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding 
Company, none of the directors of the Holding Company is disqualified as on March 31, 
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statement of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate report in" Annexure AH; and 

19. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Ru.Jes, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us; 

i) The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the 
co.nsolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note 27(h)(il) to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 

ii) The Group did not have any long-term contracts for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses. 

iii) U11claimed Dividend of Rs. 0.32 Lacs for the financial year 2015-2016 required to be transferred 
ro tire Investor Education and Protecticn Fund is pending w be transferred as on Balance Shttt 
da~. 
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iv) a) The Managements of the Holding Company have represented to us that to the best of 
their knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or lend or invested (either 
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other souzces or kind of funds) by the 
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(Intermediaries"), with the understanding whether reco.rded in writing or otherwise that 
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company or any of 
its subsidiaries, (wUltimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like 
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b) The Managements of the Holding Company has represented to us that to the best of 
their knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the Holding Company, from 
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company 
shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
maMer whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(c) Based on such audit procedures, we have considered reasonable and appropriate in 
the circumstances performed by us on the Holding Company, nothing has come to our 
notice that causes us to believe that the above representations under sub,dause (i) and 
(ii) of Rule ll(e) as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement 

v) The Holding Company has not declared any dividend during the year. 

vi) Based on our examination of the Holding Company, which included test checks and in 
accordance with the requirements of the implementation guide on reporting of Audit 
Trail under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014, the Holding 
Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account, which 
have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated 
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded. Further, we have not come 
across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with during the course of our 
audit. 

20. As required by section 197(16) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that the Holding 
Company has paid and provided for remuneration to its directors during the year in 
accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under section 197 read with Schedule 
V to the Act. 

For SCA AND ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No. 101174W) 

(Shivratan Agarwal) 
Partner 
Mem. No.: 104180 
UDIN:- 24104180BKERXP2781 
Mwnbai, May 27, 2024 
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ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
CONSOLIDATED fINANClAL STATEMENTS OF RODIUM REALTY LIMITl!D 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under dause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act") 

Opinion 
1. [n conjunction with OW' audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company as of 

and for the year ended March 31, 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with 
reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements of RODIUM REALTY LIMITED ("the 
Holding Company") as of that date. 

2. In OW' opinion, the Holding Company have, in aJ1 material respects, an adequate internal 
financial controls system with reference to the financial statements and such internal financial 
controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the !CAI. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
3. The Management and Board of Directors of the Holding Company are responsible for 

establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
("ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient ronduct of its business, including adherence to respective Company's policies, 
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and d,etection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Act. 

Auditors' Responsibility 
4. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls wtth reference to 

the financial statements of the Holding Company based on OW' audit. We conducted OW' audit 
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by ICAl and the Standards on Auditing, issued by 
ICAJ and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
ass\lJ'ance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

5. OW' audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls with reference to lhe Financial statements and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements 
includes obtaining an understanding of internal financial rontrols with reference to the 
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. 
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6. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls of the Holding Company. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 

7. A Company's internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements is a process 
designed to A company's internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements is a 
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with 
reference to Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transacti.ons 
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financul Controls with reference to financul statements 

8. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Financial 
Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial 
Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with 
reference to Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate 

For SCA AND ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No. 101174W) 

(Shivratan Agarwal) 
Partner 
Mem. No.: 104180 
UDIN:- 24104180BKERXP2781 
Mumbai, May 27, 2024 
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Note 
A,, •• 

31 Ma:rch 202-I 
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Non-C\lfft11.t AaHb 

PMparty~ Plant and F.q1,1tpm4mt 3 (•) 
Other lntan5ible A$Sll!ti 3 (b) 
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Deferred Tax~ (Net) 6 
Total Non-c&U'N'.1\t NHU (A,) 

Cu.rrea.t A.Mel-. 
Inventories 7 
Flna.nd.-J A#otli; 

- lnv~ts 4 
• Trade Rece!vables 8 
.. CAN\ and CNh Equiva1ent5 9 
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~omtd Tu U.bUlde• (Net) 
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enterprlH• and &mall ~terprhea 
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13 
14 

.. 
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6 
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17 
18 
19 
16 

2 

11.113 
4.13 
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, .... 
600.08 

1.26 
2.A.18.26 

20.81 
2.tt.48 

1 0,207.31 
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1,~1'0-05 

TI-,e accompanying Notes ue am integral pan-ol these C(,nsolicbted Finmici&I Statanents 
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For SCA AND ASSOCIATES FOi' RodJ.u..m. Re.it,, Ltm.ltt'd 
O\&rtff9d Aecow,t&nta 

,d/-
$hiv.anttan A 8aJ"Wal 
P•rtner 
Me,n.No.10<180 
Mu.mbeii. O.t•d 2.?th M•Y• 2024 
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O..,,ak Chh<d• 
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OlN; 004.19447 

sd . 
Jyoti Singh 
Company Socretary 
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Roh.it Ded.hi• 
Wholt!-Th:ne 0 1.rlCt:or 
DIN: 02716686 

sd/. 
Rohan O.\ht'da 
ChJel Pinandal om«-r 
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NCIT>:1 

etoup w......ioa 
Tho Cmsolidat,d !'inaJ,mJ 5....,,.... "°""'"'" flNncial •-of ltodi= Really l..fmited (the Holding Campany) and i!s subsidarin (collectiwly, tho Croup) 
b tho J<lt ...r.d 31 Mud\ 202_4, 

Tho Group Is prim,rlly e,g>gtd m bosincaof r..t-o. cONlrudian. ~ and OCln rda1<d adivltles. 

l!,'011l2 

ntNCll'LES OF CONSOUOATION, BASIS Of l'IIE!'AAATION ANO MA TERW. ACCOUNnNC POUCES 
ThoCOlllOlid.olad lioondal..,_coa,p;,e ollhe an.na.Jsta-of th, Holding Cw,p,ny and thtfallowlngsW>lidiari&s uon l.wdl31,t, 21114 

- c....,., .......,_,, 
ft&Md.llSlllt.-u• ....................... _ ........... -·-Kodium~ ll.P .... "·"" ,,.....,,. Ap:i1 1,-. 21123 • MMh Ji.. 2Q2f 

loaium n..!IIIIJ llc ~ 100.CIOI .,_,. J- --1111.xa, . ~n...D> 
13!1tMtSLLP ".on M..W.,-2' f.m l5C.2m•MutbSS..2aM .... LU' ..... """ .......... ' 1-.llm-MwchSl..t.mt -~LU' """ 75.<DI .,....,.,. ,.. bt.21m- .Matd\31.d. 202i 

w ..... ,...,. ,,.....,,. Apil lJC, 21123. Mud\ !lJII. 20M 

ttw tldtwl ftNndal Blt'.IN!!IO tmtprllt the tlniUldal: 11.lllffiffltt cl ~ Compt,n1 and bs 111b9iclllriel u at S1 Maret.. 1.02i. Ccnrol it khltwd whm the Cf'Oll'p II 
o,po,ed.o, h,,righ,._., _.....,,.1,u.,., o«ol,a,d .,;e,a.,-.nd hatht,l,iijty.,Jf«t--tlvoogh ihpow,,_,e,, ...... 1ee.Speclfblly,llwer..p 
- .. -..umd,.,;yu ... er..phM: 
• l\>wsove,llwi,,,_. (l.,. ...... "#'Is 11,,tg;..,•tht=-,l,,"'7b> dlruttht-"",me,oltht -) 
• Fxpc.mrt, or d&ha, to vuilble ftftl!Nfrarnta ~ with dwtmfttflt,tnd 
• lbeuillty IIOat I'll pow«owt !he~ IOaff:ect its tthans 

~. the,t I,• p-ee,.,.,..., e..1 • u,aj""1 of....,,~ ,aultm.,.,..i. To"'f'P"'t!,b ,..,,,,1<10,und - tlwGn>uphu.., than• nujodly of llw""'"'3•-
1'PIII cl an lrnwta-. theCroopmratdm aD mn'Ull flclland dmimillftl.W 1n alCMhg wbechn- kW power Offl' Ul kl~ lnt'hdin&: 
• ~~ .tiM~II wfllh tht:otht:r WJb! holde-, o/ tfwumste! . ~<trbi,w----· • The Qoop't •odog dgbts .nd poo,o,tW""""' right, 
• The-of 11w ,:,oap'• boldloj:«....,. dRD ..i.... to tho mund ~ of 11w bofdit,,:softht °""' --~ rWi• haldm 
1lit GtObf> ~whdbi!r or flOI It CUlb-cls an inwsteeV f.acts and ~indicall! thalth!ttatt ~ toOt'le • C'IOte ol tht three ew:mentlof ccarol Comotida.OOClcl 
• NbA&ry ~ whr!'I dw Qocp obofN mntrol ovtr lht tublldlay and cnllfl whffl d,r Qocap le., eoc:cml fll tM' -=~. AM.ti; lialatlidn,,. mcofflle and..,_.. o/ a 
--1dJlry tcqalttd • dlspol,ed ol during the JMr 1ft included In the cm,olid&iied fiNni:W ~ ffl'lC'D the ddt the Group gaih5 (Ofltrol uncil tht de the Qoup ceut5 io 
.....-!tho~. 
~ &andel !lbtiecnieftls att ~ u,~ unibm, ~ pa&de for ~ bli I' ilS .-id othtt tvffll:9 1ft ~ dtcw:Mt.anDts.. Jr• tneO!lbet of dw: group mt$ 

cow,qpnlldo,ochn thlftllao..io,,,,dintht.....ildmd!Nnd.loa_,,.1o, w..-...Uld _,,.in'1mlll,dmmw---,ritt, ..... t,, ,.,......,_ 
att made to Um groop tr1ed,er's 6twldal~ ifl ~ ttw C'Ol'ltOIJdeted ~tbl:ffller'rl:9 k> Wtlft'ccnl'orrity w:l!h lht group's aaxiontmg polide. 
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A Buis of preparation of Fwnclal Stattments, Key Accounting Estimates c!c Judgemen ts 

The Financial Statements have been prepared on historical cost basis considering the applicable provisions of 
Companies Act 2013 except the following material items that have been measured at fair value as required by 
relevant lnd AS. Nevertheless, historical cost is generally based at the fair value of the consideration given in 
exchange for goods and service5. 

a) Certain Financial Assets/Liabilities measured at fair value. 
b) Any other item as specifically staled in accounting policy. 

The Consoildaled Financial Statements have been prepared. on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting 
policies are applied consistently to all periods presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in India Rupee (INR), which is also functional currency of 
the Group. All the values are rounded off to the nearest Lacs (INR 00,000) unless otherwise indicated. 

The Group reclassifies comparative amounts, unless impracticable and whenever the Group changes the 
presentation or classification of items in its financial statements malerially. No such material reclassification has 
been made during the year. 

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2024 were authorised for 
issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 27th May, 2024. 

Statement of Compliance 
These Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with IND AS as prescribed under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 and subsequent amendments thereto. 

Key Accounting Estimates and Judgeme.nts 
In the application of accounting policies which are described in note (8) below, the management is required to 
make judgment, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of Assets and Liabilities, Income and 
Expenses, Contingent Liabilities and the accompanying disclosures that are not readily apparent from other 
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are 
considered to be relevant and are prudent and reasonable. Actual results may differ from those estimates. The 
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the 
0eriod of revision and future Periods if the revision affects both runent and future oeriod. 

Evaluation of Percmtage Comp letion: 

Determination of Revenues under the percentage completion method necessarily invloves making estimates, 
some of which are of a technical nature, concerning, where relevant, the percentage of completion. costs to 
completion, the expected revenues from the project or activity and the foreseeable losses to completion. 
Estimates of project income, as well as project costs, are reviewed periodically. The effect of changes, if any, to 
estimates is recognised in the Financial statements for the period in which such changes a.re determined. 

Impairment of Non-Financial Asse1S: 
For calculating the recoverable amount of Non-Financial Assets, the Group is required to estimate the value-in­
use of the asset or the Cash Generating Unit and the fair value less costs to disposal. For calculating value in use 
the Group is required to estimate the cash flows to be generated from using the asset The fair value of an assets 
is estimated using a valuation tcchnlque where observable prices are not available. Further, the discount rate 
used in value in use calculations includes an estimate of risk assessment SPeCific to the asset. 
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Impairment of Financial Assets: 
The Group impairs Financial Assets other than those measured at fair value through profit or loss or designated 
at fair value through other comprehensive income on expected credit losses. The estimation of expected credit 
loss includes the estimation of probability of default (PD), loss given default (LGD) and the exposure at default 
(BAD). Eslimation of probability of default apart from involving trend analysis of past delinquency rates 
include an estimation on forward-looking information relating to not only the counterparty but also relating to 
the industry and the economy as a whole. The probability of default is estimated for the entixe life of the 
contract by estimating the cash flows that are likely to be received in default scenario. The lifetime PD is 
reduced to 12 month PD based on an assessment of past history of default cases in 12 months. Further, the loss 
civen default is calculated based on an estimate of the value of the securitv recoverable as on the reoortin2 date. 

Defined Benefit Plans: 

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such 
obligations are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various 
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the 
discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rate. Due to the complexities involved in the 
valuation and its Jong-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these 
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 

Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments: 

When the fair values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be 
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques 
including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable 
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair 
values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in 
aMumotinM abnut the.se factnro cnuld affect the reonrted fair value nfFinancial Tn.struments. 

lnrome taxes 
Significant judgments are involved In determining the provision for Income taxes, including amount expected to 

be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions. 

In assessing the realizability of deferred income tax Assets, management considers whether some portion or all 
of the deferred mcome tax Assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred income tax Assets is 
dependent upon the generation of future taxable inrome during the periods in which the temporary differences 
become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversals of deferred income tax Liabilities, projected 
future taxable income and tax planning strategfos in making this assessment. Based on the level of historical 
taxable inrome and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred income tax 
Assets are deductible, management believes that the Group will realize the benefits of those deductible 
differences. The amount of the deferred income tax Assets considered realizable, however, could be reduced in 
the near term if estimates of future taxable income during the carry forward period are reduced. 

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements are set 
out in Para B below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented 

B Material Accounting Policies 

1 Property, Plant And Equipment 
The Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment ('PPE') recognised 
as of transition date measured as per the Previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost of the 
PPE. 
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PPE are stated at cost less aocumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes 
purchase price (after deducting trade discount/ rebate), non-refundable duties and taxes, cost of replacing the 
component parts, borrowing costs and other directly attributable cost to bringing the asset to the location and 
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by managernenl 

An item of PPB is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from use. Any 
profit or loss arising on the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the 
differena? between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Advances paid towards acquisition of PPE outstanding at each Balance Sheet date is calssified as capital 
advances under ' Other Non-o.urent Assets" 

The depreciable amount of an asset is determined after deducting its residual value. Where the residual value 
of an asset increases to an amount equal to or greater than the asset's carrying amount, no depreciation charge 
is recognised till the asset's residual value deaeases below the asset's carrying amount. Depreciation of an 
asset begins when it is available for use, Le., when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be 
capable of operating in the intended manner. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date that the 
asset is classified as held for sale in accordance with IND AS 105 and the date that the asset is derecognised. 

Depredation on the PPE, is provided over the useful life of Assets which is in line with the useful life indicated 
in Schedule fl to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on all Assets is provided on straight line basis. 
Depreciation on property plant and equipment added/ disposed off during the year is provided on pro rata 
basis with reference to the date of addition/ disposal. lhe Assets' residual values, useful lives and methods of 
depreciation are reviewed at each Financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

Desaiption of the Asset Estimated Uuful Life 
Tandble: 
furniture and fixtures 10 Years 
Computers 3 Years 
Office F.nuinment 5 Years 

2 Intangible Assets 

The Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of Intangible Assets recognised as of transition date 
measured as per the Previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost. 

Intangible Assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cosl After initial recognition, 
Intangible assets are carried at cost less any ao:umulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Software (not being an integral part of the related hardware) acquired for internal use are treated as Intangible 
Assets and ls amortised over a period of 3 years on straight-line method over the estimated useful economic life. 

An item of Intangible Asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from 
Its use or disposal. Any profit or loss arising from derecognition of an intangible asset is determined as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

3 Impairment of tangible (PPE) and intangible a&Sets 

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE and other intangible 
assets to determine whether there is any indication that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any 
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the 
impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the 
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating wut ('CGU'} to which the asset belongs. When 
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is 
written down to its recoverable amount. The resulting impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. 
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Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value ln use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset In determining fair 
value less cost to sell, recent market transactions are taken into account If no such transactions can be 
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. 

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the canying amount of the asset or CGU is increased to the 
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset or 
CGU in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

4 Foreign Currency Transactions 
In preparing the financial statements, transactions in cunendes other than the entity's functional currency are 
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting 
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at that date. 
Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currency are reported at the exchange rate ruling on the date of 

S lnventorie. 
Work-in-progress• Real estate projects (including land inventory): Represents cost incurred in respect of w,.sold 
area of the real estate development projects under construction or cost incurred on projects where the revenue is 
yet to be recognised. Real estate work-in-progress is valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Direct expenditure relating to construction activity is invento.rised. Indirect expenditure (including borrowing 
costs) during construction period is inventorised to the extent the expenditure is related to construction or is 
incidental thereto. Other indirect expenditure fmcluding borrowing costs) incurred during the construction 
period which is neither related to the construction activity nor is incidental thereto is charged to the Statement 
of Profit and Loss. 

Finished goods• Units: Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

The amount of any write-down of inventories to NRV and all abnormal losses of inventories are recognized as 
expense in the Statement of Profit And Loss in the period in which such write-down or loss occurs. The amount 
of any reversal of the write-down of inventories arising &om increase in the NRV is recognized as a reduction 
from the amount of inventories recognized as an expense in the period in which reversal occurs. 

6 Fair Value Measurement 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly 
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, 
the Group takes into account the characteristics of asset and liability if market participants would take those into 
consideration. Fair value for measurement and / or disclosure pmposes in these Financial Statements is 
determined in such basis except for transactions in the scope of Ind AS 2, 17 and 36. Normally at initial 
recognition, the transaction price is the best evidence of fair value. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use 
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest 

A fair value measurement of a Non-Financial Asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that 
would use the asset in its highest and best use. 
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The Group uses valuation techniques those are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data 
are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of 

All Financial Assets and Finandal Liabilities for which fair value Is measured or disclosed in the Consolidated 
Finandal Statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that Is significant to the fair value 
measurement Is directly or indirectly observable. 

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that Is significant to the fair value 
measurement Is unobservable. 

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities that are recogniz.ed at fair value on a recurring basis, the Group 
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization at 
the end of each reporting period. 

7 Financial Instruments 
A Financial Instrument Is any contract that gives rise to a Financial Asset of one entity and a Finandal Liability 
or Equity Instrument of another entity. The Group recognius a Financial Asset or Financial Liability in its 
balance sheet only when the entity becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrumenl 

a) Financial Assets 
A Financial Asset inter-alla includes any asset that Is cash. equity instrument of another entity or contractual 
obligation to receive cash or another Financial Asset or to exchange Financial Asset or Financial Liability under 
condition that are potentially favourable to the Group. 

Financial Assets 
Financial Assets of the Group comprise trade receivable, cash and cash equivalents, Banlc balances, Investment 
other than equity shares, loans to employee / related parties / others and security deposits. 
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Initial recognition and measurement 
All Financial Assets are recog,used initially at fair value plus, in the case of Financial Assets not recorded at fair 
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the Financial Asset. 
However, Trade Receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at Transaction 
Price. Transaction costs of Financial Assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in Statement 
of Profit and Loss. Where transaction price is not the measure of fair value and fair value is determined using a 
valuation method that uses data from observable market;, the difference between transaction price and fair 
value is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on the date of recognition if the fair value pertains to Level 1 
or Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy and in other cases spread over life of the Financial instrument using 
effective interest method .. 

Subsequent measurement 
For purposes of subsequent measurement Financial Assets are classified in three categories: 

Financial Assets measured at Amortized Cost 

Financial Assets at Fair Value through OCI 

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit ot Loos 

Financlal Assets measured at Amortized cost 
Financial Assets are measured at amortized cost if the Financials Asset is held within a business model whose 
objective is to hold Financial Assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the 
Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on 
the principal amount outstanding. These Financials Assets are amortized using the effective interest rate ('EIR') 
method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EJR amortization is included in finance 
income in the Statement of Profit And Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the Statement 
of Profit And Loss . 

Financial Assets at Fair Value tluough OCI ('FVTOCI1 
Financial Assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if the Financial Asset is held 
within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling 
Financial Assets and the contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. At initial recognition, an 
irrevocable election is made (on an instrume:nt•by•instrument basis) to designate investments in equity 
instruments other than held for trading purpose at FVTOCI. Fair value changes are recognized in the other 
comprehensive income ('OCI'). However, the Group recognizes interest income, impairment losses and 
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Smtement of Profit And Loss. On derecognition of the 
Financial Asset other than equity instruments designated as FVTOCJ, cumulative gain or loss previously 
recog,used in OCI is reclass ified to the Statement of Profit And Lospor 

Financial Assets at Fair Value th.tough Profit or Loss ('FVTPL 1 
Any Financial Asset that does not meet the criteria for classification as at amortized cost or as Financial Assets 
at fair value through other comptehensive income is classified as Financial Assets at fair value through profit or 
loss. Further, Financial Assets at fair value through profit or loss also include Financial Assets held for trading 
and Financial Assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value tluough profit or loss. Financial Assets are 
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. 
Financial Assets at fair value through profit or loss are fair valued at each reporting date with all the changes 
recognized in the Statement of Profit And Loss. 
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Oerecogiiition 
The Croup derecognises a Financial Asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset 
expire, or when it transfers the Financial Asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the 
asset to another entity. If the Croup neither transfers nor retains substantially aU the risks and rewards of 
ownership and continues to control the Financial Asset, the Croup reco~ its retained interest in the asset 

and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. 

Impairment of Finan.cw Assets 
The Croup assesses impairment based on expected credit loss ('ECL') model on the foUowing: 

Financial Assets that are measured at amortised cost; and 
Financial Assets measured at FVTOCL 

ECL is measured through a loss allowance on a foUowing basis:-
The U month expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the 

Financial Instruments that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date) 

Full life time expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events 
over the life of Fmancial Instruments) 

The Croup foUows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment on trade receivables or contract Assets 
resulting from normal business transactions. The appllcation of simplified approach does not require the Group 
to track changes in credit risk. However, it =gnises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each 
reporting date, from the date of initial recognition. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other Financial Assets, the Group determines whether there has been a 
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime 
ECL is provided. For assessing Increase In credit risk and Impairment loss, the Group assesses the credit risk 
characteristics on instrument-by-instrument basis. 

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Croup in accordance with the 
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls) discounted a.t the original 
EIR 

Impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as expense/income in the 
Statement of Profit And Loss. 

b) F"mmcial Liabilities 
The Group's Financial Liabilities include loans And borrowings including bank overdraft, trade payable, 
accrued expenses and other payables etc. 

Initial recogiiltion and measunment 
All Financial Liabilities at initial recognition are classified as Financial Liabilities at amortized cost or Financial 
Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, as appropriate. All Financial Liabilities classified at amortized CO$! 
are recogniz.ed initially at fair value net of directly attributable transaction costs. Any difference between the 
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the fair value at initial recognition is recognised in the Statement of Profit 
And Loss or in the CWJP, if another standard permits inclusion of such cost in the carrying amount of an asset 
over the period of the borrowings using the Effective interest rate ('EIR') method. 

Subsequent measurement 
The subsequent measurement of Financial Liabilities depends upon the classification as described below:-

Financlal Liabilities dusified as Amortised Cost 
rmancial Liabilities that are not held for trading and are not designated as at FVfPL are measured at amortised 
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or CO$ts that are an integral part of the EIR. Interest expense that is 
not capitalized as part of costs of assets is included as Pinaoce costs in the Statement of Profit And Loss. 
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Ftnanciat Liabilities classified u Pair value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) 

Financial Liabilities classified as FVTPL includes Financial Uabilities held for trading and Financial Liabilities 
designated upon initial recognition as FVTPL. Financial Liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are 
incw:red for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Financial Uabilities designated upon initial 
recognition at FVI1'L only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 ls satisfied. 

Derecognition 
A Financial Liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged / cancelled / expired. 
When an existing Financial Liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different 
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification ls 
treated as the de recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the 
respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit And Loss. 

Offsetting of Financial Instruments 
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there ls 
a currently enforeeable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net 
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

8 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
Provisions are recognised when there ls a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and 
it is probable (i.e. more likely than not) that an outflow of resoUICeS embodying economic benefits. will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reHable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Such 
provisions are determined based on management estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation al the 
balance sheet date. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbw-sed, the reimbursement ls 
recognised as a standalone asset only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. 

If the effect of the lime value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that 
reflects, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting ls used, the increase in the provision due to the 
passage of time is recognised as a finance costs. 

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provmons. An onerous 
contract is considered to exist when a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations 
exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from it 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of management/independent experts. These are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the cunent management estimate. 

Contingent Assets are not recognittd, however, disclosed in Financial statement when inflow of economic 
benefits ls probable. 

9 Revenue Recognition 
The Group derives revenues primarily from sale of completed property and proportionate revenue of property 
under development. 

Completed Inventory property 
The sale of completed property constitutes a single performance obligation and that is satisfied at the point in 
time when control transfers. 

Inventory Property under Development 
Contracts relating to the sale of property under development is considered as a single performance obligation 
because it provides a significant service of integrating the goods and services (the inputs) into the completed 
property (the combined output) which the customer has contracted to buy 

Revenue from Contracts with customers relating to property under development is recognised over time as it 
has concluded that, at all limes, it has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date and it 
has no alternative use for the said asset . Therefore, control transfers over lime for these contracts 
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For contracts that meet the over time revenue recognition criteria, performance is measured using an input 
method, by reference to the costs incurred to the satisfaction of a performance obligation (e.g., resources 
consumed,, labour hours expended, costs incuned, time elapsed) relative to the total expected inputs to the 
completion of the property 

Revenue from contract with customers is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to customers 

in an amount that reflects the consideration the Group expects to receive in exchange for those services. 
Revenue from the sale of services is recognised al the point in time when control is transferred to the customer. 

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition 

• Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price could be 
either a fixed amount of consideration or variable consideration with elements such as discounts. Any 
consideration payable to the customer is adjusted to the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a cilstinct 
product or service from the customer. The estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the 
transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of 
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur and is reassessed a t the end of each reporting period. 

The Group exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in 
time or over a period of time. The Group considers indicators such as how customer consumes benefits as 
services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or eldstence of enforceable right to payment 
for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of significant risks and rewards to 
the customer, at'Ceptance of delivery by the customer, etc. 

Group collects and spends money towards maintainence of the completed projects where society is yet to be 
formed or where the affairs of the maintenance of building constructed by them has not been handed over to 
the society. Revenue is recognlud at a point In time when the bill is raised to the customer for collection of 
maintainence charges. 

Interest income on financial Assets as subsequently measured al amortized cost is recognised on a time­
proportion basis using the EIR method. 

When a receivable is Impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the 
estimated future cash £lows discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues 
unwinding the discount as interest income. 

10 Borrowing Costs 
Borrowing cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the 
arrangement of borrowings with reference to the effective interest rate applicable to the respective borrowings. 

Borrowing cost pertaining to development of long term projects are transferred to Construction work in 
progress , as part of the cost of the projects upto the time all the activities necessary to prepare these projects for 
its intended use or sale are complete. 

All other borrowing costs are recongrosed as expense in the period in which they are incurred 

11 Employee Benefits 

Short-tenn Employeet Benefits 
All short term employees benefits such as salaries, wages, allowances, performance incentive, employee welfare 
costs, exgralia are recogrosed during the period in which the employee render services and are measured at 
undiscounted amount expected to be paid when the Liabilities are settled. 

Post-employment Benefits 

The Group provides the following post~mployment benefits: 
i) Defined benefit plans such as gratuity and 

ii) Defined Contnbution plans such as provident fund. 
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Defined ~nefits plllJ\S 
The cost of providing defined benefit plans such as gratuity is determined on the basis of present value of 
defined benefits obligation which is computed using the projected unit credit method with independent 
actuarial valuation made at the end of each annual reporting period, which recognizes each period of service as 
given rise to additional unit of employees b<!nefit entitlement and measuring each unit separately to build up 
the final obligation. 

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit 
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss except those included in cost of Assets as permitted. 

Re-measurements comprising of actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and change in 
actuarial assumptions, the effect of change in assets ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan asset 
(excluding net interest as defined above) are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI) except those 
included in cost of assets as permitted in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified 
to the Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods. 

Service cost (including cwnmt service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and 
settlements) is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except those included in cost of Assets as 
permitted in the period in which they occur. 

Defined Conbibution Plans 
Conbibutions to the Provident Fund are made at a pre-detemuned rate and charged to the statement of Profit 

12 lncome Taxes 
Income tax expense ttpresents the sum of tax currently payable and deferred tax. Tax is recogniud in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or in other 

Current tax 
Current tax is the expected tax payable/ receivable on the taxable income/ loss for the year using applicable tax 
rates for the relevant period, and any adjustment to taxes in respect of previous years. Interest expenses and 
penalties, if any, related to income tax are included in finance cost and other expenses respectively. Interest 
Income, if any, related to Income tax is included in Other Income 

Deferred Tax 
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of Assets and Liabilities in 
the balance sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profil Deferred tax 
I..W,llities are generally re<:og1'ised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax Assets are generally 
recognised for all deductible temporary differences, WU1bsorbed losses and unabsorbed depreciation to the 
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary 
differences, unabsorbed losses and unabsorbed depreciation can be utilised. Such deferred tax Assets and 
Liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from initial recognition of Assets and Liabilities 
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax Assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent 
that ii is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be 
recovered. 

Deferred tax Assets and Liablli.ties are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in 
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The measurement of deferred tax Liabilities and Assets reflects 
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting date, to 
recover or settle the carrying amount of its Assets and Liabilities. 

Deferred tax Assets and Liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off cunent tax Assets 
against current tax Liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and 
the Croup intends to settle its current tax Assets and Liabilities on a net basis. 
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13 Current versus Non-<wrent clauifkation 

The Group presents Assets and Liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification. 

a) An asset is current when it is: 

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle, 

Held primarily for the pwpose of tradlng, 

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a Uability for at least 

twelve months after the reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non<urrenl 

b) A Uability is current when: 

It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle, 
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading, 

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting period. 

All other liabilities are classified as non<WTent. 

c) Deferred tax Assets and Liabilities are classified as Non<WTent Assets and Liabilities. 
d) The normal operating cycle in respect of operation relating to under construction N!al estate project depends 
on signing of agreement, size of the project, phasing of the project , type of development, project complexities, 
approvals needed And realisation of project into cash And cash equivalents and range from 3 to S years. 
Accordingly project related Assets and liabilities have been classified into current and non<WTent based on 
operating cycle of respective projects. 

14 Earnings per Share: 
Basic earnings per share Is calculated by dividlng the profit from continuing operations and total profit, both 
attributable to equity shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 

C Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide notification dated 24th March 2021, has amended Schedule ID to the 
Companies Act, 2013 to enhance the disclosure requirements in financial statements. The Financial statements 
have been pN!paN!d after incorporating the amendments to the extent they 8N! applicable 

D Recent accounting pronouncements 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifes new standards, ammendments to the existing standards under 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 
2024, MCA has not notified any new standard or ammendments to existing standards applicable to the Group. 

I Annual Report 2023-2024 149 



RODIUM REALTY LIMITED-------------

NOTE 3 (•) PllOPERTY, PLANT ANO EQUIPMENT 
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NOTI!• 
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NOTE9 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

I Particulars 

Cashon hand 
Balances with Banks in C=t Accounts 
Term Deposits with original maturity of Jess than 3 months 

NOTE10 

Total 

BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH ANO CASH E UIV ALENTS 

Particulars 

Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than U 
months• 
Dividend Account" 

Total 

.... ........... 
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es Lacs 
Asat 

31 Matth2023 

425.00 
1.26 

426.26 
-unclaimed Dividend of Rs. 0.32 Lacs for the financial year 2015-2016 required to be transfen-ed to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund is pending to be transferred 
•Pledge as security for worklng capital taken from bank 
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NOTEU 
LOANS (UNSECURED, CONSIDERED GOOD) 

Curled at Amortised cost : 
Loans to 

Employees 
Others (Refer Note a below) 

a . 1he loans are repayable on demand 

NOTE12 
OTHER ASSETS 

Particulars 

Unsecured and Conaidered Good 
Advances to Suppliers (Other than Capital) 

Unbil.led Revenue 
Bala.nee with statutory authorities 
Others 
Prepaid Expenses 

I Annual Repon 2023-2024 

Total 

Sub Total 

Sub Tota.I 

Tota.I 

Ala! 

2.58 
98.00 

100.58 

31 March 2024 

253.58 
253.58 

4,086.00 
0.75 

282.06 
15.20 

4,38'.0l 
4,637.59 

I 

(In Rupe,1 Lacs) 

1.32 
88.00 
89.32 

(In Rupees Lacs) 
Asat 

31 MArch2023 

37.83 
37.83 

2,,204.07 
128.74 
175.03 

12.14 
2,519.98 
2,557.81 
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NOTE15 
BORROWINGS (Al AmortlNd C<lot) 

I Pan l<u.lan 

NON CIJ)IBENI 
~ 
T~loans; 

FtomB.u\lc 

Unsecured 
U•bllity Component of Compo11nd Financial Instruments • 
70,00.000 61' Non Cumulative Optionally Convertible Pre£ere.na, 

ShattSof Rs.10/· each 

ctJ1UtEN1' 
Secured 

Total 

t..o.m. rcJ>ilyable on demand 
Working Capital Loan from Bank 

Cum!nt m.uw!tles o! long-toan debt 

Unsecured 
from ~led Pllrtles (IWtt Note 28 (g)) 

fromOtben 
Interest Accru('(f on above 

Total 

Natunol 

A .. t 
31Much202f 

2,436.82 

495.78 
:z.93:uo I 

1))67.37 
1,119,,0 

2,549.90 
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h:ttierNt Rate Is. Tenu Of 

(In Rupus I.us) 
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1,209.44 

1.352.27 
6,SOl.67 
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.. F...t -1 ucluoivc Clw-p by way ol ~•end M""l3•p OVff 11) Repayable in 48 months from tM date of first dbbww:ment lndudlng 
dw O..elopment Rlghts, TIUt, In....,,. of the Oevdopor/ montorlwn period ol 24 months. lntuut h 16.351' p,. (P,Y. -14.151'-15.35!1). 

llon'owff w •U tho p,e,o,t and fuluno •-U... upon ID 2) R<pa,-bl• In 24 ....,IJ,o fn>m lho date ol lint - --. 
11w ....... old,e O.Veloper/l!om>wen w ... moratori= p<dod o1 u....,ths. In,_,. i, 16.35" p.a (P.Y. -15351'). 
b. Finl & lil(du,f..,• charge by the w•y of resfilen:d hypoth«a.tion 3) R,yabl< In 54 "'°""" bun the da .. of Sat-• (Ind.ding """alvri""' °""" .U tho prcso,t .ind future cash flow• ol the project • period ol36 moruhs). lnl2Nst 16.001' 
f11Qtjva,b&u from 10ld .,-. NIC(Wtnbl• from &he bank guarantft ln ') R,yable In '8 rnoc,d\f from lh<dal< of fin•-~ tnOl'llOl'iwrl 

re,peet ol the p,oject. tpmadol24manll1s).14.75" p_. 
~ Tbr, Hid Jo&n lt further t«UNd by utl,gn~t al. lNuranot 5) R,yobalo In 36 ._th, hom Iha daOt o/ Onl dbbu-,,<nt Qndudmg 
poUdes of !he edequ.tte value r.. tho pn,j«t kt /avow ol the moralomun pmod ol 24 mm,Jl,s). 16001' p.o 
Lendor. 

Tam Loan from rcra Bank 

&:cuml «gains! Mo,1pg,, ol Unit No '°1 Vld 402, 4th floor, X Repa-yal:M in UIJ tnCXlthl &om thl: cbla of finl ctisbu,-ment. 
a,he, Mumt,e;, pn,petty owned by P.-oien w thou Relotiv ... 1n ..... , 9.801' 
ol lhe holdlt,s C-pany. 

~ Non Omm.l&tive Ontioru.lly Omvatible fftfettnat Sharw 

11D othu ,...,.. and canditiani; of dv 70.00,000 6S Non Cumulativ• Opdonally Convertible P!,,f.....,. Shares ol FV Rs 10/- fully pold will reawn !he 
....., u o( the 'IU,C0,000 9S C.,muladvc Optionally Convortible Pmormc< Shatts ol FV lu 10/- fully pdd. The oripal pr.i.r..,.. shares wm, for a 
tcnn ol 20 Yun from 31at M.uda. 2008 bring the date ol allotmenc. accordingly the 70,.00.000 6'.\ Non CumuJaliw OpdonaDy Convertible Prfte.ence 
Sha.tft ol FV Rs 10/ • fully peJd would INl(Wt OJ\ 311\ D.\lJ'd\. 202&. The component pottion ffl. compound liNricW imtnrmmt is dassi.fi~ u fi:nandA1 
llal>Olty. 

2 W0<1d:ag Capital Loan fro., llldw, 0.-eo Bw. 
W~ Capttal Loan &om lndJanOva:xas Bank is ~yable on dmtmd and ls secured by way of lien over Term Deposits and 
further ~ c.,.,..,,,.. ol Manosm, fWholedm, Dinct..., II cameo In- rate ol 7.71" p.a. (Ptev...., Yoar 7.71 " )· 

3 tou. from Relah!d P.utlet and~,. 
U..........t Loan, &om R,J,;l<d Partin ...t Olhe,scam,. ln-t eu". (Prevlo<,• year U'II) w ""'repayableon denand. The .,_red loaJ, hold.,. 
Nve given tbtir C'ONfflt regud.ing waiYU ol lnterett for F1n&ndal Yur ~ on thtir 11N«UJ'ed loan txctpt for two pvucl,, Hcnct no provi$.l<m OI 
imett:st has bttn ma.tit of thl' waived l'MlftSt. 
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NOTE16 

PROVISIONS (In RuDH• Laa) 

Puticulan N....C-t Cwrent 
Aut I Aul 

n Mudl2112' 31 Mudl 2023 
A,at I Aul I 

JI M.ln:h 2112' JI ~rd, 20:r.1 
.. 

Proviston for Employee Benefits 
Tata! 

NOTE17 

TRADE PAYABLES 

Outstanding due of Micro and Small EnterpriJ<s (Refer Nob! 28(0)) 
OutstandJng due of Creditors oth<r than Micro and Small Enlerprl$e$ 

Tata! 

Tndt Payabln aging-~ 

29.28 44.34 20.81 4.34 

29.28 20.81 °' 

6.44 0.56 

640.08 465.84 
466.40 

Oulllud!J,1 for folio~• .-oc1, &vca due d.atl of ~-•.nl 

htlkulm 
QMSME 
fu)Others 

Trad• Payabln aginglChtdulr 

Pam:ulm 
QMSME 
liilOthers 

NOTE18 
OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL UABILlTlES 

Puticalan 

Unclaimed Dividends 

NOTE19 

OIHER CURRENT UABILl'IIES 

Puticulan 

Contr.,ct Liabilities (R,veaue received in advance) 

Statutory Dues 
Employee Benefit. Payable 
Others 

Total 

Total 

Laatb&nlwu l •2 ffm 
6.44 

35'2.94 83.90 
359.38 83.90 

0ull""'""•forfoll 

Laa than 1 _,. 1-2-m 
0.56 

262.41 SI .(19 

262!/1 51.119 

Total 

Total 

2.Jytan 
M ... tbm3 ..... , ..... JlM,t<l,20%1 

6.44 
.50.90 152.34 ~ .08 

152.34 646.52 

, 
bom clue dalt of 

2.Jy .... 
Montlwi3 ..... , 

-•N 31M.utk2023 
0.56 

234 150.00 <165.84 
2.34 150.00 46U0 

(1n Rup ... Laa) 

Cwnnt I 
n~2112' 131~= 

1.26 1.26 

1.26 1.26 

(In Rupen Laa) 

1,240.27 91.76 
109.96 52.41 
64.29 64.18 

1,00:l73 302.40 
2,418.26 510.75 

During the yeor mded 31st Man:h, 2024, the Group reeognlllecl ttvenue of Rs. 79.90 Laa (Previous year Rs. 1288.16 Lacs) arising from 
opening wieamed revenue (contract liabilities). 

Movemmt ol co-lW>ilitia is u u.nda ; 
A$ at beginning of the year 
Rocognl>ed as ttYonue from contracts with custo-,,, 

Advance from c:ustomeni roceived during the year 
Balance at the close of the year 
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Aaal 
31Mm:h:zo24 

91.76 
(79.90) 

1,228.41 
1,240.27 

(In Ruptt9 ua,) ..... , 
31 Marth 2023 

1,064.16 
(1,297.21) 

324.81 
91.76 
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RODIUM REALTY LIMITED------- - -----

NOTE20 
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

Particulan 

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 
Income from Property Development 
Income from Sale of Shop 
Other Operating Revenues: 

Miscellaneous 

Total 

(In Rupees Lacs) 

I Yw-. I Yw- I 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

4,488.22 

92.00 

174.82 
4,755.04 

4,007.58 
97.00 

101.05 
4,205.63 

The management determines that the segment information reported is sufficient to meet the disclosure objective 
with respect to disaggregation of revenue under Ind AS 115 Revenue from contract with Customers. Hence, no 
seperate disclosures of disaggregated revenues are reported.(Refer Note 28(d)) 

Reconciliation of revenuer · • with the conttacted price is as follows: 

Particula.rs 

Gross Sales (Contracted Price) 
Reductions towards variable consideration 

Reven.ue recognised 

NOTE21 
OTHER INCOME 

Interest Income 

Partic:ul.us 

Dividend Income on Current Investments 
Net Gain on Sale of Investments classified as FVTPL 
Net Gain on Fair Value Clianges on Financial Assets classified as FVTPL 
Misrellenous Income 

NOTE22 

COST OF DEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION 

Particulars 

Cost of Development Rights / Land acquislion 

Construction and Direct Cost 

Administration and General Expenses 

8oITOwing Costs 
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Tow 

Total 

Year Ended 
31 March 2024 

4,488.22 

4,488.22 

Year Ended 
31 March 2024 

94.39 
0.14 
4.64 

36.83 
1.73 

137.73 

Year Ended 
31 March 2024 

1,08227 

2,403.47 

140.02 

474.96 

4,100.73 

(In Ruvees Lacs) 
Year Ended 

31 March 2023 
4,007.58 

4,007.58 

In Ruoees Lacs\ 

Year Ended 
31 March 2023 

90.67 

11.07 
0.18 

131.36 

233.28 

In Runees Lacs) 

Year Ended 
31 March 2023 

517.89 
1,56.5.24 

96.50 

426.41 

2,606.04 
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NOTE23 

CHANCES IN lNVllNTORlllS Of FINISHllO GOODS, WORI<•IN-PROORllSS 
AND STOCK-IN-TRADE 

Cosing Stock: 
Finished Goods 
Work-in-Progress 

Less: Opening Stock: 
Finished Goods 
Work-in-Progress 

NOTE24 

Putkulan 

EMPLOYEI! BENEFIT EXPENSES 

Particulars 

Salaries and Wages 
Contribution to Provident Fund, Gratuity and Other Funds 
Staff Welfare Expenses 

NOTB25 
RNANCE cosrs 

ParticUW'S 

Interest on Loans and Deposits 
Interest on Working Capital Facilities 
Other Borrowing Costs; 

Interest on Liability Component of Compound Financial Instruments 
Others 

Less: Amounts Capitalised to the cost of qualifying assets 
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Total 

Total 

Year Ended 
31 Much 2024 

355.04 
5,677.64 

6,03269 

355.04 
5,429.01 
5,784.05 
(248.63) 

YeuEnded 
31 Ma.rch 2024 

34.44 
71,7 
3.69 

46.00 

Year Ended 
31 Much 2024 

417.58 
196.21 

41.04 
10.12 

664.95 
(448.04) 
216.91 

In Ruoees Lacs) 
Yea.rEnded 

31 March 2023 

355.04 
5,429.01 

5,784.05 

355.04 
6,382.38 
6,737.42 

953.37 

Rn Ru.,..es Lace 

Ye.u-Ended 
31 Much 2023 

39.84 
7.94 
4.57 

52.35 

Rn Ru.,..es Lace 

Ye.u-Ended 
31 March 2023 

40.46 
226.87 

37.55 

304.88 

(131.52) 
173.36 
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NOTE26 
OTilER EXPENSES 

Particulars 

Power and Fuel 
Legal &; Professional Charges 
Rent (Refer Note 28(£)) 
Rates and Taxes 
Insurance 
Printing and Stationery 
Repairs and Renewals: 

Buildings 
Travelling and Conveyance 
Communication Expenses 
As Auditors: 

Audit fee 
Tax Audit fee 
Other Services 

Sales Promtotion Expenses 
Net loss on fair value changes on financial assets classified 
asFVTPL 
Donation 
Commission 
Bank Charges 
Interest paid on Statutory Dues 
Miscellaneous Expenses 

NOT8Z1 
A.CAPITALMANACEM»n' 

(In Rupees Lacs) 

1 Y-End•d I Y-En~d 1 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

2.50 
0.75 
1.25 

5.00 

Total 

7.51 6.17 
17.02 29.36 
12.00 12.00 
2.69 1.01 

16.98 16.38 
4.38 4.39 

90.66 
4.27 

1.35 

4.50 
0.33 

0.77 
6.93 

85.12 
259.53 

106.99 
269 
1.19 

2.00 
0.75 
1.95 
4.70 
1.03 

8.40 

0.04 
4.86 
0.63 
1.67 

34.20 
235.71 

f« die pwpc,oe o{ Croup', C.pltll M- 01pltal ln<ludft -d Squlty C.plllJ, and - Eanang, •• ,n, .... blt 0, die l!q\llty I lolden o{ die 
Croup, The prlrrwyot;ective ol the Croup1s c:apital Managm,,enl ts to aw:imise the Shue Holder Valm. 

The Crwp manag,s Its ap!IIJ stnldut< and makes adjostmonts In the 11$ht of CNf18"' In -'<: oondltlons and requlmnents ol the llnandal 
COftfW'III and lo contlmw u a 8oil1g conctrn, To matntaln or adju.st lhe c,.pll&I ltructu"- IN! Group may edjusl the dfvld.md payment lo WrelddC!Do 
rttumapltal o, shan!holdm or lswe new Ihm,. 

The Cn,up monitors capllal ""1,g a ntlo ol 'Net Debi' to 'f<lulty'. For thJs -· net debc b ddmed ., total boffOwtr,gs leot c..h & l!onlc ~ and 
OlheT Cumnt Inv_,...._ 
The Cn,up's n<t d.tt to equity ntios.,. .. follows-

(In RllJ!!n t..c,) 

IPatdcuw, 31st March 202, 31 .. Man:h 2023 

- bearing i-s and 8onowinp 4,052.30 3,290.18 
'--: c..handShortT,nno.po,lll 819.113 650AS 
NdDebt U72.13 3,940.64 

Equity 344.50 344.SO 
Otber&;u!ty J,aJOAS 1.1110.80 

Talal c.pital 1,'14.93 1,lSo.29 
C.pltal and Net OdJ< 6.l97.o6 S,295.93 
N,1 Oebc to Squity Ratio 77.49'1. 7UIS 
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L FINANCAL RJSX MANAGEMENT 

The C""'P'• prindpol F'v,oncw U.bilitin mmpril< l.ouw and Borrowinp. T, adc and o,h,r Pay.bl ... The main pwpooe of U..... FiNncW U.bilmos II 
to flna.not the open.dont cl the- CJ"OUp. The prindpal FlnandAI AMm tndude TNde and Other Jtecetvablet. Invatmen:t1 l.n Mu bnl Funda Md Cuh and 
Short term Deposlls. 
The Croup ha& -d owk<t 11'1<. O"tdll rilk 111d llq<ddl,y <lsk ., IIS F1nu<W U. billdeo. 

II Muket Risk 
Matbt R&.k it the: riA: of b1 of futun: (';U'nU\p. fair valun or euh Bow• that may ttMalt from• cha.np ln the prb of• fllW'dal inlll'Ufflfflt, as a tffWt ol 
- ..,.. md other pric, risks. PiJlancw .,._ alhcted by marut risb. primarily indudc ..... 6' borrowings, inv,s- and other 
,...,..;,y.M,.. N11vah'-11ntfhnl'MW'in.,. 

lntunt llm Rlw 
lruen$t rate risk can be, rithtt 00 value intC'rcst rAtt- ot cash 6ow intctcst tab: ri5k.. Fm vahlr in.tum-rate risk iJ the risk. of cbangc, in &ir vahies of fixed 
tntawt burl.ng u\votmcnt, beau. ol ll\lct\l•tiona in the inlcntt niliL c.lh Sow lnt«rett ,.. rWc ls the rhk that lhe hrtuxc ouh Ocw• cl Ao.ting intctai1 
bearing inve!ltments will fluctuate becau..rse of fluctu.atioN In the intetest rates. 

Expolun to i:n.b!!rell ratethk 
The Croup'• I.nit!'$ .rate rbk a.rue, bom boaowtngt... lorrowlngs 1-..«l at llxed ntes ~ to la.Ir value tntftest ratfl rt,k. 1'lif m!l!N!St nte profile of the 
c ..... p•,w..-bemglinand,J wvummt. u ttporltd lothe_......,.ol lhe 0-p" .. k&w~ 

BormWU)I? 

Fair • due lftl5'.ldvtty &ll&lJl-1• ror llictd..ratt JNtnafflffllt 

The Croup doe nol •count for any fbc.td-nte 6n&ndl1 aaew or ftnandal lbblUUet at f•lr value through profit or 1091. Thar~. a cha.np ii, intae1 nc. 
at the reporting datt would not~ profit or W. 

Commodity Prite lUt.lc: 
The Croup'• actlvidet a.re •POiied to tttel and ocmerd prioe tlab and thfftfore ro ovcnll rid. M&Ng,ernet'lt program foc:utet on the volad.lt nature of the 
atM and mnmt mvkct, thus N.'Uinf to minimu. pown.ti.J ■dvUM dRc.1:a on the g:roup11 fiMncial pcrfonnan¢ci on at"COWlt ol such volatility. 

---·""" --· polJde, 

Poodgn °'"""7 -,._ ~8~ u 1h, Croup's primary bu•b- OdfvltleJ ,re wlthln b,dla 111d dneJ ,.,, have •lp,lfl<Wlt npoautt in r.r.tgncurr-mcy. 

U) Cttdll!Wk 
Cftdit ri&k Is the rltlc ol fiN.nda) loss to tM Croup u • CWIIOffltt or counte:rpu;y 1D • financi■J iNtnl.mtnl fails lo mttl ib COftb'acbW obligations. and 
ffllft prlndpdy Imm the Ciroup't teetfvabla from~ and lnW!Mffit'l'\b tn debt ll«Uddes. 

The~ amount al followlng ftn■nd■J -■ot.11 ttpr.rnt. tlw nwdmum crtdk expoeutt. 

l hck a.nd Olhn lleulvabln 
The Croup's e:xpo9U1'1" to credit risk ls lnf1~ lN.il'lly by lhe individual charac:ttristks ol each customer. Howewr a-edit mk with regards to trade 
t«fflable II almo.t nrrgUgfble tn e■.e ol It, mldentlal Mk bu■.lnN■ d the ll&U'W i■ done 1D tN .fact that in cue ol i1a JMldential tcU bualnee■ It doN not 
Mndo9er pos8('Sliion till l!ntiff outstanding ii~ 

The ageing ot cnde J1!0dvblft ls as follow,: 

Pa.-tlculffl 
Mo.-. than 6 mOWIUW 
Otha> 

The a.tnO'\lni:s rc6ccted m die' ~ble above are not impaired as on the tq>Orting" datit, 

lnvatmrnbi in ~bt S«uritiff, 1.Nm to Rcl.rttd Parties ~d rro;ect Orpoait, 

31stMarch202'1 31..$t Ma.rdl 2023 
un.,s 11:51.32 

.528.80 SI0.82 

1,106,09 1,992.1' 

The Croup has lnvMt:mel'ltS tn mutual ful'ld:t and pN!fed: d~lh. TM s.!l&ment of tuch Wtrwnents 19 l!nbd IO the compledOft ol lb! mp«'lftt 

und«lyin,g pro;,ca,.. Such FiNnci■I Aaet8 an not impairf!d u on Ow rtpaning data. 

C..h and Ba.nk bal.a.nL'u 
Th, Croup holds cub and CW1 oqwv.Ja,15 wllh bmka which.,. h,¥ing lughcst Am)' ~ a,,d hen:, las• l<,w cndit mk, 

UQ Uqui<tity lUslt 
Uquldlty ""' Is lhe N k lhlt the Croup will ena,unte, dlfflcully IA D>Hdflg lhe obtiga,icn. .....,.led wllh hs l'inondal l!abllilief lluot att M'llled by 
drlivaingc:uh or another fiNnci&l uwt. 'JlvCroup'■ appro«:h to m■Nging liqu.idicy iJ ID~, u fw • poaible, l:Nt it will Mve wffidmt liquidity to 
me~t m liahUit:iief when they are: du, under both ncmrw and tttts.d cot!didans, wuhout lntwring a:naccwpt.ablr-l~ or risldng damage., the Croup'• 
rwputation. 

M-.-.,,. rolling fo,,..,t. ol tho Cro.p~ liqw<lity pooition on the bom ol <><pe<lod <Uh Oow,, Thlo m<>nil<><ing indud., finar<lal ....,.11\d 
t.lket1 lnto account lhr acCftllbUlty o( ~ •nd ciuh «1.utVl.lfflta.. 

The Croup ha.t IQftf to fundt &am ddit' made.et, thtoi.lgh bwik loan. n.r- Crou.p invats ltt 5Urpl1.1S "-'nett it, t.nlc Rud dt-p<),it •nd debt bued mutuaJ 
fw,da, 
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A.CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Contd.) 

Expco111t to Uquldity lll.sk 
The following are the remaining contractual maturities ol financial liabilities ot the reporting dare. 

lln Jlu,_, Lacs) 

~g 
Contraeha&I c:uh nowt 

March31,2112A 
I 

WdhinU 
I I IMor• Ihm S yun Amount Total 

montm 
1-.lyun 2-Syu n 

Hnlndll LilllWIIH 
Nonament 
Borrowings 4,052.30 4,052.30 1,119.?0 470.54 l,826.27 635,79 

l:!l.aml 
Borrowings 2,932.60 2,932.60 2,932.60 
Tn.d• Payohl,s 646.52 646.52 646.52 
Other CUmnt Rnandal IJabiliU.. Uli 1.26 1.26 

<AnJ!ng Contractual ... b flow, 
March31,2m3 I WlthlnU I I IMorethmSyeon Amount Total 

mo,11i,, 
1-2yun 2-Syun 

FirwlcW I.Lal!!Jl1!•1 
Non Current 
Borrowings 3,290.13 3,290.18 'Jf/1,69 852.59 969.7, l,()60.16 

Qmnl 
Borrowing, 2,902.50 2,902.50 2,902.50 

Trodc l'llyahlot %6.40 466.40 466.40 
Othl!r c..,,..,1 Finandal u.bililie$ 1.26 1.26 1.26 

C. FaJi Valueo and J{lcnzdly 
This sectiO<l explains the judgements and estimates made in detennining the fair values of the financial instruments that are a) recognised and 
m,airuttd at laJt value and b) """"'1ttd 11 amortlaed cost and for which lair values are du,do,...I in the Standalone Finandal Stotements. To 
p,ovid<, on indialion about the "1i1bility of the inputs uaed in demmining fair val11t. the Company NS du1ifi<d its 6naooal inltnun<nlS 
into the three le\'els prescnoed in the Indian Accounting Standard. 

(ln It...,. .. Laao) 
Fili Valu Value 

Putkul.us lliffM<hy Aul Aul 
31MM<h2024 31MM<h2m3 

P"IJUUlCiAI -
• lnvestmellls Love!One 67.33 92.39 
• Investments LevelTwo 27.51 30.64 

Level 1: Thia include, linanc:io.l instruments rneasUttd using quoled prices, The lair value ol al) a,utwl fw,ds ii valued using the dooing NAV 
as at the reporting period 
Lrvel 2: This Includes linandal Instruments mssUttd Uling net .... 11 value n,mved from VenlW'e Capital Fund/0th,,,. 

Fair value of finand.aJ assets and liabilities measuttd at amortised a,st 

M•t Aul 
Putkul ... 31 Mm:h 2112, 31MM<h21l23 

PmValu Val~ 
Plnand.a1 Aueta 

Loans 100.58 89.32 
Security Dq,osit, 161.42 93.18 

1ntm,st Accrued on Loans and Deposits 40.9l 45.58 
&,,l<Depooits 854.81 9ll.69 

fi.n.md.aJ Lubilities 
Borrowings 9,820.60 9,'11.17 

Th< canylng amounts of Trade Reafvables, Cash and cash Equivalents, Bank balances other than Cash & Cash Equivalents, Other 
Receivables, Ttode Payables and UncWmed Dividffld u. ronsideml to bo the wne u !heh fair val..,. due to the current and ohort...,nn 
natur, of sl>Ch balonce,. 
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NOl'E21 
ADOmON INFORMA TI0"4'!00'LANATIONS 

oJ The N- to theoo a>nlOlidatod flnandal Olll.....,IS ate dl,cJo,ed to tlw t'ldffll ,_..,,. (or .,-g I true 111d lalr vlow o/ tlw CONOHdatod fiNnc!al 
slll<mem. 11 dari6od ville Clmll4r No.39/2014 da1'd 14th Octobtt,2014. 

bl Comolldaltd Employff bmdit di,dooun,, are not !Nlt!riAlly diffmnt from tho employ,,r bawlit ditclomttt of tho mndalont finandoJ IJlawnonta ol tho 
Company. 

<l 

1

:::..., SJw-Hund pilaltQ 

Pro6t afta Tu 
Wdgnl<d Nw,,b<,-ol EquttyS!wa(F"" Val"' Ro.JO/•) 
Eamlnppc---a.t, 
~ por ahut. OOul<d 

ell Dlodotwa widcrladAS108-"'0pctai.,g$qmall' 
(o)E,mty wid, c!,,do,ure nqui.-.d by Ind AS l081tt., deuilod below: 

(w)Non-aurent-(othor lhancl,/,mdtu.....,andlinand,linstnure>la) 
India 
Oullid• tndil 

{iv) T ramactfom with .sin.git n.temal rumxne whldt Ul'IOClntl to 10" or men ol tht Company1t Rn-e-ioe, 
8ajlj Allianoo Lile INunnce Co Ltd 
llojaj AllJano,c.....J ....,,,,..Co I.bl 

N-

I'« Ill, ,,..., ...W 31- I'« Ill, , ..... .w :n­-- -Ul.14 
J:WJJOO 

4.07 
4.07 

'8.95 
).247/IOO 

2.74 
2.74 

For they.., ffld<d JI- f« theyo11 ffldNI 31-
Man:Mll24 Much-2023 

4,?SS.04 4,205.63 
4,755.04 4,lll5.63 

4.755.04 4,205.63 

4.7SS.OI U)5.63 

8'1116 = 
1¥1116 912.22 

1 
Far~31l Fer=;,dtd3ll 

3Cl7.16 

424.72 

(l) The Groop io enpgtd iJ•fflJia" the 'Real Estate~ and Semc,s". These in tho c,01,te,ct of Ind AS 108 • OporatmgSegment' ere ..,.;der,d to""'51inm! 
one ang!< primuy-onc ThoQoup- not lutt any opo,a..,.. oullld< tndla. H,noi dl,dc,o.,. u e,,,isapd In the"""""""" Stu>d.ffl! II not fflJU1nd. -. 
"'1""'3blo .. gm,,,,,, have not mo clisclo&ed aa wallo<ab!d l1!Cllnc:iliog •- in .,.., of their ma12riality. In .,.., of the .i,..._ primuy aod ......S..,, ,q,ortillg 
dudo!luns lor i.,,;,,,,./g,,,ppbxal "P""".,. not applnblo. 

<I OIKloo,_ uod<rTho Micro, S111111 u,d Modlam Eoterpd,,t Dntl_,. Ad, 2006 ('MSMED'): 
Thedmlllof lWlilil!N o, Mi<,oaod Small~ to tho-lnlomwion millhkwlth the Qaup.,.glve, undlr. 1hlslw bemntied upon bytho ""1l-

(b, llvp<a !.o<>) 

(i) Principal"""""" Nmmng anpaid 10 "'l'Plimas •• the end o1 the"""""""' year 6.44 Cl.56 

N01r: Odm !nfonNltb,/ dhd°"""' rmung,o pa)'O>mb made bqaod appointed dat<, lot'""' ...,.,.i * paid aod ,umulatm! lnlmo.,. 001 lfll)Uc:ablo, bdl,g NIL 

I) The G,oup't lwlng .....,_.. L-.: In ""I'«' ol op,,atlog I<:.,.. for office pmn;,.,.. The !wing 1m11g,mcn1t uo for one-,..,. Md .,. a..Oy r,new1blo by 
mutual comtnt on •gr,,od 1mns. Thc ~...,. r<ntals payabi<.,. dwgrd ...... , 
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ADDmON INIOR.MATI~TIONS 

g) ltdaml put)' dfodosnree ( A. per lAd A$ 24; R4btitd Part)'~: 
W N-.. ol re&aw pu"-9 and Nlbu'e DI rai.tionN,Jpwtwr.<'Qn'1ol ..._ ..,. u under; 

Key ~ t r-nnet Mr. o.p.Jc 01.heda-~and Mt.n-.png 01Ne1or­
Mr. Hadlh NlMI • Whol.TUM Ol.rctor 
Mr. Rohit Ocdhia • Wholo-1'1anc Dnctor 
.... v-,,Shoh_..,_,.,.,. "'""°' 
Mr. Vat,;al Shah• Independent Olf'CIC1or 
Mr. Rohl.n OIMdll- O.WFi.rlil.ndal OC8ce 
Ms.s-hd Jt,gt,ani (UP"' 1,m.=i) 
M,,Jyod S¥ (1',_ O<Jlt.2023) 

MIi. C".rima Dtdht11 et>-1,1pea, ol Mr, Rohll Did hie) 
Mt. Pm-ak Dfdhf.t. (Son.ol Mr.Rohlt ~) 
Mn..Knipa Oiheda (Wife of Mr. ~k Cl\heda) 
Mt."""""" Dodhla (P<-ofM<. llohlto.dhla) 
Mn.J.,,.,•nd Ocdtu• (Mother of M, Rohit Dmhi•) 
Mr. Mehul r--ttsa.r- CSond. H&dsh Ntsu) 

~/FlnN ta whJch Oiredor9 and 
tci;ttive,d Oir1do!'f SN in.r.,wd; 

M/11.. It.DH bmatpKO (fwmedy known u Rodium Reahy kCor:ultrudion) 
M/-.CNA~ 
M/ ._ $gm• Flilcalt Pvt Ud 
1/niwood~ 
UN.wood Sy-,Nma W' 
AltH-

b) Tta.=---"'tiona; snd outatandin with idatod rtics­

,...,,,,._ """'"""''"'''"' 

t) k.,. MAM,--..at hdc Ml· 
R.l!muflSllticm -~tinment Bcncfi&> 

Oll.tFlMnda.l~r 
"""-7--,, 

a--•.,dii,,n.,,•~~d .,.,_,,. 

96.00 55.M .... 
2'.10 22.!iO 
4.'9 t.Gri 

14.<0 ,...., 

55.16 .._ .. 
u:, 
•-~ _., 

.._ .. 
Lou. Tab-a~ ~ 

o,,_, , ..... l.,S31"5 
Olief Pinand:al Of!5cff 80.00 -SaJ,of .... 

~ .. USO G.6.l 

20.58 

55.22 ...,. 
Q.19 . .,. 

...... 
33.:13 

, ....... ., .... 
0.63 

Uftl!«UNd LoaM lrcicn. Dtn!ctors c:anies inta"eSt e 12". (rnMous ,or U1') and arierep•yableon daNnd. The Dimcton h•"e giw:n their 
am.en.t n::pntmg Wlrivff of i,nllt'fWt for financial YC!aT 202)-24. on INlr 18\IIK'W-.d Jou\ 

ij ..wfy~ ol KqM.aa.an-nt ..__.: 

R«manl!ndon .... 
Savico Jl«dvcd lU ,.... ,..,. 
Oi!po,!llt beetved U1 
S.le of A.111 (UnbUJed) 71.PSI m.n ..... ...... 
Cancellation ol Flat ...... 
- ... -,.-an.iawp. 2.40 , .... 113 .. ,. 
lntern-t Pillyab'o ,,.,, 31.77 

ill) Comp~ bl wlddl 01.nc.to,w ..-d r,tbidVfl.ol ~..,,. ~: __ _, ,..,. ..... 177 
s.JoofShop ..... 
Se.leolFbt no.s., lt4,2S 6'.13 nu, 
&p,enae..on Lnt, Fiee and Charge,;. , ... .. ... 22.12 t&.1' 
rntfffft Payablir ,,.,,. ... ,. 
loon Taken/~) (N4t) 100.-00 ..,.76 ..,.,. 
Canetllation ol f'l•i/Shop ,..,. 11$ 
AdY1.nte Ctvm .. .,. ,~ .. .,.,. 10.00 

C') T .... Nwl eondibOIW of~ wilb NQMd ~ 
TM tral'\ACMJW with Nliat.td putila aN IMck on..., fqlllvaleftt to NM Wit Pft'Yall tl'L utd• lqlh tzwliNC'donl, Ou.1Mal'adb\g bll&nttt ... dw,,.,. 
Md.,. UNMalNd and b\._1 INt 11\d Mttllffllll"lt OttUn tn cuh. tor-the,-,. ended ,1 M11~ 202t,. tM:Ooup hall not rk'Clrckd &ft)' lmpalrrnent ot 
nar'fabla, rd•tif\g IO MDOliUl.tf owed by rdltlfd ~ Q1 Much~ .Re. NU), 1'hie Ull!99Cl'lfflt ii w-.da1abtl Neb Bnlu'\cial yeu-tbtough ~ 
d'w fiNntW po,klOft ol tht matH. puty ..wt d\41 mubt In wtlkti tN ntlalfd puty opent-. 
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RODIUM REALTY LIMITED-------------

..an• 
lo) c.....-... 

111 u ..... _, ....... 000 / ••ch"""-Yor. R, 4.500),. i,o ... ,..,, Kool< lndi.C:..wt. Fund . RI.UJS i..a (P,o,low,.., ... , O.Z!I ...... ) 
f.ll Durio("",.., 201 .. u. th, Hol~ c._.1 Md """"1 ... , - ... o1 u.....-irc IMO\., ..;th..,.• the ...,.i.., r., ,._. r,.,.., o1 D,,wp-
Rlgl,~ (l"DR) oo be""""' oho Holdlng Comp,oy'o"f'Olnl,gp ........ Tho Haldu-c Com,...,. hod pold ... l.ltC,.,,. "'tho ..W .....io. u ..,.,.,.• p,r the MOU. Thr J'""Y 
- w,ol,i, to lwfill .. ._....,. u ~ in cbe MOU .....,.ru, ..,,.....i .-,.io, by tho Hddiog Comp"'f, Tor li<>ldingc.mi,.n,i...mmOocl Obe 1cp1,......b 
_......, thood,_pul du, ooth,..,•chol""""" UII ln,odoo"""""5"' thoHoldllw~"l'• l'm~ou-..af hMpl _.,d,o _. pold h¥be,n Nllod 
under Shon Tam l.ocltdAd1'ancet. 

Nofflao/ th, motoy 

p....,, 
· loctiwnll,oltyUmiOtd ,.,..,. __ 
'"""" IWhanHoouvwW' 

S1 &al•LLP 
llddy>tag,LI.P 
Fluid R."1ioy LU' 
Xp,rl,Reoll,YUP 

F«egn 
Rodium Dfcjlal Inc. 

Minority lntcnt1 --
" °"'"-' u.hllllln 

~g;,,.n 

Htl~t ... ~al11Mti..ttw. 
tolJil UblilMf 

"'""' cos:woUdated 
ntt•awts 

llU3lO\ 

16.26" 
17.25~ 
OSl'l 

t0.901. 
0.071' 

Lll'l 

Md .. ..-
2112.0 

5.00 

Amount (Rs,) 

,.,..,., 

%30.0I 
244,l! 

8.00 
154.Zl 

1.Dl 

116.13 

205.10 

.... , 
>lMudo 

21113 .... 

st\lfttnpro&or._ 

,., ~ of ntt Profit -(I<,.) 

,.__ 19.29 

IO'J.331 14«7 
0.00'4 (0,0Q) 

~.CH (0,0t) 
U&1ll 170,10 

0.001< . 

15.911 ll<.24 

78.64 

kl The~ cildnoo ,_,,.,, .,_ __ .._,.._.., __ 2'8 «theComp.,..Ad.2013cr-560ol ,_ C...,W.Ac:t.1!66 """"'"" --· 
Far SCA AND ASSOCIATES a..n..,,1.......,...,. 

sd/-
SNYan·tan Apswal 
~ 
Mnn.Ho,IOOIO 
Mwnbu.. Oa11d. 21th Ma.yr 2024 

I Annual Repon 2023-2024 

Far Rodiiam Realty 1Jtcitaed 

sdJ. 
o..plko.hod> 
-p,10u-«to< 
Dl>(,0009447 

sdl-
Jya!~ 
Componr SecNt,uy ,...... 

sci/-
Rohlt Dtdldl 
Whole-Ti-Oittclot 
DIN:OUl6Q6 

sd/· 
Rohan o.hod, 

Chllf Flnanda1 Offlc!tr 
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